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Re:  Application of STAR Telecommunications, Inc. for Authority to Provide

Interexchange Telecommunications Service within the State of Flonda
Dear Ms. Bayo:

Enclosed herewith on behalf of STAR Telecommunications, Inc. ("STAR") are an original
and five (5) copies of STAR's Application Form for Authority to Provide Interexchange
Telecommunic..tions Service within the State of Florida. Also enclosed is a check in the amount of
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for
AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS
SERVICE WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA
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1. This is an application for (check one):

(X) Original Authority (New company).

( Approval of Transfer (To another certificated company).

( Approval of Assignment of Existing Certificate (To a noncertificated company).
( Approval for Transfer of Control (To another certificated company).

T St

2. Select what type of business your company will be conducting (check all that apply):

() Facilities Based Carrier - company owns and operates or plans to own and operate
telecommunications switches and transmission facilities in Florida.

()  Operator Service Provider - company provides or plans to provide alternative
operator services for IXCs; or toll operator services to call aggregator locations; or
clearinghouse services (o bill such calls.

(X) Reseller - company has or plans to have one or more switches, but prnimarily
leases the transmission facilities of other carriers. Bills its own customer base for

services used.

()  Switchless Rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilities, but may
have a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk discounts from
underlying carrier. Rebills end users at a rate above its discount, but generally

below the rate end users would pay for unaggregated traffic.
()  Multi-Location Discount Aggregator - company contracts with unafTiliated
entities to ubtain bulk/volume discounts under multi-location discount plans from

certain underlying carriers, then offers the resold service by enrolling unaffiliated
customers.

3. Name of corporation, partnership, cooperative, joint venture, or sole proprictorship:
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
4, Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.):

STAR Telecommunications, Inc.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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National address (including street name and number, post office box, city, state, and zip

code):

STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guerra Street
Santa Barbara, California 93101
(805) 899-1962 (Telephone)
(805) 899-2972 (Facsimile)

Florida address (including street name and number, post office box, city, state, and zip

code):

Applicant does not have an office in the State of Florida at this time.

Structure of organization:
() Individual () Corporation
(X) Foreign Corporation ()  Foreign Partnership
()  General Partnership ()  Limited Partnership
()  Other,
If applicant is an individual or partnership, please give name, title, and address of sole
proprietor or partners.
Not applicable.
(a)  Provide proof of compliance with the foreign limited partnership statute (Chapter

(b)

620.169 FS), if applicable.
Indicate if the individual or any of the partners have previously been:

(1)  adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending

proceedings.,

(2) officer, director, partner, or stockholder in any other Florida certificated
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. 1fno
longer associated with company, give reason why not.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Regquired by Commission Rule Nos, 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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9. If incorporated, please give:

(a)  Proof from the Florida Secretary of State that the applicant has authority to
operate in Florida.

A copy of Applicant’s Certificate of Authority to transact business in
the State of Florida as a foreign corporation Is attached hereto as
Exhibit 1.

Corporation charter number: _F27000003370

(b)  Name and address of the company’s Florida registered agent.

Corporation Service Company
1201 Hays Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

(¢)  Provide proof of compliance with the fictitious name statute (Chapter 865.09 FS),
if applicable.

Not applicable.
Fictitious name registration number:

(d) Indicate if any of the c{ficers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders have
previously been:

(1)  adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any felony or
of any crime, or whether such actions may result from pending

proceedings.

None of STAR’s officers, directors, nor any of the ten largest
stockholders, have previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally
incompetent, or found gullty of any felony or of any crime; nor are

any such proceedings pending.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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2)

officer, director, partner, or stockholder in any other Florida certificated
telephone company. If yes, give name of company and relationship. If no
longer associated with company, give reason why not.

Yes. The following officers and directors of STAR were previously an
officer, director or stockholder of another Florida certificated

telephone company.

Chris Edgecomb is a former Officer and Director of WCT
Communications, Inc. (“WCT™), located in Santa Barbara,
CA. Mr. Edgecomb resigned from his position, and is no
longer active with WCT.

John Snedegar is a current Officer and Director of United Digital
Network, Inc., located in Irvine, CA. In addition, Mr.
Snedegar previously was a Director of WCT Communications,
Inc. Mr. Snedegar resigned from his position, and Is no longer
active with WCT.

Gordon Hutchins, Jr. Is a current Director of United Digital Network,
Inc., located in Irvine, CA. In addition, Mr. Hutchins was
previously a Director of WCT Communications, Inc.

10.  Who will serve as liaison with the Commission in regard to (please give name, title,
address, and telephone number):

Application:

(2)

Margaret M. Charles, Esq.
Kimberly A. Rosenthal, Esq.
Swidler & Berlin, Chartercd
3000 K Street, NW, Suite 300
Washington, D.C. 20007
(202) 424-7766 (Telephone)
(202) 424-7645 (Facsimile)

With a copy to:

Mary A. Casey, President and Chief Operating Officer
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.

223 East De La Guerra Street

Santa Barbara, California

(805) 899-1962 (Telephone)

(805) 899-2972 (Facsimile)

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24,471 and 25-24.473.
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(b)  Official Point of Coniact for the ongoing operations of the company:

Mary A. Casey, President and Chief Operating Officer

STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guerra Street
Santa Barbara, California
(805) 899-1962 (Telephone)
(805) 899-2972 (Facsimile)
(¢) Tanff:
See response to 10(b).
(d) Complaints/Inquiries from customers:
See response to 10(b).

11.  List the states in which the applicant:
‘a) Has operated as an interexchange carrier.

STAR does not presently operate as an intrastate interexchange
carrier.

(b)  Has applications pending to be certificated as an interexchange carrier

Applicant is in the process of obtaining Intrastate interexchange
authority, where required, in numerous states throughout the United
States, including Arizona, California, Connecticut, Georgia, Nevada,
Oregon, Pennsylvania and Washington.

(c) Is certificated to operate as an interexchange carrier.

STAR is certificated to operate as a reseller of all forms of telephone
service including intrastate interexchange service, In the state of New
York. (Case No. 97-C-0429, granted June 4, 1997.)

(d)  Has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange carrier and the
circumstances involved.

None.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-6-
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13.

14.

15.

(¢)  Has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of telecommunications
statutes and the circumstances involved.

None.

(H Has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange carrier, local
exchange company, or other telecommunications entity and the circumstances
involved.

As with auy publicly held corporation, STAR has occasionally been both the
defendant and the plaintiff in litigation. The cases which STAR has been Involved
in do not materially affect STAR’s financial, technical or managerial abilitles, or
STAR's operations.

What services will the applicant offer to other certificated telephone companies:

() Facilities ()  Operators
() Billing and Collection () Sales

() Maintenance

(X) Other _None.

At least initially Applicant does not have market plans to provide services to other
carriers, however, it reserves the right to resell facilities or services to other
certificated carriers, depending upon business, legal or regulatory factors.

Do you have a marketing program?

STAR's marketing program is not finalized: however, STAR expects that its
marketing campaign will initially include direct sales personnel and independent
contractor marketing agents.

Will your isarketing program:

(X) Paycommissions?

()  Offer sales franchises?

()  Offer multi-level sales incentives?
()  Offer other sales incentives?

Explain any of the offers checked in question 14 (to whom, what amount, type of
franchise, etc.).

Both direct sales personnel and Independent contractor marketing agents will be
paid sales commissions based upon the volume of new business they generate.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.

-7-




16.  Who will receive the bills for your services (check all that apply)?

(X) Residential Customers (X) Business Customers

() PATS Providers ()  PATS Station End-Users
() Hotels and ()  Hotel and Motel Guests
()  Universities ()  Univ. Dormitory Residents
()  Other,

At last initially Applicant has no plans to provide service to other than residential
and business users. Baved upon operating expenses and market conditions,
however, the Company may expand its services to other markets.

17.  Please provide the following (if applicable):

(8) Wil the name of your company appear on the bill for your services and, if not,
whoﬁﬂthutﬁﬂodpmymncttonkquuﬁommm&ﬂ(pmﬁdemmd
phone number) and how is this information provided?

Yes, STAR's name will appear on bills sent to customers.

(b)  Name and address of the firm who will bill for your services.
STAR will perform its own billing operations.

18.  Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the applicant has the
following capabilities to provide interexchange telecommunications service in Florida.

A.  Financial capability. See Exhibit 2.
Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following applies.
The apnlication ghould contain the applicant’s financial statements, including:
1. the balance sheet

2. income statement

3. statement of retained earnings for the most recent 3 years,

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-8-




If available, the financial statements should be audited financial statements.

If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall be so stated.
The unaudited financial statements should then be signed by the applicant’s chief
financial statements are true and correct.

B. Managerial capability. See Exhibit 3.
C.  Technical capability. See Exhibit 3.

19.  Please submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to begin operation. Use
the format required by Commission Rule 25-24.485 (example enclosed).

STAR’s proposed tarifl is appended hereto as Exhibit 4.

20.  The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services (check all that
apply):

Applicant is seeking authority to provide all forms of direct dialed interexchange
service on a resale basis.

()  MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates
() Method of access is FGA
() Method of access is FGB

() Method of access is FGD
()  Method of access is 800

()  MTS with route specific rates per minute
() Method of access is FGA
() Method of access is FGB
() Method of access is FGD
()  Method of access is 800

(X) MTS with statewide flat rates per minute (i.e., not distance sensitive)

() Method of access is FGA
() Method of access is FGB
(X) Method of access is FGD
() Method of access is 800

()  MTS for pay telephone service providers
()  Block-of-time calling plan (Reach Out Florida, Ring America, etc.)
(X) 800 Service (toll free)

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos, 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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(X) WATS-type Service (bulk or volume discount)

(X) Method of access is via dedicated facilities

(X) Method of access is via switched facilities
()  Private Line Services (channel services) (i.e., 1.544 mbs., DS-3, etc)
(X) Travel Service

() Method of access is 950
(X) Method of access is 800
() 900 Service

()  Operator Services

()  Available to presubscribed customers
() Available to non-presubscribed customers (/.¢., to patrons of hotels,

students in universities, patients in hospitals)
() Available to inmates

Services included are:

Station assistance
Person-to-Person assistance
Directory assistance
Operator verify and interrupt
Conference calling

P S —
S S N N

21.  What does the end-user dial for each of the interexchange carrier services that were
checked in services included (above)?

The end-user will dial either “1” or an 800 number to access these services.

22.  Otler.
Applicant hereby requests a walver to maintain its records outside the State
of Florida.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: | understand that all telephone companies must
pay a regulatory assessment fee in the amount of 15 of one percent of its gross operating
revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless of the gross operating revenue of a

company, a minimum annual assessment fee of $50 is required.

GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: | understand that all telephone companies must pay a gross
receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business.

SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra and
interstaic revenues.

APPLICATION FEE: A non-refundable applic.tion fee of $250.00 must be submitted
with the application.

RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING OF RULES: I acknowledge receipt and
understanding of the Florida Public Service Commission's Rules and Orders relating to
my provision of interexchange telephone service in Florida. I also understand that it is
my responsibility to comply with all current and future Commission requirements
regarding interexchange telephone service.

ACCURACY OF APPLICATION: By my signature below, I, the undersigned owner
or officer of the named utility in the application, attest to the accuracy of the information
contained in this application and associated attachments. | have read the foregoing and
declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information is a true and correct
statement.

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes,
“Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a
public servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a
misdemezuos of the second degree, punishable as provided in 5. 775.082 and s. 775-
083.”

UTILITY OFFICIAL: ﬂﬁﬁ% (}M[} '?-g:??

—MaryA.Casey

—President/COO
Title Telephone Number

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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APPENDIX A
APPENDIX B
APPENDIX C
APPENDIX D

EXHIBIT |
EXHIBIT 2
EXHIBIT 3
EXHIBIT 4

1936341

APPENDICES

CERTIFICATE TRANSFER STATEMENT

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS
INTRASTATE NETWORK

FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES AND EAS ROUTES

EXHIBITS

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS
PROPOSED TARIFF

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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CERTIFICATE TRANSFER STATEMENT

Not applicable. STAR Telecommunications, Inc. is applying for original authority.

I, (TYPE NAME) L(TITLE)

, of (NAME OF COMPANY)

___, and current holder of certificate number __, have reviewed

this application and join in the petitioner's request for a transfer of the above-mentiozd certificate.

Signature Date

Title Telephone Number

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS

A statement of how the Commission can be assured of the security of the customer’s deposits
and advance payments may be responded to in one of the following ways (applicant, please check
one):

(X) The applicant will not collect deposits nor will it collect payments for service
more than one month in advance.

()  The applicant will file with the Commission and maintain a surety bond in an
amount equal to the current balance of deposits and advance payments in excess
of one month. (Bond musi accompany application.)

W\wm Ue/]  as-a7
Signature\ \ Date

President/COO {805) 899-1962
Title Telephone Number

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-14 -




L Ll

INTRASTATE NETWORK

Initially, STAR plans to offer services to its subscribers through the resale of other
certificated interexchange carriers’ facilities and network elements. STAR has no plan
for constructing facilities in Florida at this time. If STAR creates a plan for
constructing its own Florida facilities, it will inform the Commission, and comply
with the Commission’s requirements and all other relevant regulations.
1. POP: Addresses where located, and indicate if owned or leased.
Not applicable. See above.
1) 2)

3) 4)

2. SV/ITCHES: Addresses where located, by type of switch, and indicate if owned or leased.
Not applicable. See above.
1) 2)
3) 4)
3. TRANSMISSION FACILITIES: POP-10-POP facilities by type of facilities (microwave,
fiber, copner, satellite, etc.) and indicate if owned or leased.
Not applicable. See above.
POP-10-POP IYPE OWNERSHIP
1)
2)

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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INTRASTATE NETWORK (continued)

4, ORIGINATING SERVICE: Please provide the list of exchanges where you are proposing
to provide originating service within thirty (30) days afier the effective date of the certificate
(Appendix D).

STAR secks authority to originate interexchange telecommunications service
throughout the State of Florida.

5. TRAFFIC RESTRICTIONS: Please explain how the applicant will comply with the
EAEA requirements contained in Commission Rule 25-24.471(4)(a) (copy enclosed).

As described more fully in the body of this Application, STAR proposes to

interexchange service on a resale basis. The certificated carriers from
which STAR purchases services for resale will be responsible for complying
with Commission Rule 25-24.471(4)(a). If STAR deploys its own facilities-based
interexchange service, it will do so in a meaner that recognizes that “the local
exchange company shall be the sole carrier for O+ local, O- local and O-
intraLATA toll calls dialed by end users.” STAR will “not change or augment
the dialing pattern of end users for such calls,” STAR will only provide
intraLATA toll services to end users who dial STAR's access code (either 950,

800, or 10XXX).
6. CURRENT FLORIDA INTRASTATE SERVICES: Applicant has ( ) or has not (X)
previously provided intrastate telecommunications in Florida. If the answer is has, fully
describe the following:

a) What services have been provided and when did these services begin?

b) If the services are not currently offered, when were they discontinued?
Tulephonc Number

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24,473.
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FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES AND EAS ROUTES
Describe the service area in which you hold yourself out to provide service by telephone
company exchange. If all services listed in your tariff are not offered at all locations, so indicate.

In an effort to assist you, attached is a list of major exchanges in Florida showing the small
exchanges with which each has extended area service (EAS).

** FLORIDA EAS FOR MAJOR EXCHANGES **
Extended Service
Arca with These Exchange:

PENSACOLA: Cantonment, Gulf Breeze
Pace, Milton Holley-Navarre.

PANAMA CITY: Lynn Haven, Panama City Beach,
Youngstown-Fountain and Tyndall
AFB.

TALLAHASSEE: Crawfordville, Havana, Moaticello,
Panacea, Sopchoppy and St. Marks.

JACKSONVILLE: Baldwin, Ft. George, Jacksonville

Beach, Callahan, Maxville,
Middleburg, Orange Park, Ponte Vedra
and Julington.

GAINESVILLE: Alachua, Archer, Brooker, Hewthome,
High Springs, Melrose, Micanopy,
Newberry and Waldo.

OCALA: Belleview, Citra, Dunnellon, Forest
Lady Lake (B21), McIntosh, Oklawaha,
Orange Springs, Salt Springs and Silver
Springs Shores.

DAYTONA BEACH: New Smyma Beach.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-17-
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FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES AND EAS ROUTES (continued)

TAMPA: Central None
East Piant City
North Zephyrhills
South Palmetto
West Clearwater

CLEARWATER: St. Petersburg, Tampa-West and
Tarpon Springs.

ST. PETERSBURG: Clearwater.

LAKELAND: Bartow, Mulberry, Plant City, Polk
City and Winter Haven.

ORLANDO: Apopka, East Orange, Lake Buena
Vista, Oviedo, Windermere, Winter
Garden, Winter Park, Montverde,
Reedy Creek and Oviedo-Winter

Springs.

WINTER PARK: Aopoka, East Orange, Lake Buena
Vista, Orlando, Oviedo, Sanford,

Windermere, Winter Garden,

Oviedo-Winter Springs Reedy Creck,
Geneva and Montverde.

TITUSVILLE: Cocoa and Cocoa Beach.

COCOA: Cocoa Beach, Eau Gallie, Melbourne
and Titusville.

MELBOURNE: Cocoa, Cocoa Beach, Eau Gallie and
Secbastian.

SARASOTA: Bradenton, Myakka and Venice.

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)
Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
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FLORIDA TELEPHONE EXCHANGES AND EAS ROUTES (continued)

FT. MYERS: Cape Coral, Ft. Myers Beach, North
Cape Coral, North Ft. Myers, Pine
Island, Lehigh Acres and
Sanibel-Captiva Islands

NAPLES: Marco Island and North Naples.

WEST PALM BEACH: Boyston Beach and Jupiter.

POMPANO BEACH: Boca Raton, Coral Springs, Deerfield
Beach and Ft. Lauderdale

FT. LAUDERDALE: Coral Springs, Deerficld Beach,
Hollywood and Pompano Beach.

HOLLYWOOD: Ft. Lauderdale and North Dade.

NORTH DADE: Hollywood, Miami and Perrine.

MIAMI: Homestead, North Dade and Perrine.

STAR seeks authority to originate Interexchange telecommunications services
throughout the State of Florida at the rates identified in its proposed tariff attached

hereto as Exhibit 4.
UTILITY OFFICIAL; 14T
Signature Date K
— Presideat/COO —(BOS) §899-1962
Title Telephone Number
FORM PSC/CMU 31 (3/96)

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25-24.471 and 25-24.473.
-19-




EXHIBIT 1
Certificate of Authority to Transact Business




FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
Sandra B. Mortham
Secretary of State
June 27, 1887
CcSC

ATTN: W, CHARLES EARNEST

Qualification documents for STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC, were filed on
June 27, 1997 and assigned document number F87000003370. Please refer to
this number whenever corresponding with this office.

Your corporation is now qualified and authorized to transact business in Florida
as of the file date.

A ~orporation annual report will be due this office between January 1 and May 1
of the year following the calendar year of the file date. A Federal Employer

~ Identification (FEI) number will be required before this report can be filed. If you

do not al have an FEI number, please NOW with the Intemnal
Revenue by 1-800-829-3676 and requesting form SS-4.

Please be aware If the wa address changes, it is the responsibility of the
corporation to notify this office.

Should have questions ing this matter, please telephone (904)
437-609% Forealgnny Qual ax Lien Section.

Lee Rivers

Document Examiner

Division of Corporations Letter Number: 097A00034146
Account number: 072100000032 Account charged: 70.00

Division of Corporations - P.O. BOX 6327 -Tallahassee, Florida 32314




APPLICATION BY FOREIGN CORPORATION FOR AUTHORIZATION TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN FLORIDA

IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 607.1503, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE FOLLOWING IS
ETUEI%W REGISTER A FOREIGN CORPORATION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE

‘(Name of co

. % LN
orporation: must incl D", "COMPANY*, *“CORPORATION" or words or
abbreviations of like import in | @ as will clearly indicate that it Is a corporstion instead of a natural person
or partnership if not so contained in name at present.
2. DELAWARE 3. 770362681
(State or country under the law of which it is incorporated)  (FEI number, if appiicable)
4. s% 13, l% B. %gmn
(Date orpor uration: Year corp. will cease to exist or "perpetual®)
. UPON FILING
(Date first transacted business In Florida, (See sections 607,1601, 607,1602, end 817.168, F.5.]
=
2. 223 EAST DE LA GUERRA STREET 2 S
S 2%
SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101 ST
o rm' N . N — nﬁi;
ATES, =P
6. fL0ET AES R G TP g TBE e
=
B 30} . i arried O T
— om
= G
9. Name and street address of Florida registered agent: (P.O. Box or Mail Drop Box NOT
acceptable)
Name: Corporation Service Company
Office Address: 1201 Hays Street
Tallahassee , Florida, 32301
(Zip Code)

10. Registered agent’s acceptance:

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process for the above stated
corporation at the place designated in this application, | hereby accept the appointment as
registered agent and agree to act in this capacity. | further agree to comply with the provicians

of all statutes relstive to the proper and complete performance of my duties, and | am familiar
with and accept the obligations of my position as registered agent.

Corporation Service Company
By:

11. Attached is a certificate of existence duly suthenticated, not more than 80 days prior to
delivery of this application to the Department of State, by the Secretary of State or other

official having custody of corporate records in the jurisdiction under the law of which it is
incorporated.




12. Names and addresses of officers and/or directors: (Street address ONLY- PO, Box
NOT acceptable)
A. DIRECTORS (Street address only- P.O. Box NOT acceptable)

Chairman: CHRISTOPHER E. EDGECOMB

Address: 223 EAST DE LA GUERRA STREET

SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101

Vice Chairman: MARY CASEY

Address: 223 EAST DE LA GUERRA STREET
SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101

Director: __JOHN SNEDEGAR

Address: 223 EAST DE LA GUERRA STREET
SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101

Director: __ GORDON HUTCHINS JR.

Address: 223 EAST DE LA GUERRA STREET

SANTA BARBARA, CALIFORNIA 93101

B. OFFICERS (Street address only- P.O. Box NOT acceptable)
President: MARY CASEY

223 EAST DE LA GUERRA STREET
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4,000,000 Shares

STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
Common Stock

Of the 4.000.000 shares of Common Stock offered hereby. 3.750.000 shares are Leing sold by the
Company and 250.000 shares are being sold by the Selling Stockholders. The Company will not receive anv
of lh; nﬂmﬂd: from the sale of shares by «he Selling Stockholders. See “Principal and Selling
Stock ers.”

Prior to this offering. there has been no public market for the Common Stock of the Company. See
“Underwriting” for a discussion of the factors considered in determining the initial public offering price.
The Common Stock has been approved for quotation on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol
STRX.

The shares offered hereby involve a high degree of risk.
See “Risk Factors” commencing on page 5.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS
THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTUS.

ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE

oy P} | Comper i | il

Por SRR s caia s o e aad $9.00 8063 88.37 $8.37
Totalld) i i e nasr a e g $36.000.000 $2.520.000 831,357,500 $2.092.500

(1) See "Underwriting” for indemnification arrangements with the several Underwriters.
(2) Before deducung expenses payable by the Company estimated at §1.500.000.

{3) The Company and certain Selling Stockholders have granted to the Underwriters a 30-day option to
purchase up to 600.000 additional shares of Common Stock solely to cover over-allotments, if any. If all
such shares are purchased, the total Price to Public, Underwriting Discount, Proceeds to Company and
Proceeds to Selling Stockholders will be 841,400,000, $2,808,000, 833,061,500 and §5.440,500, respec-
tively. See “Underwriting.”

The shares of Common Stock are offered by the several Underwriters subject to prior sale, receipt and
acceptance by them and subject to the right of the Underwriters to reject any order in whole or in part and
certain other conditions. It is expected that certificates for such shares will be available for delivery on or
about June 17, 1997 at the office of the agent of Hambrecht & Quist LLC in New York, New York.

HAMBRECHT & QUIST ALEX. BROWN & SONS
INCORPORATED

June 12, 1997




CERTAIN PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN THIS OFFERING MAY ENGAGE IN TRANSAC-
TIONS THAT STABILIZE, MAINTAIN, OR OTHERWISE AFFECT THE PRICE OF THE COM-
MON STOCK OF THE COMPANY, INCLUDING BY ENTERING STABILIZING BIDS,
EFFECTING SYNDICATE COVERINGC TRANSACTIONS OR IMPOSING PENALTY BIDS. FOR A
DESCRIPTION OF THESE ACTIVITIES, SEE “UNDERWRITING.”




PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information and Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus. The Common Stock offered
hereby involves @ high degree of risk. Se¢ “Risk Factors."”

The Company

STAR Telecommunications, Inc. ("STAR" or the "Company”) is an international long distance
provider offering highly reliable, low cost switched voice services on & wholesale basis, primarily to
U.S.-based long distance carriers. STAR provides international long distance service to over 275 foreign
countries through & fexible network of resale arrangements with long distance providers, various
foreign termination relationships, international gateway switches, and leased and owned transmission
facilities. The Company has grown its revenues rapidly by capitalizing on the deregulation of
international telecommunications markets, by combining sophisticated information systems with
flexible routing techniques and by leveraging management’s industry expertise. STAR commenced
operations as an International long distance provider in August 1995 and increased its revenues from
$16.1 million in 1695 to $208.1 million in 1996.

The Company serves the large and growing international long distance telecommunications
market. According to industry sources, worldwide gross revenues in this market were approximately
$57 billion in 1905 and the volume of international traffic on the public telephone network is expected
to grow at & compound annual growth rate of 12% or more from 1995 through the year 2000. A segment
of this market, the resale of international long distance capacity, has experienced particularly rapid
growth. According to FCC data, total billed revenue of US. resellers of international switched iervices
increased approximately 55% from 1094 to 1995, from approximately $1.1 billion to $1.7 billion.

STAR markets to small and medium size long distance companies that do not have the critical mass
to invest in their own international transmission facilities or to obtain volume discounts from the larger
facilities-based carriers. STAR also markets to larger long distance companies seeking lower rates and
overflow capacity. The Company provided switched long distance services to 88 customers in the first
quarter of 1097. STAR operates international gatewsy switching facilities in New York and Los Angeles
and holds ownership positions in eight digital undersea fiber optic cables. The Company has installed
an international gateway switch in London, England, and plans to invest in additional undersea fiber
optic cables. STAR's switching facilities are linked to a proprietary reporting system, which the
Company believes provides it with a competitive advantage by permitting management on a real-time
basis to determine the most cost-effective termination alternatives, monitor customer usage and

manage gross margins by route,

1o 1065 and 1996, the Company rapidly built its wholesale customer base, trafic volume and
revenue by offering favorable rates compared to other long distance providers. STAR now seeks to
lower its cost of services and improve its gross margin by negotiating lower rates with domestic and
foreign providers of transmission capacity and, when justiied by trafic volume, invest in network
facilities and enter into fixed cost arrangements, including long term leases. In addition, the Company
intends to market its international long distance services directly to commercial customers overseas,
with an initial focus on the UK and selected European cities,

The Company was incorporated in Nevada in September 1993 as STAR Vending, Inc. and was
reincorporated in Delaware as STAR Telecommunications, Inc. in April 1867. The Company's
executive offices are located at 223 East De La Cuerra Street, Santa Barbara, California 83101. Its
telephone number at that location is (805) 699-1062.
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Risks Associated with Limited Operating History in the International Telecommunications Market.

The Company was incorporated in September 1983, but did not commence its current business as
an international long distance provider until the third quarter of 1995. As a result, the Company’s
business must be considered in light of the risks faced by early stage companies in the rapidly evolving
international telecommunications market. Early stage companies must respond to external factors,
such as competition and changing regulations, without the resources, infrastructure and broader
business base of more established companies. Early stage companies also must rezpond to these risks
while simultaneously developing systems, adding personnel and entering new markets. As a result,
these risks can have a much greater effect on early stage companies. If the Company does not
successfully address such risks, the Company's business, operating results and financial condition
would be materially adversely affectsd. See “Selected Consolidated Financial Data” and “Manage-
ment's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Operating Results Subject to Significant Fluctuations.

The Company’s quarterly operating results are difficult to forecast with any degree of accuracy
pecause a number of factors subject these results to significant fuctuations. As a result, the Company
believes that period-to-period comparisons of its opersting results are not necessarily meaningful and
should not be relied upon as indications of future performance.

Factors Influencing Operating Results, Including Revenues, Costs and Morgina. The Company's
revenues, costs and expenses have fluctusted significantly in the past and are likely to continue to
fluctuate significantly in the future as a result of numerous factors. The Company’s revenues in any
given period can vary due to factors such as call volume fuctuations, particularly in regions with
relatively high per-minute ; ates; the addition or loss of major customers, whether through competition,
merger. consolidstion or otherwise; the loss of economically beneficial routing options for the
termination of the Company's traffic; financial difSculties of major customers; pricing pressure
resulting from increased competition; and technical difficulties with or failures of portions of the
Comnanv's network that impact the Company's ability to provide service to or bill its customers. The
Company's cost of services and operating expenses in any given period car vary due to factors such as
fuctuations in rates charged by carriers to terminate the Company's traffic; increases in bad debt
expense and reserves; the timing of capital expenditures, and other costs associated with acquiring or
obtaining other rights to switching and other transmission facilities; changes in the Company's sales
incentive plans; and costs associated with changes in stafing levels of sales, marketing. technical
support and administrative personnel. In addition, the Company's operating results can vary due to
factors such as changes in routing due to variations in the quality of vendor transmission capability:
loss of favorable routing options; the amount of, and the accounting policy for, return trafic under
operating agreements; actions by domestic or foreign regulatory entities; the level, timing and pace of
the Company’s expansion in international and commercial markets; and general domestic and
international economic and political conditions. Since the Company does not generally have long term
arrangements for the purchase or resale of long distance services, and since rates fluctuate significantly
over short periods of time, the Company’s gross margins are subject to significant fluctuations over
short periods of time. The Company's gross margins also may be negatively impacted in the longer
term by competitive pricing pressures,




Recent Examples of Factors Affecting Operating Results. The Company has recently encountered
significant difficulties in the collection of accounts receivable from certain of its major customers. In
the fourth quarter of 1996, Hi-Rim Communications, Inc. (“Hi-Rim”). one of the Company's major
mwt&wytﬁultmwwdﬁcﬂuﬂuﬂmuhunﬁk
to pay in full, on a timely basis, y $6.0 million in outstanding accounts receivable. The
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payments and was able to offset a portion of the amounts due by sending trafic to Hi-Rim. The
Company believes that it is unlikely to receive any additional payment from Hi-Rim under the note or
otherwise. As a result, the full amount of the approximately $5.3 million owed to the Company by
Hi-aimudboeumhr:!l.lﬂ.whwhwmwnﬂvmﬂmdurforwhichmoﬁamvdm
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had made to CCL the Company increased its reserve against accounts receivable and reserve against
wuwmwnmmwmmuw.md&m&c&mymuim.Md
intangible assets relating to this customer. These reserves and wnite-off reflect the full amount of future
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Balance Sheet at December 31, 1096. The Company continued to provide service to CCl through
mhlmﬂhnﬁ\ﬂmlfwmpwﬂdhlhlmmnollmw;
combination of cash receipts from CCI and offsetting payables from the Company to CCl resulting
from the Company's use of CCI as a vendor. While the Company no longer provides service to CCl,
lh:Compll?HMﬂlﬂunﬁHuCﬂulmdwudh-thmuhumw
arrangements with CCl in order to continue to offset outstanding accounts receivable. However, there
can be no assurance that the Company will be able to collect or continue to offset any significant
pmmﬂ&-mm&mwmm-.mwmm
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extent that CCT's financial condition deteriorates or CCI becomes subject to voluntary or involuntary
Mhunwpmchhﬁnthqwma&mmmmicﬂm«;
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required to repay amounts it received (including through accounts payable offsets) during the 80 day
meﬂhﬂmth&mnr':mmhhﬂqamu&thﬂmy-q
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1997 due to the failure of one of its customers, NetSource, Inc., to pay its outstanding sccounts
receivable. ine Company has commenced litigation against NetSource, Inc. for all outstanding
mmuh"w'lmﬂmmdmmeMd%
tions' and “Business — Litigation.” If the Company experiences similar dificulties in the collection of
accounts receivable from its other major customers, the Company's financial condition and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

In addition, the Company's revenue growth slowed in the fourth quarter of 1996 and the first
quarter of 1997 relative to the third quarter of 1006 primarily due to the Company significantly
redudntthetlﬂeum&oulﬂamnﬂdmdmmInmia]dllcult#uohhlucompa.nlnm
additional rﬁﬂvﬂymﬂ«dnumhu:lc&woadm to pricing changes and transmission
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future, such events could have a material adverse affect on the Company's business, operating results
or financial condition. See “~—Dependence on Other Long Distance Providers; Customer Concentra-




tion and Increased Bad Debt Exposure™ and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.”

No Assurance that Recent Growth Will Continue; Potential Impect on Net Income and Market
Expectations. Although the Company’s revenues have increased in each of the last seven quarters.
such growth should not be considered indicative of future revenue growth or operating results. It
revenue levels fall below expectations, net income is likely to be disproportionately adversely affected
because a proportionately smaller amount of the Company’s operating expenses varies with its
revenues. This effect is likely to increase as a greater percentage of the Company's cost of services are
associated with owned and leased facilities. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able
to achieve or maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis in the Future.

Due to all of the foregoing factors, it is likely that in some future quarter the Company’s operating
results will be below the expectations of public market analysts and investors. In such event, the price
of the Company's Common Stock would likely be materially adversely affected. See “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Rusks of International Telecommunications Business.

The Company has to date generated substantially all of its revenues by providing international
telecommunications services to its customers ca a wholesale basis. The international nature of the
Company's operations involves certain risks, such as changes in US. and foreign government

and telecommunications standards, dependence on foreign partners, tariffs, taxes and other
trade barriers, the potential for nationalization and economic downturns and political instability in
foreign countries. In addition, the Company’s business could be adversely affected by a reversal in the
current trend toward deregulation of telecommunications carriers. The Company will be increasingly
subject to these risks to the extent that the Company proceeds with the planned expansion of its
internati. nal operations.

Risk of Dependence on Forelgn Partners. The Company will increasingly rely on foreign partners
to terminate its traffic In foreign countries and to assist in installing transmission facilities and network
switches, complying with local regulations, obtaining required licenses, and assisting with customer
and vendor relationships. The Company may have limited recourse if its foreign partners do not
perform under their contractual arrangements with the Company. The Company's arrangements with
foreign partners may expose the Company to significant legal, regulstory or economic risks.

Risks Associated with Foreign Covernment Control end Highly Regulsted Markets. Covernments of
many countries exercise substantial influence over various aspects of the telecommunications market.
In some cases, the government owns or controls companies that are or may become competitors of the
Company or companies (such as national telephone companies) upon which the Company and its
foreign partners may depend for required interconnections to local telephone networks and other
services. Accordingly, government actions in the future could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's operations. In highly regulated countries in which the Company is not dealing directly with
the dominant local exchange carrier, the dominant carrier may have the ability to terminate service to
the Company or its foreign partner and, if this occurs, the Company may have limited or no recourse.
In countries where competition is not yet fully established and the Company is dealing with an
alternative carrier, foreign laws may prohibit or impede the entry of such new carriers in the market.

Risks Associated with Internationsl Settlement Rates, International Traffic and Foreign Currency
Fluctuations. The Company’s revenues and cost of long distance services are sensitive to changes in
international settlement rates, imbalances in the ratios between outgoing and incoming traffic and
foreign currency fluctustions. International rates charged to customers are likely to decrease in the
future for a variety of reasons, including increased competition between existing long distance providers,
new entrants into the market and the consummation of joint ventures among large international long
distance providers that facilitate targeted pricing and cost reductions. There can be no assurance that the
Company will be sble to increase its traffic volume or reduce its operating costs sufficiently to offset any
resulting rate decresses. In addition, the Company expects that an increasing portion of the Company’s
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net revenue and expenses will be denominated in currencies other than US. dollars, and changes in
exchange rates may have a significant effect on the Company's results of operations. As the Company
continues to pursue a strategy of entering into operating agreements where it is economically
advantageous to do so. the Company’s results of operations will become increasingly subject to the risks
of changes in international settlement rates and foreign currency fluctuations. See “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. The Company is also subject to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
(“FCPA”), which generally prohibits U.S. companies and their intermediaries from bribing foreign
officials for the purpose of obtaining or keeping business. The Company may be exposed to liability
under the FCPA as a result of past or future actions taken without the Company's knowledge by
mmeﬂmmmmdhﬁnhchlhbllltynoul&hnuamnuuladv:ma!'m
on the Company’s business, operating results and Bnancial condition.

Potential Adverse Affects of Covernment Regulation.

The Company’s business is subject to various U.S. federal laws, regulations, agency actions and
court decisions. The Company's international facilities-based and resale services are subject to
regulation by the Federal Communications Commission (the “FCC"). The FCC requires suthorization
prior to leasing capacity, acquiring international facilities, and/or initiating international service. Prior
FCC approval is also required to transfer control of an authorized carrier. The Company is also subject
to the FCC rules that regulate the manner in which international services may be provided, including.
for instance, the circumstances under which carriers may provide international switched services by
using private lines or route traffic through third countries.

The FCC's Private Line Resale Policy. The FCC's private line resale policy prohibits a carrier from
mmuinmmmmwmumwmummmwwmmc
has found that the country affords U.S. carriers equivalent opportunities to engage in similar activities
in ti at country. Certain of the Company’s arrangements with foreign carriers involve the transmission
of switched services for termination in a country that has not been found by the FCC to offer
equivalent resale opportunities. These arrangements are with foreign carriers that are not the
dominant carriers in their respective foreign countries. There can be no assurance that the FCC, upon
viewing these alternate carrier arrangements, would permit these arrangements under its private line
resale policy. If the FCC finds that these arrangements conflict with its policy, among other measures,
it may issue a cease and desist order or impose fines on the Company, which could have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results and financial condition. It is also possible
that the regulatory agency of the foreign government would find that foreign law does not permit the
operation of alternate carriers or that the alternate carriers have not met foreign law requirements for
such operations. Such a fnding could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
operating results and financial condition.

ICC Folicies on Transit and Refile. The FCC is currently considering whether to limit or prohibit
the practice whereby a carrier routes, through its facilities in a third country, traffic originating from
one country and destined for another country. The FCC has permitted third country calling where all
countries involved consent to the routing arrangements (referred to as “transiting”). Under certain
arrangements referred to as “refiling,” the carrier in the destination country does not consent to
receiving traffic from the originating country and does not realize the traffic it receives from the third
country is actually originating from a different country. The FCC to date has made no pronouncement
as to whether reflle arrangements comport either with US. or International Telecommunications
Union (“ITU™) regulations. It is possible that the FCC will determine that refiling. as defined. violates
U.S. and/or internstional law, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
operating results and fnancial condition.

The FCC's International Settlements Policy. The Company is also required to conduct its interna-
tlondbuﬂnmmwwﬂhthlmﬁlmwmum&y(tin"l!?"].ﬂulﬁl’




establishes the permissible arrangements for U.5.-based carriers and their foreign counterparts to settle
the cost of terminating each other’s traffic over their respective networks. It is possible that the FCC
would take the view that some of the Company’s arrangements with alternative foreign carriers do not
comply with the existing ISP rules. If the FCC, on its own motion or in response to a challenge filed by
a third party, determines that the Company’s foreign carrier arrangements do not comply with FCC
rules, among other measures, it may issue a cease and desist order or impose Bnes on the Company.
Such action could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results and
fnancial condition.

Recent and Fotential FCC Actions. Regulatory action that has been and may be taken in the future
by the FCC may enhance the intense competition faced by the Company. The FCC recently enacted
certain changes in its rules designed to permit more Bexibility in its ISP as a method of achieving lower
cost-based sccounting rates as more [acilities-based competition is permitted in foreign markets.
Specifically, the FCC has decided to allow U.S. carriers, subject to certain competitive safeguards, to
propose methods to pay for international call termination that deviate from traditional bilateral
accounting rates and the ISP. The FCC has also proposed to establish lower ceilings (“benchmarks”)
for the rates that U.S. carriers will pay foreign carriers for the termination of international services. In
separate proceedings, the FCC is considering equivalency determinations for Australia, Chile, Den-
mark, Finland, Hong Kong and Mexico. While these rule changes may provide more flexibility to the
Company to respond more rapidly to changes in the global telecommunications market, it will also
provide similar flexibility to the Company’s competitors. The FCC has also proposed to implement the
WTO Agreement by, among other things, relaxing the limitation on the entry of foreign carriers from
WTO-member countries into the U.S, market. There can be no assurance that the FCC will adopt such
rule changes. The FCC is also considering certain other internstional policy issues in. several
rulemaking proceedings and in response to specific applications and petitions filed by other telecom-
munications carriers, including mandating lower international accounting rates. The resolution of
these proceedings could have an adverse effect on the Company’s business.

Foreign Regulations. The Company may also be subject to regulation in foreign countries in
connection with certain of its business activities. For example, the Company's use of transit,
international simple resale (“ISR”) or other routing arrangements may be affected by laws or
regulations in either the transited or terminating foreign jurisdiction. Foreign countries, cither
independently or jointly as members of the ITU, may have adopted or may adopt laws or regulatory
requirements regarding such services for which compliance would be difficult or expensive, that could
force the Company to choose less cost-eifective routing alternatives and that could adversely affect the
Company's business, operating results and Bnancial condition.

In the United Kingdom (“U.K."), the Company’s services are subject to regulation by the Ofice of
Telecommunicstions (“Oftel”). The regulatory regime currently being introduced by Oftel to facili-
tate competition has a direct and material effect on the ability of the Company to conduct its business
in the UK. The Company has been granted licenses to provide international facilities-based voice
services from the UK. ISR services over leased lines to all international points from the U.K. There
can be no assurance that the Company will be granted the ISR license in the immediate future, or at
all. Failure to obtain such authority would prevent the Company from providing certain resale services
in the UK. and would limit the Company’s ability to expand its operstions. Future changes in
government regulation could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating
results or Anancial condition.

To the extent that it seeks to provide telecommunications services in other non-US. markets, the
Company is subject to the developing laws and regulations governing the competitive provision of
telecommunications services in those markets. The Company currently plans to provide a limited
range of services in Belgium, France, Germany and Mexico, as permitted by regulatory conditions in
those markets, and to expand its operations as these markets implement scheduled liberalization to
permit competition in the full range of telecommunications services in the next several years. The
nature, 2xtent and timing of the opportunity for the Company to compete in these markets will be




determined, in part, by the actions taken by the governments in these countries to implement
competition and the response of incumbent carriers to these efforts. There can be no assurance that
the regulatory regime in these countries will provide the Company with practical opportunities to
compete in the near future, or at all, or that the Company will be able to take advantage of any such
liberalization in & timely manner. See "Business—Government Regulation.”

Regulation of Customers. The Company's customers are also subject to actions taken by domestic
or foreign regulatory authorities that may affect the ability of customers to deliver traffic to the
Company. Regulatory sanctions have been imposed on certain of the Company’s customers in the past.
While such sanctions have not adversely impacted the volume of trafic received by the Company from
such customers to date, future regulatory actions could materially adversely affect the volume of traffic
received from a major customer, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Dependence on Availability of Transmisrion Capacity.

During Bscal 1996, substantially all of the Company's revenue was derived from the sale of
international long distance services terminated through resale arrangements with other long distance
providers. The Company purchased capacity from 51 vendors in the quarter ended March 31, 1997, six
of which sccounted for & majority of the Company's capacity during the same period. There can be no
assurance that such resale arrangements will continue to be available to the Company on a cost.
effective basis or at all. Currently, most transmission capacity used by the Company is obtained on a
variable, per minute basis, subjecting the Company to the possibility of unanticipated price increases
and service cancellations. The Company also requires high volce quality transmission capacity, which
may not always be available at cost-effective rates. If the Company is not able to continue to enter into
cost-. Jective resale arrangements with its primary vendors, or 1s unable to locate suitable replacement
vendors that offer suficient, high quality alternative capacity, the Company's business, operating
results and Bnancial condition could be materially adversely affected. For instance, to the extent that
the Company's variable costs increase, the Company may experience reduced or, in certain circum-
stances, negative margins for some services. As its trafic volume increases on particular routes, the
Company expects to decrease its reliance on variable usage arrangements and enter into fixed monthly
or longer-term leasing or ownership arrangements, subject to obtaining any requisite authorization, To
the extent that the Company does so, and incorrectly projects traffic volume in a particular geographic
area, the Company would experience higher fixed costs without a related increase in revenue. The
Company has invested substantial resources and intends to continue to invest in developing its wn
global transmission and switching facilities, which is a capital intensive and time-consuming process.
There can be no assurance that the Company will successfully complete development of its global
network in » tirsly manner and within budget. See “Business—Network.”

Managem.mnt of Changing Business.

Increased Demands on Management and Need to Continue to Improve Systems. The Company has
recently experienced significant revenue growth and has expanded the number of its employees and
the geographic scope of its operations. These factors have resulted in increased responsibilities for
management personnel and placed increased demands upon the Company's operating and Bnancial
systems, The Company expects that its expansion into foreign countries will lead to increased financial
and administrative demands, such as increased operational complexity associsted with expanded
network facilities, administrative burdens associated with managing an increasing number of relation-
ships with foreign partners and expanded treasury functions to manage foreign currency risks. The
Company's accounting systems and policies have been devaloped as the Company has experienced
significant growth, and the Company will require additional personnel, systems and policies to comply
with the reporting requirements of a publicly held company. Although the Company has recently
implemented a new financial accounting system in 1997, there can be no assurance that the Company's
personnel, systems, procedures and controls will be adequate to support the Company’s future




operations. Difficulties encountered in the Company’s transition to a new accounting system or the
failure to implement and improve the Company's operation. financial and management systems as
needed to accommodate any expansion of the Company's business could have a material adverse effect
on the Company's business, operating results and financial condition. See “—Dependence on Key
Personnel,” “Business—Employees” and “Management.”

Risks of Expansion into Commercial Market, While the Company has focused to date solely on the
wholesale market. the Company intends to expand into the commercial market and such expansion will
increase the risk of bad debt exposure and lead to higher operating costs. The Company also may be
required to update and izprove its billing systems and procedures and/or hire new management
personnel to handle the demands of the commercial market. There can be no assurance that the
Company will be able to effectively manage the costs of and risks associated with expansion into the

commercial market.

Risks Associated with Complex Switching and Information Systems Hardware and Software.

The Company's information systems and its Northern Telecom and Stromberg-Carlson switching
equipment are expensive to purchase, complex to install and maintain, and subject to hardware defects
and software bugs. The Company may experience technical dificulties with its hardware or software
which could adversely affect the Company's ability to provide service to its customers, manage its
network, collect billing information, or perform other vital functions. For example, in the fourth
quarter of 1096 the Company experienced difficulties associsied with the installation of a software
upgrade to its switching equipment. If similar events occur in the future, such events could have a
material adverse affect on the Company's business, operating results or financial condition.

Dependence on Key Personnal.

The Company's success depends to a significant degree upon the efforts of senicr management
personnel and a group of employees with longstanding industry relationships and technical knowledge
of the Company's operations, in particular, Christopher E. Edgecomb, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Edgecomb is bound by the terms of a Non-Compete Agreement, which restricts the
Company's ability to offer domestic interexchange products and services until September 1997 and
solicit certain customers for an 18 w.onth period thereafter. Several of the Company's key management
personnel joined the Company in the past six months, including the Company's Chief Financial Officer
and Executive Vice President—Operations and Engineering. The Company maintains and is the
beneﬁchn'undﬂlhymllfeimmpoﬁcyhthemtofllﬂﬂmlﬂhondlhrmctto
Mr. Edgecomb. The Company’s management team has limited experience working together and there
can be no assurance that they can successfully integrate as a management team. The Company believes
that its future success will depend in large part upon its continuing ability to attract and retain highly
skilled personnel. Competition for qualified, high-level telecommmunications personnel is intense and
there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in attracting and retaining such
personnel. The loss of the services of one or more of the Company’s key individuals, or the failure to
attract and retain other key personnel, could materially adversely affect the Company s business,
operating results and Bnancial condition. See “Management.”

Significant Competition.

The international telecommunications industry is intensely competitive and subject to rapid
change. The Company’s competitors in the international wholesale switched long distance market
include large, facilities-based multinational corporations and smaller facilities-based providers in the
US. and overseas that have emerged as & result of deregulation (often referred to as Post, Telephone
and Telegraphs or “PTTs"), switched-based resellers of international long distance services and
international joint ventures and alliances among such companies. International wholesale switched
long distance providers compete on the basis of price, customer service, transmission quality, breadth
of service offerings and value-added services. The number of the Company's competitors is likely to
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increase as & result of the new competitive opportunities created by the WTO Agreement. Under the
terms of the WTO Agreement, the United States and the other 88 countries participating in the
wmmuwmmm-ﬂmwmw&m.mm
ownership and adopt measures to protect against anticompetitive behavior, effective starting on
January 1, 1996. As a result, the Company believes that competition will continue to increase, placing
downward pressure on prices. Such pressure could adversely affect the Company's gross margins if the
Cnmpmyhmﬂhhton&miﬂmﬂ:mmwﬁhwd:pﬂuudwﬁou

Competition from Domestic and International Companies and Alliances. The US.-based interna-
tional telecommunications services market is dominated by American Telephone & Telegraph Co.
(“AT&T"), MCl Communications Corp. ("MCI”) and Sprint Communications Company L.P.
(“Sprint”). The Company also competes with WorldCom, Inc., Pacific Cateway Exchange. Inc.,
TresCom International, Inc. and other US.-based and foreign long distance providers, many of which
hwmnﬂhﬁlymm“ﬂmhnmdmmm“dmumml
communications networks than the Company. The Company anticipates that it will encounter
thdmmunmhoftbowmddﬂdm-muhuehn;dmm
telecommunications providers. For example, MCI and British Telecommunications recently an-
nounced a proposed merger that would create a global telecommunications company called Concert,
and additionally have announced an alliance with Telefonica de Espaiia. The effect of the proposed
merger and alliance could create significantly increased competition. Many of the Company’s current
competitors are also the Company’s customers. The Company's business would be materially adversely
affected to the extent that a significant number of such customers limit or cease doing business with
the Company for competitive or other reasons. Consolidation in the telecommunications industry
could not only create even larger competitors with greater financial and other resources, but could
also adversely affect the Company by reducing the number of potential customers for the Company’s
services.

Competition from New Technologies. The telecommunications industry is in a period of rapid
technological evolution, marked by the introduction of new product and service offerings and
incruﬂumﬂmududumu&mmdwhmnmﬂnwthmmﬁddby
the Company. Such technologies include satellite-based systems, such as the proposed Iridium and
Gtohﬁwwnmuﬂhmmdﬂnhmfwmmuﬂmdmuddnnmmmmﬂumd
digital wireless communication systems such as personal communications services (“PCS"”). The
Compmyhmabhtop'dm-hlchul’mypn-lhhfutmpmductudmnﬁoﬂnpwﬂlbc
important to maintain its competitive position or what expenditures will be required to develop and
provide such products and services.

Increased Competition as a Result of @ Changing Regulatory Environment. The FCC recently
wtd&T&TswﬂMhhMﬁunm—&mﬂmtwﬂerhthndmmuntemnemd
international markets, which has allowed AT&T to obtain relaxed pricing restrictions and relief from
other regulatory constraints, hclu&n;nnduﬂdhﬂfmﬂcemquﬁmcnu.ﬁmmduud regulatory
requirements could make it easier for ATKT to compete with the Company. In addition, the
Telecommunications Act of 1096 (the "Telecommunications Act”), which substantially revises the
Communications Act of 1034 (the “Communications Act”), permits and is designed to promote
additional competition in the intrastate, interstate and international telecommunications markets by
both U.S.-based and foreign companies, including the Regional Bell Operating Companies (“RBOCs").
RBOCs, as well as other existing or potential competitors of the Company, have signiicantly more
resources than the Company. The Company also expects that competition from carriers will increase in
the &mmmw;hmﬁtm“ummﬂ-mu.mmur
these and other factors, there can be no assurance that the Company will continue to compete
favorsbly in the future. See "—Potential Adverse Affects of Government Regulation,” “Busi-
ness—Competition” and “Business—Government Regulation.” ;




Dependence on Other Long Distance Providers; Customer Concentration and Increased Bad Debt
Exposure.

The Company's primary business as a wholesale long distance provider makes it highly dependent
upon trafic delivered to the Company by other long distance providers pursuant to arrangements that
can generally be terminated by the provider on short notice. While the list of the Company's most
significant customers varies from quarter to quarter, the Company's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 43% of revenues in the year ended December 31, 1996 and 44% for the quarter ended
March 31, 1897. During 1996, the Company's largest customer, CCL, accounted for approximately 21%
of the Company’s revenue. The Company ceased providing service to CCl in March 1997 due to its
failure to pay outstanding sccounts receivable. No other customer accounted for more than 10% of the
Company's revenue in 1596. The Company could lose significant customer trafic for many reasons,
including the entrance into the market of significant new competitors with lower rates than the
Company, downward pressure on the overall costs of transmitting international calls, transmission
quality problems, changes in U.S. or foreign regulations, or unexpected increases in the Company's
cost structure as a result of expenses related to installing a global network or otherwise. Any significant
loss of customer traffic would have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating
results and fnancial condition.

The Company's customer concentration also amplifies the risk of non-payment by customers. The
Company's two largest customers in 1996 accounted for approximately 20% of the Company’s gross
accounts receivable as of December 31, 1996. The Company has recently encountered significant
difBculties in the collection of accounts receivable from certain of its major customers. In the fourth
quarter of 1996, Hi-Rim, one of the Company’s major custemers, informed the Company that it was
experiencing financial dificulties and would be unable to pay in full, on a timely basis, spproximately
$6.0 million in outstanding scoounts receivable. The Company sccepted s secured note in the amount
of $3.4 million in lieu of a portion of past due payments and was able to offset a portion of the amounts
due by sending trafic to Hi-Rim. The Company believes that it is unlikely to receive any additional
payment from Hi-Rim under the note or otherwise. As a result, the full amount of the approximately
$5.3 million owed to the Company by Hi-Rim as of December 31, 1996, which was not subsequently
collected or for which no offsetting value was received, was written-off in the fourth quarter of 1096. In
the first quarter of 1097, CCI, the Company's largest customer in 1996, also informed the Company that
it was unsble to pay in full, on a timely basis, its accounts receivable balance. To account for the
potential inability to collect on the accounts receivable and outstanding deposits which the Company
had made to CCL the Company increased its reserve against accounts receivable and reserve agginst
deposits by $3.5 million and $2.0 million, respectively. In addition, the Company wrote-off $520,000 of
intangible assets relating to this customer, These reserves and write-off reflect the full amount of future
benefits to have been received by the Company from assets related to CCl recorded on the Company's
Balauce Sheet at December 31, 1996. The Company also took a $1.6 million write-off in the first quarter
of 1997 due to the failure of one of its customers, NetSource, Inc., to pay its outstanding accounts
receivable. The Company has commenced litigation against NetSource, Inc. for all outstanding
amounts. See “— Operating Results Subject to Significant Fluctuations,” “Business — Litigation" and
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

While the Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers, it generally does not
require collateral to support sccounts receivable from its customers and there can be no assurance that
reserves will be adequate in future periods. If the Company experiences similar dificulties in the
collection of accounts receivable from its other major customers, the Company's financial condition
and results of operstions could be materially adversely affected. In addition, the identity of the
Company's major customers can change significantly over short periods of time. For example, while
Hi-Rim accounted for approximately 9% of the Company’s business during 1996, Hi-Rim accounted for
less than 1% of the Company's revenues during the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1097, and Cable &
Wireless, which accounted for approximately 5% of the Company's revenues during 1986, accounted
for approximately 10% of the Company's revenues for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997. In
addition, CCI, which sccounted for approximately 21% of the Company’s revenues during 1996 ceased
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to be a customer in March 1997, See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.”

Capital Expenditures; Potential Need for Additional Financing,

Expansion of the Company's network facilities will require a significant investment in equipment
and facilities. While the Company believes that the proceeds of this offering. combined with other
sources of liquidity, will be sufficient to fund its capital requirements for the next 12 months. the
Company may be required to obtain sdditional financing depending on factors such as the rate and
extent of the Company's international expansion, increased investment in ownership rights in fiber
optic cable and increased sales and marketing expenses to support international wholessle and
commercial operations. lssuance of additional equity securities would result in dilution to stockhold-
ers. There can be no assurance that additional Bnancing will be available on terms acceptable to the
Company, or at all. The Company’s inability to fund its capital requirements would have a material
adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results and financial condition. See “Manage-
ment’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Risks Related to STAR Trademark.

The Company has been advised thet trademark registration may not be available for the “STAR
Telecommunications™ mark because several companies in telecommunications-related industries hold
registered trademarks that include the word “star.” Such companies could allege that the Company's
use of the STAR Telecommunications mark is confusingly similar to existing trademarks. Although the
Company has not received any communication from a third party with respect to its use of its
trademark. there can be no assurance that a third party utilizing a similar mark will not allege that the
Cowr'lmhﬂhplmd;huthulhmp-aywwﬁmﬂuﬂyddmdmrchimnf
infringement or that the Company would not be ordered to cease using the mark and/or pay any
mep&uﬂnmwwmymmmuhcﬂy.nmuwhﬂeﬂ
customer relationships, result in confusion in the market and have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, operating results and Bnancial condition.

Effects of Natural Disasters and Other Catestrophic Events

The&mpnr’nbuﬁmlsmcﬂlbbtnnﬂwﬂdhnunmhuunhquaku.uweltunthef
catastrophic events such as fire, terrorism and war. Although the Company has taken a number of steps
to prevent its network from being affected by natural disasters, fire and the like, such as building
redundant systems for power supply to the switching equipment, there can be no assurance that any
such systems will prevent the Company's switches from becoming disabled in the event of an
earthquake power outage or otherwise. The failure of the Company’s network, or a significant
decrease in telephone traffic resulting from effects of a natural or man-made disaster, could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's relationship with its customers and the Company's business.
operating results and financial condition. See “Business—Network.”

No Prior Trading Market for Common Stock.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the Company's Commor Stock. and
there can be no assurance that an active trading market will develop or be sustained after this offering
The initial public offering price was determined through negotistions among the Company, the Selling
Stockholders and the representatives of the Underwriters based on several factors and may not be
indicative of the market price of the Common Stock after this offering. See “Underwriting "

Potential Volatility of Stock Price.

The market price of the shares of Common Stock is likely to be highly volatile and may be
significantly affected by factors such as actual or anticipated fluctustions in the Company’s operating
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results, changes in federal and international regulations, activities of the largest dome:tic providers,
industry consolidation and mergers, conditions and trends in the internstional telecommunications
market, adoption of new accounting standards affecting the telecommunications industry, changes in
recommendations and estimates by securities analysts, general market conditions and other factors. In
addition, the stock market has from time to time experienced significant price ar4 volume fuctuations
that have particularly affected the market prices for the common stocks of emerging growth
mmpmlu‘l‘hmbmdnuknlnctm“rdmdyaﬁﬂlhemﬁumdthn&mpmv‘s
Common Stock. In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a particular company’s
securities, securities class action litigation has often been brought against the company. There can be
no assurance that such litigation will not oceur in the future with respect to the Company. Such
litigation could result in substantial costs and a diversion of management's attention and resources.
which could have a material adverse effect upon the Company’s business, operating results and
financial condition. See “Underwriting.”

Control of Company by Nemed Officers, Directors and Five Percent Stockholders.

Upon the consummation of this offering. the Named Officers (as defined below), directors, five
percent stockholders and their afiliates in the aggregate will beneficially own approximately 55.3% of
the m&qt&uunfﬂommMudthCmy'&MWﬂﬁmﬂﬂMrhﬂy
owtmmﬂmﬂdyﬁﬁd&lmmmmm-mhaﬂtmmw
over all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of
smmcmtmumMmmdmmmm-ﬁudhhﬂum
preventing a change in control of the Company. See “Principal and Selling Stockholders.”

Benefits of the Offering to Current Stockholders.

The offering will provide substantial benefits to existing stockholders of the Company, particularly
lheprm!&mmMMmelﬂmmmm
persons. Based upon a public offering price of $9.00 per share, the Selling Stockholders will receive
approximately $2.1 million in net proceeds, after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and
commissions. In addition, all existing stockholders of the Company will benefit from the creation of a
public market for the Common Stock held by them after the closing of the Offering. Upon the closing
oflheolfeﬂn;mdlﬁtrghdutﬁmtotha:nlaofﬂmmn&ochbyﬂukmu&ockhnldmlhc
present directors, executive oficers, five percent stockholders and their afflliates and related persons
will beneficially own outstanding shares of Common Stock having an aggregate market value equal to
approximately $78.8 million based upon the initial public offering price of $9.00 per share. See
“Principal and Selling Stockholders.”

Wmofammm;m-MWGfmofw.luhund
Delaware Law.

Upon completion of this offering. the Company's Board of Directors will have the authority to
issue up to 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock and to determine the price, rights, preferences,
prtvlle;esMmmmlndmmmudlwhlhuuﬁthnm»yw
vote or action by the Company’s stockholders. The rights of the holders of Common Stock will be
subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of any Preferred Stock that may
be issued in the future. The issuance of Preferred Stock, while providing fexibility in connection with
possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could have the effect of making it more dificult for
lthMlnl@thﬂﬂlﬂﬂM?ﬂﬂﬂMﬂtﬁW!.ﬁWyhﬂ
nnwmlphuhhuulhﬂnfhﬁvdmm&mrhﬁnnhjmuﬂunum
mmmﬁmmdmmwwm,mmwﬂuwy
fmmmnﬂuha"hﬂnnﬂ:ﬂu"ﬂhu"mduwkholdn“hupcﬂodﬂlhmm
after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested stockholder, unless the
business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. The application of Section 203 could have




an effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of the Company. In addition, upon the closing
afmno&mdwwr'lmlﬂdldﬂdedhmmwmmﬂdefﬂn
classified Board of Directors such that approximately only one-third of the members of the Board will

regulations require prior of certain transfers of control of telecommunications companies.
which could also have the effect of delaying. deferring or preventing a change in control. See
“Business-Covernment Regulation,” “Description of Capital Stock—Preferred Stock” and “—Anti-
takeover Effects of Provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Delaware Law.”

Shares Eligible for Future Sale.

mmmm&mu&ymmmmmm (assuming no exercise of
the Underwriters’ over-allotment option) will be immediately eligible for sale in the public market. An
additional approximately 25,146 shares of Common Stock will be eligible for sale beginning 90 days
mermdmﬂmmd-mwumﬂﬁﬁuuﬁmmk
will be eligible for sale beginning 180 days after the date of this Prospectus, unless earlier released. in
whhwhmﬂwﬁwﬁwnmu&whlh.byW&Quuu.ca:nﬂmum
.&ernmanmmmﬁmmuwwmmmw
chﬂ&f«ﬂhhmﬂkﬂkﬂmﬂhﬂﬂd“mﬂwmmmw
subject to certain volume and resale restrictions as set forth iz Rule 144 under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). In addition, the Company intends to register, following the
effective date of this offering, a total of approximately 2,784,025 shares of Common Stock subject to
wcnumwwmmwwmmmﬂ stock and option plans. Certain
stockholders holding approximately 2,813,000 shares of Common Stock are entitled to registration
d;huwnhroipmwt!lwlhmﬂmmﬂﬂmmﬁnhuuﬂmllhmm
registration dlhu,uulnlupnumbunfaeuﬂuuhbeuﬁundmdnldhlhepublk market,
mehulumldhammndnmMu&amuhﬂmudthocnnpmr'immmmm«f
substantial amounts of such shares in the public market after this offering. or the prospect of such sales,
could adversely affect the market price of the Common Stock. Such sales also might make it more
d!ﬁcultfmhﬁuupnrﬁhﬂch&mﬂhwmhvnlﬂodmuﬂﬂumﬂuﬁ:tuult:ummd
price that the Company deems appropriate. See “Description of Capital Stock,” “"Shares Eligible, for
Future Sale” and “Underwriting.”

Immediate and Substantial Dilution. ;

The purchasers of Common Stock in this offering will experience immediate and substantial
dilution. To the extent outstanding options to purchase the Company's Common Stock are exercised,
there will be further dilution. See “Dilution.”

DESCRIPTION OF FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

MMMMMMvahMmimlmmmu
in “met'lmﬂwﬁmmwﬂmnndnuu}uﬂm"

mmmm‘mmmm&-mmalm.mwﬁwmm-

tnmcmmmﬂwm-mwmmhwmummﬂmyhnlmm
pmbyinunuddhuwlmuddnmudmﬂmhudhthmlﬂmvofmpﬂd

resources. Fmﬂmmmm"m"mhwuhﬁhmmmm
international telecommunications traffic; the Company’s strategy of marketing its services to foreign-




based long distance providers, expanding its U.S. and developing European switching capabilities. and
expanding into foreign commercial markets and in the longer term into the US. commercial market:
and the Company's expectations that its London switch will be operational in mid-1997 and that it will
acquire ownership rights in additional cables. Actual results could differ from those projected in any
forward-looking statements for the reasons detailed in the other sections of this “Risk Factors” portion

of the Prospectus, or elsewhere in the Prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Company from the sale of the shares of Common Stock to be sold by the
Company in this offering are estimated to be $20,887,500 (831,561,500 if the Underwriters’ over-
allotment option is exercised in full), after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and

estimated offering expenses payable by the Company. The Company will not receive any of the
proceeds from the sale of shares of Common Stock by the Selling Stockholders.

The Company intends to use approximately $6.4 million of the proceeds of the offering for the
repayment of outstanding indebtedness under credit facilities, including (1) approximately 85.3 million
outstanding under a revolving line of credit that bears interest at a rate of the bank’s prime rate plus
1.0%, certain amounts of which are convertible at the time of funding into short-term obligations that
bear interest either at LIBOR plus 3.5% or the bank’s cost of funds rate plus 3.5%, and which expires on
July 1, 1097, (ii) approximately $667,000 outstanding under a bank loan that bears interest at a rate of
prime plus 1.5% and which expires on October 1, 1099, (ili) approximately $193,000 outstanding under
bank loans at a varisble interest rate equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, approximately
$41,500 of which is due in June 1097 and 8151,442 of which is due in July 1987, and (iv) approximately
$2:2,000 in borrowings under lines of credit from Christopher Edgecomb, the Company’'s Chief
Executive Officer, which amounts were drawn subsequent to March 31, 1997 at an interest rate of 9.0%
expiring on March 30, 1998. The Company intends to use approximately 823 million of the proceeds of
the offering for capital expenditures during the next twelve months to acquire digital fiber optic cable
capacity and to acquire and install new switching equipment. The remainder of the proceeds are
expected to be used for working capital, expansion of the Company’s marketing and sales organization
and general corporate purposes. Although the Company may use a portion of the net proceeds for
possible acquisition of businesses that are complementary to those of the Company, there are no
current plans in this regard. Pending such uses, the Company plans to invest the net proceeds in short-
term, interest-bearing, investment grade securities. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” “Business—Strategy” and “Certain Transactions.”

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock and does not
expect to do so in the foreseeable future. The Company anticipates that all future earnings, if any,
generated from operations will be retained by the Company to develop and expand its business. Any
future determination with respect to the payment of dividends will be at the discretion cf the Board of
Directors and will depend upon, among other things, the Company's operating results, financial
condition and capital requirements, the terms of then-existing indebtedness, general business condi-
tions and such other factors as the Board of Directors deems relevant. [n addition, the terms of the
Company's revolving credit facility with Comerica Bank, which is collateralized by its accounts
receivable, prohibits the payment of cash dividends without the lender’s consent.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth (i) the actual capitalization of the Company as of March 31, 1997
and (i) the capitalization of the Company as adjusted to reflect changes in the Company's charter
documents in connection with the Company's reincorporation into Delaware, a 3-for-2 reverse stock
split of the Common Stock, the conversion of the preferred stock into 911,360 shares of Common Stock
upon the closing of this offering, the sale of the shares of Common Stock offered hereby (at the initial
public nﬂn;ﬂdﬂﬂmhﬂlﬂd&eqﬂhﬁudﬁtmdnn proceeds therefrom,
See “Use of Proceeds.”

March 31, 1907
Actusl A
(ia thousands)
Long-term liabilities, less current portion .............civvvvernrernnenns. § 5840 $ 5440
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock: $0.001 nlu.l.aﬂ.mﬁn-mhﬁnd.l 047
issued and leﬂunrm an m 5,000,000 luthudlf:n
’M M m" AR EE N NN EEE RN RN RN 1 _—
Commn stock: $0.001 v:lul. 30,000,000 1
oo B e par .m.,hn- suthorized, lﬂ.i 4.3!0
Mllﬁﬁﬂﬁwmﬁunﬂ“{n ............... 11 16
AHHODAT DUMAR CADIAL, . ..o s s csenssonsessssssasssnssssnsannsssnes 13637 43521
Deferred cOmMPENSSHIOn .........cc0vasecserassosrsssnsssrnnsens L A (98) (98)
Rl QRTINS o5 s i o v ns v es s o aha s e o san sssbe e ssbssissasesnnses (5212) (5212)
Stockholders’ 0QUItY ... ..coviiieiirirnrrnrrenneressranennssnnnanrens _83% _382¢7
TW‘E‘HM BEEBE e - L LU AR B R R R R LR ) - . llklu m

(1) Excludes 1,605,852 shares subject to outstanding options as of March 31, 1997 at a weighted
average exercise price of approximately $4.15 per share. Also excludes 1,214,148 shares reserved
for issuance under the Company’s stock plans. See “Management—1897 Omnibus Stock Incentive
Plan,” “—1996 Outside Directors Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan” and Notes 8 and 10 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DILUTION

The net tangible book value of the Company’'s Common Stock as of March 31, 1997, giving effect to
the conversion of all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock into 911,360 shares of Common Stock upon
the closing of this offering. was 38,339,000, or approximately $0.71 per share. “Net tangible book value”
per share represents the amount of total tangible assets of the Company less total liabilities, divided by
11,825,756 shares of Common Stock outstanding. Net tangible book value dilution per share represents
the difference between the amount per share paid by purchasers of shares of Common Stock in the
offering made hereby and the pro forma net tangible book value per share of Common Stock
immediately after completion of the offering After giving effect to the sale of 3,750,000 shares of
Common Stock in this offering at the initial public offering price of $9.00 per share and the application
of the estimated net proceeds therefrom, the pro forma net tangible book value of the Company as of
March 31, 1997 would have been $38,226,500, or $2.45 per share. This represents an immediate increase
in net tangible book value of $1.74 per share to existing stockholders and an immediate dilution in net
tangible book value of $6.55 per share to purchasers of Common Stock In the offering. Investors
in this offering will incur immediste, substantial dilution. This is (llustrated in the

paticipating
following table:

Initial public offering price pershare ...............ociiiiiiiiiiiinnn. $9.00
Pro forma net tangible book value per share before the offering ........ $0.71
Increase per share attributable to new investors .................000e. 174

Pro forma net tangible book value per share after the offering............ 245

Net tangible book value dilution per share to new investors.............. 3655

The following table summarizes, on a pro forma basis as of March 31, 1997, the difference between
the existing stockholders and the purchasers of shares in the offering with respect to the number of
shares purchased from the Company, the total consideration paid and the average price per share paid:

Shares Purchesed Total Conslderation
Number Pertent Amount Pervent Am
Existing stockholders ..... 11,825,756 75.9% 913,640,000 25.8% $ LIS
New stockholders(1) ..... M 24.1 33,750,000 71.2 $ 9.00
Totals .......... : m 100.0% m 100.0%

(1) Sales by the Selling Stockhnlders in this offering will reduce the number of shares held by existing
stockholders to 11,575,756, or 74.3% (11,175,756, or 70.8%. if the over-allotment option I3 exercised
in full), and will increase the number of shares held by new stockholders to 4,000,000, or 25.7%
{ 4,600,000, or 20.2%, If the over-allotment option is exercised in full), of the total number of shares

of Common Stock outstanding after this offering. See “Principal and Selling Stockholders.”

As of March 31, 1997, there were 1,605,852 shares subject to outstanding options at a weighted
average exercise price of approximately $4.15 per share, and 1,214,148 shares reserved for issuance
under the Company’s stock plans. To the extent outstanding options are exercised, there will be
further dilution to new investors. See “"Management—1997 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan,” “—10606
Outside Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan” and Notes 8 and 10 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected Consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Notes thereto and with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” which sre included elsewhere in this The statement of operations data for the years ended
December 31, 1904, 1995 and 1996, and the balance data at December 31, 1005 and 1996 are derived from
sudited Anancial statements included elsewhere In this Prospectus. The balance sheet data at December 31. 1994 are
derived from audited financial statements not included in this Prospectus. Although incorporated in 1993, the
mwadwmmmnmmumhmuuwmmmmmm.

1996 1997 are derived from unsudited financial statements and include, in the opinion of the Company’s
mdd}mmnm&&hhhn&wmuﬂhhmimmm&
are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for a full fiscal year.
Three Months Ended
Year Ended December 31, March 31.
1094 1998 1098 1996 1997
(unsudited)
{in thoussnds, escept per thare and per minute data)
Consolidated Statement of Operstions Data
o o B 178 #6125 4208 086 335667 § 71.008
Colt o DR L T i s i s havE dnonns s sussannisnnsyannssesnnn - 14,357 188 430 32.286 63.738
Gross profit .......... T e R P Y Y 178 1,768 19,656 3.381 7270
Operating expenses:
Selling. general and administrative expensas .. .....oconeiens 290 2,083 24,087 1,803 4.530
Depreciation and amortization ..............cco0ciiiinnnins - 128 1.073 108 22
Income (loss) from opemations ............0.00 T (114) (423) (5.504) 1470 2018
Other income (expense):
mm ---------- FREBEBEREE R B FEREREARREAA BTN E N _— —_— n f— ’l
INRErest CXPENBE . ......couavisrsrrrroirrssnssssntraninssnes —_ (84) (589) (78) {389)
DO SRR 5 17275505+ s s o nsasanseraisnses e Sias (7) (80) (100) 2 4
Income (loss) before provision for income tazes ............. (181) (587) {6,110) 1,362 1.718
Provision for income taxes .........» it PR SR 1 1 5 544 286
Net income (Jos8) . .......oooinirmanasannasssssssnns $(122) § (568) 8 (6644) B 848 3 14N
Pro forma net income (loss) per share(l) .........cccoieunn, $ (054) 8 008 s 011
Pro forma number of shares used in per share computations(1) .. .. 12.198 11.281 12.825

Other Consolidated Financial and Operating Data:

EBITDALR) . .osuvsnidasansanissnasssnsssansssrsssvcesecess §(181) B {375) 8 (483]1) ¥ 157 § 2788
Cash provided by (used in) opersting activities ................ (B6)  (2.183) (7.280) (280) 2.260
Cash used in investing activities ..............cc0cciiieiinnin (101) (1.062) (9.961) (183) {525)
Cash provided by {used in) fnsncing activities ................ 202 3,306 18,708 1.468 (2.608)
wwﬂ ................................... 1 1,850 12938 m - 1m0
minutes of We ....oouuiisietiiiisirsirrasrsrsrsrnanans - 38,106 479,681 85375 172.455
Revenue per billed minute of wse(3) ..........cccvevinviinans $ — $04l02 804288  80.4140 30 4004
December 31, March 31,
1994 1093 1998 1997
(unswdited)
{in thousand.
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Working sapital (defloft) ...........coovvniiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiane e, $(236) #(1.400) #(7.551) {8.363)
Long-term lisbilities, net of current portion . .......coocoiiiiiaiiiiiin. - 712 5478 5549
Wm T Tl N R NN In’ lm’ {atm) ‘5111}
Stockholders’ equity (deflelt) .............ovvvnenrvireiiiiiiiinss 112) 413 6.887 831%

(1) See Notes £ and 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial for an explanation of the method used to determine the
number used in computing pro forms net income (loss) per ;

(2) mxﬂ before interest income and expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization expense
whereas provided by (used in) operating activities represents income or loss from operations plus and
mmm-d-‘ c&u-ﬂmhmﬂhﬂﬁ- mhuéthlnvtﬂ;wh
operating assets liabilities. not flows as y sccepted accounting
pri and does not indicate that cash mﬂﬂiﬂhhﬂdﬂhmueuhnudtm




MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto included elsewhere
in this Prospectus. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involoe risks and uncertainties.
The Company'’s actual results could differ materially from those enticipated in the forward-looking
statements as @ result of certain factors, including, but not limited to those discussed in “Risk Factors” end
elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Overview

The Company is an international long distance provider focused primarily on providing highly
relisble, low cost switched voice long distance services to U.S, and foreign-based telecommunications
companies. The Company currently offers U.S.-originated long distance service to over 200 countries
worldwide through its Sexible network of resale arrangements with other long distance providers,
various foreign termination relationships, international gateway switches and leased and owned
transmission facilities. Although the Company was incorporated in 1993, it did not commence its
current business as a provider of long distance services until the second half of 1085. During 1004, the
Company was primarily engaged in activities outside the international telecommunications industry.
Dwiuthd:mlhndd}mlm&eCowonrwhlrﬂymdnnumlfw.udmﬁdld
services to, companies in the telecommunications industry. Although the Company
ium-dw the first half of 1995 related to the start-up of its service s« a long distance
provider, the Company did not wmﬁmhtwmﬂnymmhhmnﬂhum
June 1995, The Company recognized initial revenue as an international long distance provider in
August 1995. In June 1996, the Company began operation of its second switching facility in New York.

From the third quarter of 1985 through the first quarter of 1997, the Company focused primarily
on building international trafic volume. The Company's customer base grew from 32 customers at the
end o1 1995 to 88 customers at the end of March 1997. Minutes of use increased from 34.3 million in the
fourth quarter of 1095 to 172.5 million in the first quarter of 1997. Revenue grew from §14.0 million in
the fourth quarter of 1995 to $71.0 million in the frst quarter of 1997, See “Risk Factors — Operating

Results Subject to Significant Fluctuations.”

Revenue. Currently, all of the Company’s revenue is generated by the sale of international long
distance services on s wholesale basis to other, primarily domestic, long distance providers. In the
fourth quarter of 1996, the Compan; began to provide international long distance services to foreign-
based telecommunications companies. The Company records revenues from the sale of long distance
services at the time of customer usage. The Company’s agreements with its wholesale customers are
short term in duration and the rates charged to customers are subject to change from time to time,
generally with five days notice to the customer. However, the Company is beginning to offer longer
term, fixed price o..angements for certain countries. The Company’s five largest customers, including
CCI and Hi-Rim, accounted for approximately 43% of gross revenues in 1906, The Company's largest
customer, CCI, accounted for approximately 21% of revenue in 1996 and 15% in the frst quarter of
1997. The Company no longer provides service to CCI or Hi-Rim. The Company's five largest
customers in the first quarter of 1007 accounted for 44% of revenue in such period. Any loss of, or
decrease in usage by, the Company’'s major customers could have @ material adverse effect on ihe
Company's business operating results and financial condition. See “Risk Factors— on
Other Long Distance Providers; Customer Concentration and Increased Bad Debt Exposure™ and
“—Operating Results Subject to Significant Fluctuations.”

Cross Margin. Thmrhuplrndamd‘mﬁummmmd ldh.u.ll.l.n;
volume and revenue by offering favorable rates compared to other long distance wwldcr-
strategy adversely impacted the Company’s gross margin, and will continue to impact gross
thaenent&nhmmwﬂhbdﬂwhﬂ-nwmmmﬂmlm
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cost-effective routes.
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Availability of Transmission Capacity.”
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Denmark, Australia and Colombia, and is in the process of negotiating additional opersting agreements
fwmmwwmhmmﬂu&m.ﬂmm&m.
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agreements will be immaterial through the first half of 1997.

Thmrmmwnmﬂﬂulntmmdwmmwmmd
cu:lm-"'inmﬂn&nummhthmwdlﬂ?.hthbuﬂmm&mpuy
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margins than wholesale trafic. The Company also expects. however, that an expansion into this market
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Customer Concentration and Increased Bad Debt Exposure.”

mmwﬂmudmmmmm“hﬂtyuw.wthedm#nd!
dmluwbumyhoﬁninmbﬂwmwlm'mdwm.
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sccrual for bad debt expense. These expenses have been increasing over the past year, which is
consistent with the Company’s recent growth, accelerated expansion into Europe, and investment in
systems and facilities. The Company expects this trend to continue and believes that additiona! selling.
general and administrative expenses will be necessary to support the expansion of sales and marketing
efforts, the expansion into commercial markets and operations. Selling. general and administrative
expenses in the fourth quarter of fiscal 1996 include $11.6 million in bad debt expense in connection
with accounts receivable, deposits and other assets relsted to two major customers who are no longer
receiving services from the Company. See “Risk Factors — Operating Results Subject to Significant
Fluctuations.”

Foreign Exchange. Although the Company’s functional currency is the US. dollar, the Company
expects to derive an incr=asing percentage of its net revenue from international operations and
changes in exchange rates may have a significant effect on the Company's results of operations. For
example, the accounting rate under operating agreements is often defined in monetary units other than
U.S. dollars, such as “special drawing rights” or “SDRs.” To the extent that the dollar declines rel. e
to units such as SDRs, the dollar equivalent accounting rate would increase. In addition, as the
Company expands into the commercial market in foreign countries, its exposure to foreign currency
rate fuctuations is expected to increase. The Company may choose to limit such exposure by the
purchase of forward foreign exchange contracts or similar hedging strategies. There can be no
assurance that any currency hedging strategy would be successful in avoiding exchange-related losses.
See “Risk Factors—Risks of International Telecommunications Business.”

Factors Affecting Future Operating Results. The Company's quarierly operating results are difficult
to forecast with any degree of accuracy because a number of factors subject these results to significant
fluctuations. As a result, the Company believes that period-to-period comparisons of its operating
results are not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as indications of future
performance.

The Company’s revenues, costs and expenses have fluctuated significantly in the past and are
likely to continue to fuctuste significantly in the future as a result of numerous factors. The
Company’s revenues in any given period can vary due to factors such as call volume fuctuations,
particularly in regions with relatively high per-minute rates; the addition or loss of major customers,
whether through competition, merger, consolidation or otherwise; the loss of economically beneficial
routing options for the termination of the Company’s traffic; fnancial difficulties of major customers;
pricing pressure resulting from increased competition; and technical difculties with or failures of
portions of the Company's network that impact the Company’s ability to provide servics to or bill its
customers, The Company's cost of services and operating expenses in any given period can vary due to
factors such as Auctuations in rates charged by carriers to terminate the Company's traffic; increases in
bad debt expense and reserves; the timing of capital expenditures, and other costs associated with
acquinng or obtaining other rights to switching and other transmission facilities; changes in the
Company's sales incentive plans; and costs associated with changes in staffing levels of sales, marketing,
technical support and administrative personnel. In addition, the Company’s operating results can vary
due to factors such as changes in routing due to variations in the quality of vendor transmission
capability; loss of favorable routing options; the amount of, and the sccounting policy for, return traffic
under operating agreements; actions by domestic or foreign regulatory entities; the level, timing and
pace of the Company's expansion in international and commercial markets; and general domestic and
international economic and political conditions. Since the Company does not generally have long term
arrangements for the purchase or resale of long distance services, and since rates Suctuate significantly
over short periods of time, the Company’s gross margins are subject to significant Buctuations over
short periods of time. The Company’s gross margins also may be negatively impacted in the longer
term by competitive pricing pressures.

Although the Company’s revenues have increased in each of the last nine quarters, such growth
should not be considered indicative of future revenue growth or operating results. If revenue levels fall
below expectations, net income is likely to be disproportionately adversely affected because a
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proportionately smaller amount of the Company's opersting expenses varies with its revenues. This
effect is likely to increase as a greater percentage of the Company's cost of services are associated with
owudandluud&dhﬁummmbenommlhum&mpmrwﬂlhnhhmuhim or
maintain profitability on a quarterly or annual basis in the future. See “Risk Factors—Risks Associated
with Limited Operating History in the International Telecommunications Market” and “—Operating

Results Subject to Significant Fluctuations.”

Results of Operations
In 1994 the Company was primarily engaged in activities outside the international telecommunica-

tions industry. During the six months ended June 1995, the Company primarily scted as an agent for,
and provided consulting services to, companies in the telecommunications industry. The Company

discontinued this business in September 1985 and, as a result, the Company believes that a comparison
cflmculcmdiumudmhofopmuoubnmthcymmdd 1994 and 1995 (s not

meaningful.

Quarters Ended March 31, 1007 and 1008

Revenues. llﬁwnullincmndﬁ.“toﬂl.nmlﬂlonlnlheﬂm quarter of 1997 from $35.7 million
intheﬂmqunﬂdlm.wtthmhmdu-mcmdn‘luﬁml?!..'amllllon‘.ntbeimmunero{
lm*umpr-dwm-lﬂhnminumﬂmlnmw:bhqumﬂdtherwprlm.'rhe
increase in revenue resulted from an increase in new customers as well as increased usage by existing
customers. ;

Gross Margin. ch:pruﬁtlncrmdmﬂ.auﬂlhmhtheﬁmmoﬂm&ml&lnmjmln
thequumuuﬂmcmnmuﬁnlmwdmlﬁjlhnnm.nloﬂln;thnnmofhwn
rates on routes with significant traffic.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 150.0%
tnﬂjmllhoudwiuthelmm“nflmmu.lnﬂlhn in the comparable quarter one year
nuﬂer.lndhuﬂdunmdumutn&ﬁ&m&lihlhaplﬁpuiod.ScIlin;_pncnl
Mdﬂnﬂﬁnwmmwum&nplnymmnudwlmmm
emplomblumdhcmtdplymﬂ. employee benefits, commission and related expenses. Marketing
aeﬂvlﬁuincludiun‘duho-ﬂmdmuldwlnunudhluppurtofthepmrlummumd
mmmtﬂhunmddw”mmwulpmnmedmm
u-mnﬂlofmiminbtddeblmuu-pemnunnfmnm

Depreciation. Deprecistion increased to $722,000 in the frst quarter of 1997 from $108.000 for the
first qumwﬂlmncp-ﬁlﬂoﬂlmundunrmlt'dthe&mpmy'l continued expansion of its
transmission network, leasehold improvements associsted with the Los Angeles and New York
switching facilities and switch site buildout.

Other Income (Expense). Other expense, net, increased to $300,000 in the first quarter of 1097
froim 576,000 in the rst quarter of 1096, This increase is primarily due to $360,000 in interest expense
incurred under various bank and stockholder lines of redit. This increase was offset by $21.000 in
interest income and $48,000 gain on the sale of short term investments and cash equivalents from funds
raised in private placements of equity securities during 1996.

Provision for Income Taxes. The Company's provision for income taxes decreased to $286,000 in
the first quarter of 1007 from $544.000 in the first quarter of 1006 reflecting the write-off of a customer
accounts receivable. The Company fully reserved the net deferred tax asset of $2.8 million «i March 31,
1997, as the Company has not yet had & full year of profitable operations.

Years Ended December 31, 1096 and 1995

Revenues. Revenues increased to $208.1 million in 1996 from $16.1 million in 1995, with minutes
of use increasing to 479.7 million in 1996, as compared to 34.1 million minutes of use in the prior year.
The increase in revenue resulted from the Company’s commencement of operations as an interna-
tiondhn;dlmmmm.ummm“ub«ofmﬁmw‘dhlhmvmud
mhcmhmhﬂuofmﬂcﬁnmndeﬂsﬂqmmmminu&hdn




attributable to an increase in the number of routes with favorable rates that the Company was able to
offer to customers. The Company built its revenue and a customer base quickly by offering reliable,
low cost wholesale switched long distance services utilizing capacity purchased from other long
distance providers and by leveraging the industry relationships of its senior management. In addition.
as a reseller the Company did not have to acquire rights to undersea cable or enter into operating or
other termination agreements. Any loss of, or decrease in usage by, the Company’s major customers
could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business operating results and financial
condition. The Company's two largest customers in 1996 accounted for 36% of revenue from late
charges. See "Risk Factors—Operating Results Subject to Significant Fluctuations™ and “—Depen-
dence on Other Long Distance Providers; Customer Concentration and Increased Bad Debt

Gross Margin. Gross profit increased to $19.7 million in 1996 from §1.8 million for 1995. Gross
margin decreased to 9.4% in 1996 from 11.0% in 1995, reflecting the change from the Company’s prior
consulting business to operating as an international long distance carrier. Gross margin was positively
impacted during 1996 by the negotiation of lower rates on routes with significant traffic, and negatively
impacted by Increases in traffic on routes with lower margins.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to
$24.1 million in 1996 from $2.1 million in 1995, and decreased as a percentage of revenue to 11.6% from
12.8% in the prior period. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased between periods as
the Company increased its employee base and incurred payroll. employee benefits, commission and
related expenses. The Company also established a reserve for doubtful accounts to reflect its
significantly higher revenue levels and invested in sales and marketing activities including tradeshows
and travel. In particular, in the fourth quarter of 1996, Hi-Rim, one of the Company’s major customers,
informed the Company that it was experiencing nancial difficulties and would be unable to pay in full,
on a timely basis, approximately $6.0 million in outstanding accounts receivable. The Company
accepted a secured note in the amount of $3.4 million in lieu of a portion of past due payments and was
able to offset a portion of the amounts due by sending traffic to Hi-Rim. The Company believes that it
is unlikely to receive any additional payment from Hi-Rim under the note or otherwise. As a result, the
full amount of the approximately $5.3 million owed to the Company by Hi-Rim as of December 31,
1996 which was not subsequently collected or for which no offsetting value was received, was written
off in the fourth quarter of 1096. In the first quarter of 1997, CCL the Company’s largest customer in
1996, also informed the Company that it was unable to pay in full, on & timely basis, its accounts
receivable balance. To ascount for the potential inability to collect on the sccounts receivable and
outstanding deposits which the Company had made to CCL, the Company increased its reserve against
accounts receivable and reserve against deposits by $3.5 million and $2.0 million, respectively. In
addition. the Company wrote-off $820,000 of intangible assets relating to this customer. These reserves
and write-off reflect the full amount of future benefits to have been received by the Company from
assets related to CCI recorded on the Company's Balance Sheet at December 31, 1996. As a result,
selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $11.6 millicn. See “Risk Fac-
tors—Dependence on Other Long Distance Providers; Customer Concentration and Increased Bad
Debt Exposure.”

Depreciation. Depreciation increased to $1.1 million for 1996 from $128,000 for 1905, but
decreased as a percentage of revenues to 0.5% from 0.8% In the prior period. Depreciation increased in
absolute dollars as a result of the Company's acquisition of operating equipment and leasehold
improvements associated with its Los Angeles and New York switching facilities and switch site
buildouts. The Company expects depreciation expense to increase as the Company expands its
ownership of switching and transmission facilities through purchase or use of capital leases.

Other Income (Expense). Other expense, net, increased to $606,000 in 1996 from $144.000 in 1985.
This increase is primarily due to a $100,000 legal settlement in the second quarter of 1996 as well as
$589,000 in interest expense incurred under various bank and stockholder lines of credit. This increase
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Provision for Income Tates. The Company had no provision for federal income taxes in 1995.
since the Company incurred a loss for the year. In addition, the Company was an S corporation during
1995 and thus was only subject to 1.5% tax on taxable income for state purposes with a minimum of
$800 per year, The pro forma provision for income taxes, assuming the Company was a C corporation
fwﬂwhbmﬂ.&umdlﬁrﬁnummmmduﬂn;lm. During 1996 the
mfwmmwedmmunmnhofuma&mmbﬂwmthepwﬂm

for income taxes and income taxes at statutory rates primarily relating to recognition of reserves for
bad debt expense. The Company fully reserved the net deferred tax asset of $2.9 million and $2,000

actual (830,000 pro forma) at December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively, as the Company has not yet
had s full year of profitable operations.




Quarterly Results of Operations

The Company initiated its international telecommunications business in the third quarter of 1995 The
following tables set forth certain unaudited statement of operations data for each of the seven quarters in the
period ended March 31, 1997, as well as the percentage of the Company's revenues represented by each item. The
unaudited Bnancial statements have been prepared on the same basis as the audited Bnancial statements
contained herein and include all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) that the
Company considers necessary for a fair presentation of such information when read in conjunction with the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus.

Ended

ST.H. Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, 3, Dec.3l, Mar 3,
L 1988 1998 1096 L] 1904 1997

{in thoussnds, except per share and per minute data)

REVERUEE . oasunrsssssnenninsasssiisssssssasnns § 1622 $13903 535,667 S42851 861160 868308 & T1.008
Comtof erviens ......ocvvvesinrersnancnsssnnns 1,420 12,926 2286 JATS4 56527 60881 631,738
Grods el s s voecavisiamnarisnssEaranannne 202 1,087 3,381 4008 4642 7535 7270
Operaling expenses:
Selling, general and sdministrativ, expenses. ... 538 1,068 1803 2573 )665 16046 4.530
Depreciation and amortization . ............... 11 100 108 156 ) 466 722
Total operating expenses ... .............. 557 1,168 1911 2720 4008 16512 5252
Income (loss) from operations............... (358) (1o1) 1470 1,989 6 (85T 2,018
Other income (expense):
[nlmm -------- sEssEsEsamEE R A TR LEL - — — “ d 13 il
Interest expense...........0 T T - (60) (78) (109) (173 (129) (389)
Mw FRARARA AR S AR BB B SRR R TR — ‘nl - {lm] S - “
taxes “-“ 5 ' ’" .......... (3ss) (241) 1,362 1.188 503 (9.183) 1.718
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ......... ek — 1 544 485 217 (T12) 286
Net income (1088) ...--conneeneronccnsenns S0 s (o) 8 86 0700 LN s B L2
As 3 Percentage of Reveaue
P R S SRR SRR < R 1000% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 1000% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of Serviees .. sisssisiiisassniinssasansses 87.5 0924 90.5 20.4 924 59.0 89.8
Croes sl . L i ics aeanibnsororanatnine 125 76 05 0.6 78 11.0 102
Operating expenses:
Selling. general and administrative expenses. . .. 130 16 51 6.0 6.0 238 .. 6.4
Depreciation and amortization ......... i has 13 0.7 0.3 0.4 0.6 0.6 1.0
Total operating expenses ................ p 33 83 54 64 66 4.1 74
Income (loss) from operations . ...........c00040 (21.9) {0.7) 41 32 1.0 (131 8
Other incrme (expense):
Interest INCOME .ocovissinvssnncanrnassssnnsss - -_ —_ ol 0l — —
INtErest EXPERIL . ...\ ovveresrrvsnnnrsnsnnsnis - (0.4) (0.2) (0.3) {0.3) (0.3) (0.5)
Other eXpense ......ovieiverrsssrivsnsnrsnss —_ {0.6) —_— (0.2) - - 0.1
Inco before provision income
fomn (i) beoraprovision forinsame . -~ we) UM 89 B8 oF  (134) 24
Provision for InCOmMEe BAXES .......c.covivsnnssss — — 15 1.1 0.4 (1.0} 0.4
Net income (Joss) ....ovovvvnviiarinnnninas SII.!]I p.?ii 24% 1.6% 0.5% llulli 20%
Consolidated Operating Data:
Billed minutes of use .........cioo0ivavinnenas 3783 34323 BSJ75 104,008 137961 152245 1T 4SS
Revenue per billed minute of use(l) ............ $0.3000 $0.4113 804140 B0.4071 90.4400 $04413  S0.4064
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Recenues. Revenues increased each quarter since the Company first recognized revenue us 4
long distance carrier in the quarter ended September 30. 1995. These increases reflected the increase
in minutes of usage over the respective quarters as the Company increased its customer base and as
usage increased among existing customers. The Company s revenue growth in the quarter ending
June 30, 1996 was slower relative to the quarter ended March 31, 1996 because of limited port capacity
at both the Los Angeles and the New York switch sites. The Company increased its port capacity by
installing new switches at both the Los Angeles and the New York switch sites in June and July of 1096,
As a result, the quarter ending September 30, 1006 reflects revenue growth attribuiable to the
additional port capacity of the new switches in Los Angeles and New York. The Company’s revenue
growth slowed in the fourth quarter of 1096 relative to the prior quarter primarily due to the Company
significantly reducing the traffic it received from a major customer experiencing inancial difficulties. a
relatively smaller decrease in trafic from another major customer due to pricing changes and
transmission quality problems on several high volume routes, primarily as a result of call set-up delay
and an ability to transmit facsimiles, that caused customers to choose alternative routes. The
Company's revenue growth in the first quarter of 1997 reflects increased usage by the Company’s
existing customer base.

Gross Margin. Gross margin fuctuated significantly from the quarter ended September 30, 1995
through the quarter ended Decembe: 31, 1996. Gross margin decreased to 7.6% in the quarter ended
December 31. 1995 from 12.5% in the quarter ended September 30, 1995. reflecting the Company’s
continued transition from a higher margin consulting business as well as the Company's strategy of
attracting customers and building trafic volume by offering favorable rates compared to other long
distance providers. Gross margin for the quarters ended March 31, 1996 and June 30, 1996 improved to
9.5% and 9.6%, respectively as the Company gained traffic volume and customers for selected higher
margin routes. As traffic volumes increased. the Company negotiated lower rates on these routes.
Increased volume also distributed the Axed costs of the Los Angeles and New York switch sites over a
larger number of minutes. Gross margin for the quarter ended September 30, 1996 declined because of
price increases on three routes which had significant trafic. The Company elected to maintain
customer trafic on these routes at the same prices while management sought alternative routing
arrangements. New rates for these routes were negotiated and effective in the late third quarter of
1996, The Company's gross margins improved to 11.0% in the fourth quarter of 1996 due in part to
lower costs on several major routes. The gross margin is also affected by the change in accrued line
costs. The accrued line costs at December 31, 1096 increased to §19.5 million from $15.8 million at
September 31, 1996. This increase is net of adjustments for the favorable settlement of disputes and the
favorable reconciliation of vendor bills. However, the improvement in the Company’s gross margin was
offset by lower traffic minutes on higher margin routes due to quality problems, primarily unacceptably
low call completion rates, with the most cost-effective routing option and by higher volume traffic to
several lower margin countries. The Company's gross margin decreased to 10.3% in the first quarter of
1097 s a result of increased costs on selected routes and high usage by a customer on a short-term, low

priced routing arrangement.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling. general and administrative expenses have
increased in each quarter through December 31, 1896, since the Company commenced operation as an
international long distance provider in July 1995. These increases in expenses are the result of
increased payroll and related expenses as the Company has built its sales. marketing and administrative
staffs, expansion of the Company's tradeshow and travel activities, increases in commissions and
consulting fees related to higher revenue levels and the establishmen* ~f reserves for doubtful
accounts. Selling. general and administrative expenses have fluctuated as a percentage of revenues.
Selling. general and administrative expenses were higher in the quarter ended December 31, 1995 than
in the prior period, due to the establishment of a reserve for doubtful accounts. These expenses for the
quarter ended December 31, 1996 increased to 23.5% of revenues largely as a result of the Company’s
increase of its reserve agalnst accounts receivable and reserve against deposit by 83.5 million and
$2.0 million, respectively, the uncertainty of payment from CCL who currently is experiencing
financial dificulties. the write-off of $820,000 of intangible assets also relating to CCI and the




$5.3 million write-off of the Hi-Rim accounts receivables. These reserves and write-off reflect the full
amount of future benefits to be received by the Company from assets related to CCl recorded on the
Company's Balance Sheet at December 31. 1996. See “Risk Factors — Operating Results Subject to
Significant Fluctuations” and * — Dependence on Other Long Distance Providers: Customer Concen-
tration and Increased Bad Debt Exposure.”

Depreciation. Depreciation increased in the quarter ended December 31. 1995 as a result of the
Company’s acquisition of operating equipment and leasehold improvements for its Los Angeles
switching facility. Depreciation also increased in the quarters ended September 30, 1996 and
December 31, 1996 as a result of the addition of a third switch in Los Angeles and the increase in
operating equipment and leasehold improvements related to the New York switching facility.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

To date, the Company has funded its business primarily through funds advanced from an officer of
the Company, bank debt, the private sale of equity and. since the first quarter of 1996, cash generated
from operations. The Company used net cash from operating activities of approximately 87.3 million in
1996, primarily comprised of a net loss plus an increase in accounts receivable. deposits and prepaid
expenses and other assets and a decrease in accounts payable. offset in part by an increase in accrued
line costs and the provision for doubtful accounts. The Company’s investing activities used cash of
approximately $10.0 million during 1996 primarily resulting fro:n capital expenditures. The Company’s
financing activities provided cash of approximately $18.8 million during 1996 primarily from borrow-
ings under various lines of credit, the sale of Preferred Stock and the sale of Common Stock, offset by

repayments under various lines of credit.

In the first quarter of 1997, net cash provided by operating activities was $2.3 million. consisting
primarily of net income plus increases in accounts payable and the provision for doubtful accounts,
offset in part by an increase in uccounts receivable and a decrease in accrued line costs. Net cash used
in investing activities in the Brst quarter of 1997 was $526.000, consisting primarily of capital
expenditures. offset in part by purchase of investments. Net cash used in financing activities in the first
quarter of 1997 was 82.7 million, consisting primarily of repayments under various lines of credit, offset
in part by borrowings under such lines of credit.

In the fourth quarter of 1996, the Company wrote off 85.3 million of the accounts receivable from
Hi-Rim. The Company also increased its bad debt expense in the fourth quarter of 1996 by $6.3 million
to provide for the potential inability to collect on accounts receivable, deposits and other assets from
CCL In addition, in the first quarter of 1997 the Company wrote off $1.6 million as a result of the failure
of one of its customers to pay its outstanding accounts receivable balances. See “Risk Fac-
tors—Operating Hesults Subject to Significant Fluctuations” and “—Dependence on Other Long
Distance Providers: Customer Concentration and Increased Bad Debt Exposure.”

As of December 31, 1995 and 1996, and March 31, 1997 the Company had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately $164,000, $1.7 million and 8766,000. respectively, and a working capital
deficit of approximately 81.4 million. $7.6 million and $8.4 million, respectively. As of March 31, 1997
the Company had (i) approximately $5.3 million outstanding under a revolving line of credit that bears
interest at a rate of the bank'’s prime rate plus 1.0%, certain amounts of which are convertible at the
time of funding into short-term obligations that bear interest either at LIBOR plus 3.5% or the bank’s
cost of funds rate plus 3.5%, and which expires on July 1. 1997, (ii) $667,000 outstanding under an
equipment lease line that bears interest at a rate of prime plus 1.5% and which expires on October 1.
1999, (iii) approximately 36.4 million outstanding under nine equipment leases relating to the
Company's switching facilities. including approximately $3.0 million outstanding under a lease for the
acquisition of the Company's switching equipment in New York, and (iil) approximately $163.000
outstanding under bank loans at a variable interest rate equal to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate.
approximately 841,500 of which is due in June 1997 and 8151.442 of which is due in July 1997. The
Company intends to use approximately $6.4 million of the proceeds from this offering for the
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repayment of indebtedness under certain of these credit facilities. The Company anticipates making
capital expenditures of approximately $23.0 million over the next 12 months to expand the Company's
global network. See “Use of Proceeds.”

The Company currently is in discussions to obtain a new line of credit to provide it with additional
funding to meet its capital requirements and will use capital lease Bnancings as appropriate. There can
be no assurance that the Company will be able to obtain a new line of credit or additional capital lease
ﬂnmﬂn;mmmﬁnﬂvmabhmﬂulﬂ.mawpuyhhwuthn the net proceeds
from the offering. borrowing capacity under a new line of credit and available vendor Bnancing, will be
sufficient to fund the Company’s net cash used in operating activities, capital expenditures and other
cash needs for the next twelve months. Additional funding through the incurrence of debt or sale of
additional equity may be required to meet the Company's growth plans beyond the first half of 1998,
although there can be no assurance that such additional funds can be obtained on acceptable terms. if
at all. If necessary funds are not available, the Company’s business and results of operations and the
future expansion of the business could be materially adversely affected. See “Risk Factors — Capital
Expenditures; Potential Need for Additional Flaancing.”




BUSINESS

Overview

STAR Telecommunications is an intemnational long distance provider offering highly reliable, low
cost switched voice services on a wholesale basis, primarily to U.S.-based long distance carriers. STAR
provides international long distance service to over 275 foreign countries through a fexible network of
resale arrangements with long distance providers, various foreign termination relationships, interna-
tional gateway switches, and leased and owned transmission facilities. The Company has grown its
revenues rapidly by capitalizing on the deregulation of international telecommunications markets, by
combining sophisticated information systems with fexible routing techniques and by leveraging
management's industry expertise. STAR commenced operstions as an international long distance
provider in August 1995 and increased its revenues from $16.1 million in 1995 to $208.1 million in 1996.

Industry Background

The international long distance telecommunications services industry consists of all transmissions
of voice and data that originate in one country and terminate in another, This industry is undergoing a
period of fundamental change which has resulted in substantial growth in international telecommuni-
cations trafic. According to industry sources, worldwide gross revenues for providers of international
voice telephone service were approximately $57.0 billion in 1995 and the volume of international traffic
on the public telephone network is expected to grow at & compound annual growth rate of 12% or
more from 1005 through the year 2000,

From the standpoint of U.S.-based long distance providers, the industry can be divided into two
major segments: the U.S. international market, consisting of all international calis billed in the US. and
the overseas market, consisting of all international calls billed in countries other than the US. The US.
internations’ market has experienced substantial growth in recent years with gross revenues from
international long distance telephone services rising from approximately $8.0 billion in 1980 to
approximately $14.9 billion in 1995, according to FCC data.

The Company believes that a number of trends in the international telecommunications market
will continue to drive growth in intemational traffic, including:

* continuing deregulation and privatization of telecommunications markets;

* pressure to reduce international outbound long distance rates paid by end users driven by
increased competition among 1'.S. long distance carriers and among emerging foreign long
distance carriers in deregulated countries;

¢ the dramatic increase in the availability of telephones and the number of access lines in service
around the world;

* the increasing globalization of commerce, trade and travel;

* the proliferation of communications devices such as faxes, cellular telephones, pagers and data
communications devices;

* increasing demand for data transmission services, including the Internet; and

* the increased utilization of high quality digital undersea cable and resulting expansion of
bandwidth availability.

The Development of the U.S. and Overseas Markets

The 1084 deregulation of the U.S. telecommunications industry enabled the emergence of new
long distance companies in the U.S. Today, there are over 500 US. long distance companies, most of
which are small or medium sized companies. In order to be successful, these small and medium size
companies have to offer their customers a full range of services, including international long distance.
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However, most of these carriers do no! have the critical mass to receive volume discounts on
international trafic from the larger facilities-based carriers such as AT&T, MCI and Sprint. In addition,
these small and medium sized companies have only a limited ability to invest in international facilities.
New international carriers such as STAR have emerged to take advantage of this demand for less
expensive international bandwidth. These emerging international carriers act as aggregators of
international trafic for smaller carriers, taking advantage of larger volumes to obtain volume discounts
on international routes (resale trafic), or investing in facilities when volume on particular routes
justify such investments. Over time, as these emerging international carriers have become established.
they have also begun to carry overflow traffic from the larger long distance providers that own overseas
transmission facilities.

In an increasingly competitive market for international and domestic telecommunications, the
resale market for telecommunications services has expanded rapidly. According to FCC data, total
billed revenue of U.S. resellers of internstional switched services increased approximately 55% from
1994 to 1995, from approximately $1.1 billion to $1,7 billion. The expansion of the resale market has
been facilitated by the significant increase in international fiber optic cable capacity, creating new
routing options for providers of resale services as facilities-based carriers seek to fill that new capacity.

Deregulation and privatization have also allowed new long distance providers to emerge in foreign
markets. By eroding the traditional monopolies held by single national providers, many of which are
wholly or partially government owned PTTs, deregulation is providing U.S.-based providers the
opportunity to negotiste more favorable agreements with both the traditional PTTs and emerging
foreign providers. In addition, deregulation in certaln foreign countries is enabling U.S.-based
providers to establish local switching and transmission facilities in order to terminate their own traffic
and begin to carry international long distance traffic originated in that country.

International Switched Long Distance Services

International switched long distance services are provided through switching and transmission
facilities th.t automatically route calls to circuits based upon a predetermined set of routing criteria.
The call typically originates on a local exchange carrier’s network and is transported to the caller's
domestic long distance carrier. The domestic long distance provider then carries the call to an
international gateway switch. An international long distance provider picks up the call at its gateway
and sends it directly or through one or more other long distance providers to a corresponding gateway
switch operated in the country of destination. Once the traffic reaches the country of destination, it is
then routed to the party being called though that country’s domestic telephone network. -
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switches and transmission facilities. The largest U.S, carriers, such as AT&T, MCI and Sprint, primarily
utilize owned transmission facilities and generally use other long distance providers to carry their
overflow trafic. Since only very large carriers have transmission facilities that cover the over 200
countries to which major long distance providers generally offer service, a significantly larger group of
long distance providers own and operate thoir own switches but either rely solely on resale agreements
with other long distance carriers to terminate their trafic or use & combination of resale agreements
and owned facilities in order to terminate their traffic as shown below:

-
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Operating Agreements. Under traditional operating agreements, international long distance traffic

is exch.nged under bilateral agreements between international long distance providers in two
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inmmmmwmnaw “accounting rate.” Under a

traditional operating agreement, the intermational long distance provider that originates more traffic

compensates the long distance provider in the other country by paying an additional “settlement
payment.”

Indefeasible Right of Use” ("ﬂU’]hlmmHubhwbrlndqu;ww
from another long distance provider that either has direct ownership or IRU rights in the cable. In
situations & long distance provider has suficiently high trafic volume, routing calls across
direct!y uwiied ur IRU cable is generally more cost-effective on a per call basis than the use of short-
term variable capacity arrangements with other long distance providers or leased cable. However,
direct ownership and scquisition of IRU rights require a company to make an initial investment of its
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calls may be routed through a facilities-based carrier with excess capacity, or through multiple long
distance resellers between the originating long distance provider and the facilities-based carrier that
ultimately terminates the trafic. Resale arrangements set per minute prices for different routes, which
may be guaranteed for a set time period or subject to fluctuation following notice. The resale market
for international capacity is constantly changing. as new long distance resellers emerge and existing
providers respond to fuctuating costs and competitive pressures. In order to be able to effectively
wm%uﬂﬂqrﬂmﬁmmmwﬂmhmh
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routing decisions.

deregulated, long distance providers have developed alternative termination arrangements in an effort
to decrease their costs of terminating International trafic. Some of the more significant of these
arrangements include refiling, international simple resale (“ISR”) and ownership of switching facilities
in foreign countries. Refiling of trafic, which takes advantage of disparities in settlement rates between
different countries, allows trafic to a destination country to be treated as if it originated in another
country that enjoys lower settlement rates with the destination country, thereby resultiog in a lower
overall termination cost. The difference between transit and refiling is that, with respect to transit, the
facilities-based long distance provider in the destination country has a direct relationship with the
originating long distance provider and is aware of the arrangement, while with refiling, it is likely that
the long distance provider in the destination couniry is not aware that the received traffic originated in
another country and with another resale carrier. To date, the FCC has made no pronouncement as to
whether refiling complies with either US. or International Telecommunications Union (“ITU™)
regulations. With ISR, a long distance provider completely bypasses the settlement system by
connecting an international leased private line to the public switched telephone network ("PSTN™) on
one or bath ends. While ISR currently is only sanctioned by applicable regulatory authorities on a
limited number of routes, including U.S.-UK., US.-Sweden, US.-New Zealand, U.K.-Worldwide and
Canads-UK., it is increasing in use and is expected to expand significantly as deregulation of the
international telecommunications market continues. In addition, deregulation has made it possible for
US.-based long distsnce providers to establish their own switching facilities in certain foreign
countries, enabling them to directly terminate traffic. See “—Government Regulation.”

The highly competitive and rapidly changing international telecommunications market has
created a significant opportunity for carriers that can offer high quality, low cost international long
distance service. Deregulation, privatization, the expansion of the resale market and other treads
influencing the international telecommunicstions market are driving decreased termination costs, a
proliferastion of routing options, and increased competition. Successful companies among both the
emerging and established international long distance companies will need to aggregate enough traffic
to lower raste of hoth facilities-based or resale opportunities, maintain systems which enable analysis
of multiple routing options, to invest in facilities and switches and remain fexible envugh to locate and
route truffic through the most advantageous routes.

The STAR Approach

STAR offers high quality, reliable switched international long distance services primarily to US.-
based telecommunications companies that are seeking to utilize low cost routing alternatives to
augment their own service and to address increased competition in their markets. The Company is also
expanding to serve foreign-based international long distance providers. The Company provides
international long distance service to over 275 foreign countries through s flexible network consisting
of resale arrangements with other long distance providers, various foreign termination relationships,
internstional gateway switches and leased and owned transmission facilities. STAR continuously
monitors the market for long distance services, detecting trends in trafic flow, international network
availability and pricing. The Company believes that this markst knowledge enables it to react quickly
to address market opportunities and to take advantage of changing market conditions. STAR utilizes its
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flexible network structure and state-of.the-art digital switching technology to continuously reroute
trafic to the most cost-effective transmission alternative for s particular country. STAR s further
developing its network by establishing relationships with foreign PTTs and other foreign providers of
long distance services and building network facilities, where existing and anticipated traffic volumes
justify such investment.

Strategy

The Company’s objective is to be a leading provider of highly reliable, low cost switched
international long distance services on a wholesale basis to U.S. and foreign-based telecommunications
companies, as well as on a retail basis to commercial customers. Key elements of the Company's

strategy include the following:

Capitalize on Projected International Long Distence Growth. The Company believes that the
international long distance market provides attractive opportunities due to its higher revenue and
profit per minute, and greater projected growth rate as compared to the domestic long distance
market. The Company targets International markets with high volumes of traffic, relatively high rates
wmwmhmuﬂmmmmumow
trend toward deregulation and privatization will create new opportunities for the Company in
international markets. Although the Company has focused to date primarily on providing services for
U.S.-based long distance providers, the Company also intends in the future to expand the international
long distance services it offers to foreign-based long distance providers to the extent allowed by US.
and international governmental regulations.

Leverage Traffic Volume to Reduce Costs. The Company has focused and is continuing to focus on
building its volumes of international long distance traffic. Higher trafic volumes strengthen the
Company's negotiating position with vendors, customers and potential foreign partners, which allows
the Company to lower its costs of service. In addition, higher trafic volumes on particular routes allow
the Company to lower its cost of services on these routes by transitioning from acquiring capacity on a
variable cost per minute basis to fixed cost arrangements such as longer-term capacity agreements with
major carriers, long-term leases and ownership of facilities.

Expand Switching and Tranemission Facilities. The Company is continuing to pursue a flexible
approach to expanding and enhancing its network facilities by investing in both switching and
transmission facilities where traffic volumes justify such investments. The Company. intends to expand
its US. switching facilities through the addition of switching facilities in Miami, Dallas and Atlanfa.
The Company is also in the proces: of developing switching capabilities in foreign countries with the
addition of an international gateway switch in London, England, and is planning to install a network of
switches in selected European cities.

Leverage Information Systems and Switching Capabilities. The Company leverages its sophisti-
cated information systems to analyze its routing alternatives, and select the most cost-eflective routing

from among the Company's network of resale arrangements with other long distance providers,
operating agreements and other alternative termination relationships. The Company has invested
significant resources in the development of software to track specific usage information by customer
and cost and profit information on specific routes on a daily basis. The Company's information systems
are critical components in managing its customer and vendor relstionships, routing traffic to the most
cost-effective alternative, and targeting marketing efforts.

Maintain High Quality. The Company believes that reliability, call completion rates, voice
quality, rapid set up time and a high level of customer and technical support are key factors evaluated
by U.S. and foreign-based telecommunications companies in selecting a carrier for their international
traffic. The Company has installed state-of-the-art Northern Telecom and Stromberg-Carlson switching
equipment, is fully compliant with international C-7 and domestic 85-7 signaling standards, and strives
to provide & consistently high level of customer and technical support. The Company has technical




support personnel at its facilities 24 hours per day, seven days per week to assist its customers and to
continually monitor network operation.

Expand Into Commercial Market. The Company intends to market its international long distance
services directly to commercial customers in foreign countries, with an initial focus on the UK. and
selected European cities. The Company intends to initially provide services to closed user groups
comprised of corporate customers. As regulatory restrictions ease in these foreign markets, the
Company intends to aggregate long distance trafic from a broader range of commercial customers that
will be routed over the Company’s network back to the US. or to an aiternate destination. In the
longer term, the Company also plans to expand into commercial markets in the US. and in other

deregulating countries.

Network

The Company provides international long distance services to over 275 foreign countries
a flexible, switched-based network consisting of resale arrangements with other long
providers, various foreign termination relationships, international gateway switches and leased
owned transmission facilities. The Company’s network employs state-of-the-art digital switching
transmission technologies and is supported by comprehensive monitoring and technical support
personnel who are at the Company's facilities 24 hours per day, seven days per week.
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Termination Arrangements

International long distance traffic is ultimately terminated at the destination point pursuant to
termination relationships between a provider of telecommunications services in the originating
country and & provider in the terminating country. The Company seeks to retain fexibility and
maximize its termination opportunities by utilizing a continuously changing mix of routing alternatives,
including resale arrangements, opersting agreements and other advantageous termination arrange-

capacity during the same period. The majority of this capacity is obtained on a varisble, per minute
basis. The Company's contracts with its vendors provide that rates may fluctuate, with rate change
notice periods varying from Bve days to one year, with certain of the Company’s longer term
arrangements requiring the Company to make minimum usage commitments in order to avoid
penalties, As a result of deregulation and competition in the international telecommunications market,
the pricing of termination services varies by carrier depending on such factors as call traffic and time of
day. Since the Company does not typically enter Into long term contracts with these providers, pricing
can change significantly over short periods of time. These changes subject the Company to unantici-
pated price increases and service cancellations. The Company's proprietary information systems
enable the Company to track the pricing variations in the international telecommunications market on
s daily basis, allowing the Company’s management to locate and reroute trafic to the most cost-
effective alternstives. If the Company is not able to continue to enter into cost-effective resale
arrangements with its primary vendors, or is unsble to locate suitable replacement vendors the
Company may not be able to obtain sufficient, high quality alternative capacity, in which case the
Company's business, operating results and Bnancial condition could be materially adversely affected.
See “Risk Factors—Dependence on Availability of Transmission Capacity.”

The Company currently has operating agreements with carriers in Norway, Denmark, Australia
and Colombia and is in the process of negotiating additional operating agreements for other countnes.



The Company has been and will continue to be selective in entering into cperating agreements. The
Company also has agreements with two providers of long distance services in the Asia/Pacific Rim
region for termination of U.S. oniginated traffic that the Company aggregates in the U.S. and routes
over a leased network to such countries. The Company is exploring similar relationships with carriers
in other countries. The FCC or foreign regulatory agencies may take the view that such arrangements
are not in compliance with current regulatory policies relating to private line resale. The operations of
alternative carriers like the Company’s partners, who compete with the PTT, may not be permitted by
foreign regulatory agencies. To the extent that the revenue generated under such arrangements
becomes a significant portion of overall revenue, the loss of such arrangements, whether as a result of
regulatory problems or otherwise, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
operating results and financial condition. In addition, the FCC could impose a range of sanctions on
the Company, including fines or forfeitures, to the extent it determined any of the Company’s
arrangements to be non-compliant with FCC rules. See “Risk Factors—Risks of International Telecom-
munications Business,” “— Potential Adverse Affects of Covernment Regulation” and “Business
— Government Regulation.”

Switches and Transmission Facilities

International long distance trafic to and from the US. is genenally transmitted through an
international gateway switching facility across undersea digital fiber optic cable or via satellite to a
termination point. International gateway switches are digital computerized routing facilities that
receive calls, route calls through transmission lines to their destination and record information about
the source, destination and duration of calls. The switches are linked to digital fiber cptic cables, which
are typically owned by consortia of international carriers. Tne Company’s global network facilities
include both international gateway switches and rights to use undersea digital fiber optic cable.

Tue Company has international gateway switches, together with sophisticated switching software,
installed in Los Angeles and New York City. Each gateway includes a Northern Telecom DMS 250/300
and two Stromberg-Carlson DCO switches. The software in the Company's switches provide continu-
ous and detailed feedback about incoming and outgoing call trafic to the Company's proprietary
reporting software and to its billing system. The reporting software provides detailed real-time vendor
and customer usage reports, which allow the Company to seek the most cost-effective routing of calls
and to target customers who might absorb increased levels of trafic. The Company has installed
multiple redundancies into its switching facilities to decrease the risk of a network failure. For
example, the Company employs both battery and generator power back-up and has installed hardware
that automatically shifts the system to suxiliary power during a power outage, rather than relying on
manual override. In addition, the Company has contracted with a third party to provide the Company
with access to a mobile emergency power supply.

The Company’s Los Angeles-based switch generally routes the majority of the Company's Asian
and Pacific Rim trafic and & portion of the Company’s South American traffic, while the New York
switch generally routes the majority of the Company's European and African trafic and the remainder
of the South American trafic. The Company plans to add switching facilities in Dallas, Texas, Miami,
Florida and Atlanta, Georgia to more effciently address the South and Central American markets. The
Company is also installing a gateway switch in London, England, which will serve as the focal point for
the routing of calls through s network of switches to be located in selected European cities. The
Company currently expects the London switch to be operational in mid-1997. There can be no
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the Company.

The Company currently owns or has IRUs in three trans-Atlantic (Canus-1, Cantat-) and
TAT-12/13) and two interEuropean (Odin and Rioja) digital fiber optic cables serving the UK.,
Norway and Denmark, two trans-Pacific cables (TPC-5 and APCN) serving Australia and the
Philippines, one interEuropean cable (UK Netherlands 14) and is in the process of negotiating to
acquire ownership rights or IRUs in other cables. The Company plans to increase its investment in
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direct and mUmenhtpofnhhianwmmcumnymmo operating agreements
and in other situations in which it determines that such an investment would enhance operating

efficiency or reduce transmission costs.

The cost for each unit of transmission capacity in jointly owned carrier undersea cables depends
onlhtmwdﬂhwwbﬂwwmwmu{moubl'ufull:r
allocated among the participants of the physical capacity of the cable. The per-unit cost of capacity
declines as the percentage of cable capacity is fully

Sales, Marketing and Customers

The Company markets its services on 2 wholesale basis to other telecommunications companies
through its experienced direct sales force and marketing/account management team who leverage the

long term industry relationships of the Company's senior management. The Company reaches its
Momnmwmudhmmdmmndwnhumunmnd

from years of experience in the telecommunications industry. As of March 31, 1097, the Company had
13 sales and marketing employees.

The Company's sales and marketing employees utilize the extensive, customer specific usage
reports and network utilization data generated by the Company’s sophisticated information systems to
negotiate agreements with customers and piospective customers more effectively and to rapidly
respond to changing market conditions. The Company believes that it has been able to compete more
effectively as a result of the personalized service and ongoing senior management-level attention that
is given to each customer.

In connection with the Company's proposed expansion into the commercial market, the Company
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management and wmhmfm—wm of Changing Business.”

time the Company was engaged in activities unrelated to its current business, the Company’s largest
customer, CareTel. accounted for 56% of the Company’s revenue. Any loss or decrease in usage by the
Comparny's inajur customers could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating
result mnmmhmrm—wmmwmmmmm
Customer Concentration and Increased Bad Debt Exposure.”

Information and Billing Systems

billing systems for rapid and accurate customer billing. The Company’s systems enable it, on a real-
time basis to determine the most cost-effective termination alternatives, monitor customer usage and
manage profit margins. The Company’s systems also ensble it to ensure accurate and timely billing and

reduce routing errors.




The Company’s proprietary reporting softare compiles call, price and cost data into a variety of
reports which the Company can use to re-progmam its routes on a real time basis. The Company’s
repoiting software can generate the following reports as needed:

« customer usage, detailing usage by country and by time period within country, in order to track
sales and rapidly respond to any loss of traffic from a particular customen:

* country usage, subtotaled by vendor or customer, which assists the Company with route and
network planning;

« vendor rates, through an audit report that allows management to determine at a glance which
vendors have the lowest rates for a particular country in a particular time period:

* vendor usage by minute, enalﬂin& the Company to verify and audit vendor bills;

« dollarized vendor usage to calculate the monetary value of minutes passed to the Company’s
vendors, which assists with calculating operating margin when used in connection with the
customer reports; and

« loss reports used to rapidly highlight routing alternatives that are operating at a loss as well as
identifying routes experiencing substantial overflow.

The Company has built multiple redundancies into its billing and call data collection systems. Two
call collector computers receive redundant call information simultaneously, one of which produces a
fle every 24 hours for billing purposes while the other immediately forwards the call data to corporate
headquarters for use in customer service and trafic analysis. The Company maintains two independent
and redundant billing systems in order to both verify billing internally and to ensure that bills are sent
out on a timely basis. All of the call dats, and resulting billing data, are continuously backed up on tape
drives and redundant storage devices.

Competition

The international telecommunications industry is intensely competitive and subject to rapid
change. The Company's competitors in the international wholesale switched long distance market
include large, facilities-based multinational corporations and PTTs, smaller facilities-based providers in
the US. and overseas that have emerged as a result of deregulation, switched-based resellers of
international long distance services and international joint ventures and alliances among such
companies. International wholesale switched long distance providers compete on the basis of prige,
customer service, transmission quality, breadth of service offerings and value-added services. The
Company believes that it competes favorably on the basis of price, transmission quality and customer
service. The number of the Company’s competitors is likely to increase as a result of the new
competitive opportunities created by the WTO Agreement. Further, under the terms of the WTO
Agreement, the United States and the other 68 countries participating in the Agreement have
committed to open their telecommunications markets to competition, and foreign ownership and
adopt measures to protect against anticompetitive behavior, effective starting on January 1, 1998. As a
result, the Company believes that competition will continue to increase, placing downward pressure
on prices. Such pressure could adversely affect the Company's gross margins if the Company is not able
to reduce its costs commensurate with such price reductions.

Competition from Domestic and International Companies and Allionces. The US.-based interna-
tional telecommunications services market is dominated by AT&T, MCI and Sprint. The Company also

formation of global allisnces among large long distance telecommunications providers. For example.
MCI and British Telecommunications recently snnounced a proposed merger that would create »




global telecommunications company called Concert, and additionslly have announced an alliance with
Telefonica de Espafia. The effect of the proposed merger and alliance could create signiBcantly
increased competition. Many of the Company's current competitors are also the Company's customers.
The Company's business would be materially adversely affected to the extent that a significant number
of such customers limit or cease doing business with the Company for competitive or other reasons.
Consolidation in the telecommunications industry could not only create even larger competitors with

financial and other resources. but could also adversely affect the Company by reducing the

greater
number of potential customers for the Company’s services.

Competition from New Technologies. The telecommunications industry is in a period of rapid
technological evolution, marked by the introduction of new product and service offerings and
lnmmﬂm%mupﬂtﬁwmmwlmww
the Company. Such technologies include satellite-based systems, such as the proposed Iridium and
ClobalStar systems, utilization of the Internet for {nternational voice and data communications and
digital wireless communication systems such as PCS. The Company is unable to predict which of many
possible future product and service offerings will be important to maintain its competitive position or
what expenditures will be required to develop and provide such products and services.

Increased Competition as @ Result of a Changing Regulatory Environment. The FCC recently
pmtdhfﬂlmmhdﬂldulmdn-hutwﬁnmmednmuﬂchmnud
mtmmmmwhichhumwodﬂﬂwomhnwmummmuduwm
other regulatory constraints, including reduced tariff notice requirements. These reduced regulatory
requirements could make it easier for AT&T to compete with the Company. In addition, the
Telecommunications Act, which substantially revises the Communications Act, permits and is designed
to promote additional competition in the intrastate, interstate and international telecommunications
markets by both U.S.-based and foreign companies, including the RBOCs. RBOCs, as well as other
mmﬂpunthlmpeﬂmdthe&nmr.hwWymm&uth
Gompmy.'l‘huﬂnmynhomﬂthﬂmp-ﬁum&unmmwﬂlhmminlh-ﬁnmdmu
with increasing deregulation of telecommunications markets worldwide. As a result of these and other
factors, there can be no assurance that the Company will continue to compete favorably in the future.
See “Risk Factors—Potential Adverse Affects of Government Regulation™ and “—Significant

Competition.”

Government Regulation

The Company provides international facilities-based and resale services subject to the regulatory
jurisdiction of the FCC. The Company also may be subject to regulation in foreign countries in
connection with certain business activities. For example, the Company’s use of transit agreements or
arrangements, if any, may be affected by regulations in either the transited or terminating foreign
jurisdiction. There can be no assurance that the FCC or foreign countries will not adopt regulatory
requirements that could adversely affect the Company. See “Risk Factors—Potential Adverse Affects
of Government Regulation.”

Federcl Regulation

General Reguirements. The Company must comply with the requirements of common carriage
under the Communications Act, including the offering of service on a non-discriminatory basis at just
and reasonable rates, and obtaining FCC approval prior to any assignment of authorizations or any
transfer de jure or de facto control of the Company. The FCC has authority to enforce the
Communications Act and its rules as they may apply to carriers such as the Company either in
proceedings initiated upon its own motion or in response to challenges by third parties.

The FCC has established different levels of regulation for dominant and non-dominant carriers.
The Company is classified as a non-dominant carrier for internstional service. The Communications
Act and the FCC's rules require all international carriers, including the Company, to obtain authority
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under Section 214 of the Commui.ications Act prior to leasing or acquiring capacity, and/or initiating
international telecommunications services. Carriers must also file at the FCC and maintain tariffs
containing the rates, terms. and conditions applicable to their services, as well as comply with various
FCC reporting and contract fling requirements. The trend at the FCC has been to reduce regulation
and facilitate competition. To that end. the FCC recently declared AT&T to be a non-dominant
international carrier. Nevertheless, an otherwise non-dominant U.S.-based carrier may be subject to
dominant carrier regulation on a specific international route if it is affiliated with a foreign carrier
operating at the foreign point. The Company has no affiliations that would subject it to dominant
carrier treatment on any route.

International Services. FCC rules require the Company to obtain facilities-based Section 214
authorization to operate its channels of communication via satellites and undersea fiber optic cables,
and Section 214 resale authority to resell international services. The Company holds both facilities-
based and resale international authorizations, including a “global” Section 214 authorization that
provides broad authority to offer switched and private line international services. As required by FCC
rules, the Company has filed an international tariff with the FCC.

The FCC imposes few restrictions on the resale of international switched services. The FCC does.
however, limit the resale of international private lines for the provision of switched telecommunica-
tions services interconnected to the public switched network at one end or at both ends, genenlly
referred to as "private line resale.” Private line resale is permitted only on those routes where the FCC
has found that US. carriers have equivalent opportunities to offer similar services in the foreign
country. The FCC permits private line resale to Canada, the UK., Sweden and New Zealand and is
considering applications for equivalency determinations in Australia, Denmark, Chile, Finland and
Mexico. As a result of the recent signing of the WTO Agreement, the FCC may repeal or revise the
“equivalency” test and apply the more inclusive WTO standards.

The Company has entered into agreements with certain foreign carriers to provide switched
ser ‘ces over leased lines. The Company has agreed to pay a termination charge to compensate the
foreign carriers for terminating the services over their networks. It is possible that the FCC would
adopt the view that these arrangements do not comply with the private line resale policy and fling
requirements that pertain to certain carrier agreements. In that event, the FCC could. among other
measures, impose a cease and desist order and/or impose fines on the Company. There can be no
assurance that the FCC’s action in this regard. if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business.

The Company must also conduct its international business in compliance with the FCC’s
international settlements policy (“ISP”). The ISP establishes the permissible arrangements for U.S.-
based carriers and the foreign correspondents to settle the cost of terminating each other’s traffic over
their respective networks. The precise terms of settlement are established on a correspondent
agreement, also referred to as an operating agreement. Among other terms, the operating agreement
estohlishics e types of service covered by the agreement, the division of revenues between the carrier
that bills for the call and the carrier that terminates the call at the other end, the frequency of
settlements (ie., monthly or quarterly), the currency in which payments will be made, the formula for
calculating trafic flows between countries, technical standards, procedures for the settlement of
disputes, the effective date of the agreement and the term of the agreement.

The ISP is designed to eliminate foreign carriers’ incentives and opportunities to discriminate in
their operating agreements among different U.S. carriers through “whipsawing.” Whipsawing refers to
the practice of a foreign carrier favoring one U.S.-based carrier over another in exchange for an
accounting, settlement rate and/or other term that benefits the foreign carrier but may otherwise be
inconsistent with the U.S, public interest. Under the ISP, US. carriers can only enter into operating
agreements that contain the same accounting rate offered to all US. carriers. When a US. carrier
negotiates an accounting rate with a foreign correspondent that is lower than the sccounting rate
offered to another U.S. carrier for the same service, the US. carrler with the lower rate must file a
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waiver or a notiication letter with the FCC. If & US. carrier varies the terms and conditions of its
operating agreement in addition to lowering the accounting rate, then the US. carrier =ust request 4
waiver of the FCC's rule. Unless prior FCC approval is obtained, the amount of payment or
“settlement rate” generally must be one half of the accounting rate. Carriers must obtain waivers of
the FCC's rules if they wish to vary the settlement rate from one-half of the accounting rate. US.
carriers are also subject to the principle of proportionate return to assure that competing U.S. carriers
have roughly equitable opportunities to receive the return traffic from foreign correspondent that
reduces the marginal cost of providing international service. Consistent with its procompetition
policies, the FCC prohibits US. carriers from bargaining for any special concessions from foreign
partners.

The FCC is currently considering whether to limit or prohibit the practice whereby a carrier
routes, through its facilities in a third country, traffic originating from one country and destined for
another country, The FCC has permitted third country calling where all countries involved consent to

"reﬂhu.'tke-ﬂnhthduumnmdmmtmumtomtu&hmthe
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originating from a different country. The FCC to date has made no pronouncement as to whether refile
arrangements comport either with US, or ITU regulations. It is possible that the FCC will determine
that refiling, as defined, violates U.S, and/or international law. To the extent that the Company’s traffic
is routed through a third country to reach = destination country, such an FCC determination with
mmwmdﬁuudrdhumﬂhulumddvm-tlﬂmm&mmy'nhunnm
operating results and financial condition.

The FCC is considering these and other international service issues In the context of several
WMMMMHMNMMMWEHMW
international carriers. In one recent proceeding. the FCC reduced regulstory requirements of
nondominant international telecommunications service providers such as the Company. The FCC also
mnﬁrumﬂﬂndmhmmwtomumlmbmwhIulsl’uamuhod
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foreign markets. Specifically, the FCC has decided to allow U.S. carriers, subject to certain competitive
safeguards, to propose methods to pay for international call termination that deviate from traditional
bilateral accounting rates and the ISP. While this rule change may provide more flexibility to the
Company to respond more rapidly to changes in the global telecommunications market, it will also
provide similar fSexibility to the Company’s competitors. In addition, the FCC has also recently
pmwdnﬂm&mlnmumﬂmumnt"hmhmﬂ“mwhﬁmthem:m
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Partially in order to comply with WTO standards of “Most Favored Nation™ and “National Treatment,”
the FCC has also proposed that private line resale be permitted to countries with accounting rates
within the new benchmarks even if the FCC has not decided that such countries offer equivalent
opportunities to US. carriers. The FCC's proposal is intended to move settlement rates closer to the
costs that would be reflected in & competitive international telecommunications market. The FCC's
continuing resolution of issues in such proceedings either msy facilitate the Company’s international
business or adversely affect the Company's international business (by, for example, liberulizing
requirements that predominately affect larger carriers). The Company is unable to predict how the
FCC will resolve pending international policy issues or how such resolution will affect its international
business.

International telecommunications service providers are required to file copies of their contracts
with other carriers, including operating agreements, at the FOC within 30 days of execution. The
Company has filed both of its operating agreements with European carriers (including accounting rate
terms) with the FCC. The FCC's rules also require the Company to periodically 8le a variety of reports
rqﬂﬂhlntunﬂh‘dﬂﬂckwuudmmdmnﬂﬂmﬂuﬂﬁdlﬂhﬁ!ﬂtu
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the Company.

Foreign Ownership and Affiliations. The Communications Act limits the ownership of an entity
holding a radio license by non-US. citizens, foreign corporations and foreign governments. The
Company does not currently hold any radio licenses. Aithough these ownership restrictions currently
do not apply to non-radio facilities, such as fiber optic cable, there can be no assurance that such
restrictions will not be imposed on the operation of non-radio facilities used for the provision of
international services. The FCC also regulates the extent to which U.S. international services carriers
may become afliated with foreign carriers. US. carriers must report to the FCC a 10% ownership
affiliation with a foreign carrier and may be regulated as a dominant carrier on specific routes if it has a
25% or more affiliastion with 2 foreign carrier. Under current FCC rules, foreign-afilisted carriers may
also be subject to the FCC's “efiective competitive opportunity” test, which examines, in determining
whether the foreign carrier or its afiliate may provide services in the U.S. market, the extent to which
U.S. carriers are afforded effective competitive opportunities to compete for like services in destination
countries where the foreign carrier has market power. The Company does not currently have any
foreign affiliations, but there can be no assurance that these rules will not prevent the Company from
implementing its business plans in the future. Moreover, the FCC has proposed new rules that
implement the WTO Agreement by, among other things, relaxing the limitation on the entry of foreign
carriers from WTO-member countries into the U.S. market. There can be no assurance that the FCC

will adopt such rule changes.

Foreign Regulation

United Kingdom. In the UK, the Company's services are subject to regulation by the UK. Office
of Telecommunications. The UK, generally permits competition in all sectors of the telecommunica-
tions market, subject to licensing requirements and license conditions. Individual licenses (with
standara conditions) are required for the provision of facilities-based services and for the provision of
ISR services over leased international lines. The Company has been granted licenses to provide ISR
and international facilities-based voice services to all international points from the UK. Implements-
tion of these licenses would permit the Company to engage in cost-effective routing of trafic between
the US. and the UK. and beyond. However, the Company is subject to certain conditions that could
limit its ability to provide the lowest cost service to certain countries than would otherwise be possible
absent the conditions. In addition, there can be no assurance that future changes in regulation and
government will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results and
fnancial condition. .

Other Countries. The Company plans to initiste & variety of services in certain European
countries including Belgium, France and Germany. These services will include value-added services 1o
closed user groups and other voice services as regulatory liberalization in those countries perinits.
These aud other countries have announced plans or sdopted laws to permit varying levels of
competition in the telecommunications market. Under the terms of the WTO Agreement, esch of the
signatories has committed to opening its telecommunications market to competition, foreign owner-
ship and to adopt measures to protect against anticompetitive behavior, effective starting on January 1.
1998. Although the Company plans to obtain authority to provide service under current and future
laws of those countries, or, where permitted, provide service without government authorization, there
can be no assurance that foreign laws will be adopted and implemented providing the Company with
effective practical opportunities to compete in these countries. Moreover, there can be no assurance of
the nature and pace of liberalization in any of these markets. The Company's inability to take
advantage of such liberalization could have a material adverse affect on the Company's sbility to
expand its services as planned.

Employees
As of March 31, 1997, the Company employed 115 full-time employees. The Company is not
subject to any collective bargaining agreement and it believes that its relationships with its employees

are
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Properties

The Company's principal offices are located in Santa Barbara, California in four facilities providing
an aggregate of approximately 17,659 square feet of office space. Approximately 5.332 square feet of
this office space is leased pursuant to two leases that both expire in July 1999. The remaining

12,327 square feet of office space is located in two buildings and is rented by the
Company pursuant to a lease that expires in June 2003. The Company also leases approximately 16.565
square feet of space for its switching facility in Los Angeles, California under a sublease and a lease
expiring in April 2006, approximately 7,922 square feet of space for its switching facility in New York,
New York under a lease expiring in April 2008, approximately 6,167 square feet of space for its
switching facility in Dallas, Texas under a lease expiring in March 2007, and approximately 8,000 square
feet of space for its switching facility in London, England under a lease expiring in July 2006. The
aggregate facility lease payments made by the Company in 1096 were $561.822. The Company believes
that all other terms of the leases are those commercially reasonable other terms that are typically
found in commercial leases in each of the respective areas in which the Company leases space. The
Company believes that its facilities are adequate to support its current needs and that additional
facilities will be available as needed.

Litigation

In February 1996, the Company filed an action in Santa Barbara County Superior Court against
Communication Telesystems International (“CTS") seekirg $2.0 million in damages for an alleged
breach of two contracts with CTS. The Company claims that CTS failed to pay amounts due to the
Company and made certain demands that CTS was not entitled to make under the contract and that
CT5 then repudisted the contracts. CTS filed a separate action against the Company, seeking to
recover liquidated damages of $6.0 million for the Company’s alleged breach of one of the contracts.
CTS claims that it is entitled to liquidated damages as a result of the Company’s failure to deliver an
increased cash deposit. The Company was granted summary judgment on CTS’s First Amended
Complaint claims on May 14, 1997. The Company intends to pursue its claim against CTS and to
vigorously defend against any potential appeals by CTS. There can be no assurance, however, that the
Company will prevall either in its collection of damages or in defending against any potential appeals
by CTS. In addition, whether or not the Company is ever able to collect its damages or were to prevail
in any potential appeals, such collection process and appeal could be time consuming and costly.

In March 1897, the Company filed an action in Santa Barbara County Superior Court against
NetSource, Inc. (formerly MTC Telemanagement Corporation) (“NetSource”) seeking approximately
816 miMics L. damages for an alleged breach of a contract with NetSource. The Company claims that
NetSource failed to pay amounts due to the Company. There can be no assurance, however, that the
Company will prevail in its collection of damages. In addition, whether or not the Company is ever
able to collect its damages, such collection process could be time consuming and costly.

In June 1997, Universal Communications Network (“UCN”) fled an action in Los Angeles
Superior Court against the Company alleging that it is owed $500,000 for services rendered to the
Company and seeking damages in excess of $5.0 million based upon & number of tort and contract
claims. While the Company has not yet responded to UCN's complaint, the Company believes that
UCN’s claims are without merit and intends to vigorously defend this action. However, since litigation
is an unpredictable process, there can be no assurance that the Company will prevail in this action or
that any liability resulting from such claims will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s

results of operations.




MANAGEMENT

Officers and Directors
The officers and directors of the Company, and their ages as of March 31, 1097, are as follows:
Name Age Position
Christopher E{?ecomb .......... : Cl:HEI.:::ﬂW OB‘:::’C}EIHTHH‘I of the
Hm ﬂ.. ................. Pm‘. m mmtﬁf
David Vaun A R 33 Executive Vice President—Sales and Marketing
JamesE. Kolsrud.................. 52 Elmut!lv:.xince President—Operations and
Kelly D.Enos......connvennnnnas - | Chﬂ Fin.mci'al Officer, Treasurer and
y Assistant Secretary
Gordon Hutchins, Ir.{ Mot 47 Director
lohn R. Snedegar(1)(2) ........... 47 Director
A. Van der Meer(1)(2) ..... 36 Director

(1) Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of Compensation Committee

Christopher E. Edgecomb co-founded the Company in September 1003, served as President of the
Company until January 1996 and has served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board since January 1996. Mr. Edgecomb has been a Director of the Company since its inception.
Prior to that time, Mr. Edgecomb was a founder and the Executive Vice President of West Coast
Telecommunications (“WCT™), a nation-wide long distance carrier, from August 1989 to December
1994. Prior to founding WCT, Mr, Edgecomb was President of Telco Planning, a telecommunications
cons: 'ting firm, from January 1986 to July 1989. Prior to that time, Mr. Edgecomb held senior level
sales and marketing positions with TMC Communications, American Network and Bay Area Teleport.

Mary A. Casey has been a Director and Secretary of the Company since co-founding the Company
in September 1003, and has served as the Company’s President since January 1996. Prior to that time,
Ms. Casey was Director of Customer Service at WCT from December 1991 to June 1993, and served as
Director of Operator Services at Call America, a long distance telecommunications company, from
May 1988 to December 1091.

Devid Vaun Crumly has served as the Company's Executive Vice President—Sales and Marketing
since January 1996. Prior to that time, Mr. Crumly served as a consultant to the Company ffom
November 1995 to January 1996, was Vice President of Carrier Sales of Digital Network, Inc. from June
1995 to November 1995 and was Director of Carrier Sales of WCT from June 1992 to June 1995, Prior to
joining WCT, Mr. Crumly served in various sales and marketing capacities with Metromedia, a long-
distance company, from September 1990 to June 1992 and with Claydesta, a long-distance company,
from May 1987 to September 1089.

James E Kolsrud has served as the Company’s Executive Vice President—OUperations and
Engineering since September 1996, Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Kolsrud was an international
telecommunications consultant from March 1995 to September 1096, Prior to that time, he was a Vice
President, Corporate Engineering and Administration of IDB Communications Group, Inc. ("IDB"),
an international communications company, from October 1060 to March 1085, and prior to that time,
he was President of the International Division of IDB.

Kelly D. Enos has served as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer since December 1996 and as
Treasurer and Assistant Secretary since April 1997, Prior to that time, Ms. Enos was an independent
consultant in the merchant banking feld from February 1996 to November 1996 and a Vice President
of Fortune Financial, a merchant banking firm, from April 1995 to January 1996. Ms. Enos served as a
Vice President of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc., an investment bank, from July 1094 to March 1995 and a
Vice President of Sutro & Co., an investment bank, from January 1991 to June 1904
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Gordon Hutchins, Jr. has served as a Director of the Company since January 1996. Mr. Hutchins
has been President of GH Associates, 8 management consulting company, since July 1989. Prior to
founding GH Associates, Mr. Hutchins served as President and Chief Executive Officer of ICC
Telecommunications, & competitive sccess provider, and held senlor management positions with
several other companies in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Hutchins serves as a director of
United Digital Network, Inc., a long distance telecommunications company.

John R. Snedegar has served as a Director of the Company since January 1996 Mr. Snedegar has
been the President of United Digital Network, Inc., a long distance telecommunications company,
since June 1990. Mr. Snedegar serves as a director of StarBase Corporation, a software development
company.

Roland A. Van der Meer has served as a Director of the Company since July 1996. Mr. Van der
Hmhubunlpmnurwlthrmnhlnmalnmmuﬂnlimdm April 1993, Prior to
that time, Mr. Van der Meer was a partner with Communications Ventures from April 1087 to February
1993.

Board Composition

withthntumofthccn-pny'lm&w.wutlucloduoﬂh-ohdnsihe
tamdoﬂeeﬂ&llwdiwﬂﬂhmmthrn:imu;dul.wboutmﬁll
upinnlhnmuuimdmmtwhbddhlﬂ:(ﬂun.whunmﬂllcxpueutlu
mnndnuﬁudnu&hnldﬁlhhbddhlﬂ;mdmm.whuﬂmﬁﬂuﬂuu&emuﬂ
mﬂud’m&hﬂdﬂlwhhlﬂhm.muulﬁmsmcwdmﬂntchlu.h.mdlohnl.
sw.&mn&m“bhd&v”h“mﬂuﬂk&ny.ndmmm
Mnruwawmmaﬂuﬂmdmummmumm
Mﬂnhmhmm“wm&umﬂhthﬂdmmmmth
umdmmmmmmmmmhm.mﬂmcmm
ofhhudd%mmmhmh.ﬁnd%wmwwmmlwnw
in management of the Company, See “Risk F — Anti-takeover Effects of Certificate of Incorpora-
tion, Bylaws and Delaware Law” and “Description of Capital Stock — Anti-takeover Effects of
Provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Delaware Law.”
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Director Compensation

Executive Compensation
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subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1096 (the “Named Officers™).




Sumuiary Compensation Table

Long Term
aE
Annual Securities
Compensmtion ngﬂ All Other
Name and Principal Position Salary (§) ®) Compensation (V)
E. Edgecomb ............. T Y $360,000 0 3 9.223(1)
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
MY A R oo v r e i v s e vt o e giahn b srmse 156,042(2) 0 15,028(3)
President and Secretary
John D. Mlarseh ....cuoscennsnersasssansssssnnanes 160,000(4) 400,000 4,000(5)
Executive Vice President—STAR Europe
D‘?H\'m&"l.]j’ FABE R AR R R R FAFEF RS R E A m.’m mm 3.@[3]
Executive Vice President—Sales and Marketing
Kelly D EROS. .o it s cunsvnsbonnasne ansussnbonsss 12.500(6) 75,000 0
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Assistant
Secretary

(1) Consists of life insurance and health insurance premiums paid by the Company.
(2) Ms. Casey’s annual salary is currently set at §195,000.
(3) Consists of life insurance and health insurance premiums and a car allowance paid by the
Company.
(4) Mr. Marsch joined the Company in May 1996 and resigned as Executive Vice President—STAR
Europe effective January 30, 1997.
(5) Consists of a car allowance paid by the Company.
(6) Ms. Enos joined the Company in December 1096; her annual salary is currently set at $150,000.
The following table contains information concerning the stock option grants made to each of the
Named Oficers named below for the year ended December 31, 1906,
Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year
Individual Grants

iim ;I . : T:: v ol Asumed

Unieiviag ~ Gomed to Anmual Rates of Stock
Camted ™ Bame Price I.ﬂh _Optien i""!!!

Name (®). Fiscal Your (815h) % (5) 10% (8)
John D. Marsch ............ 200000(8) 1286%  $200  02/28/06 $251,558 $637.497
200,000(3) 1280 2.00 04/30/06 251558 637407
David Vaun Crumly......... 180,000(4) 11.60 1.50 01/21/06 166802 430310
20,000(5) 129 3.00 05/14/08 I, T 85,625
Kelly D Enos......oo0000-0 75,000(6) 483 820 12/09/06 386,770 980,152

(1) The 5% and 10% assumed annual rates of compounded stock price appreciation are mandated by
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. There can be no assurance provided to any
executive officer or any other holder of the Company's securitics that the actual stock price
appreciation over the 10-year option term will be at the assumed 5% and 10% levels or at any other
defined level. Unless the market price of the Common Stock appreciates over the option term, no
value will be realized from the option grants made to the executive officer.

(2) Mr. Marsch became vested in 100,000 of the option shares on March 1, 1997, and, pursuant to
mummmm“:mmcmmh.mmu 100,000 option
are

(3) The option is fully vested and exercisable.
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(4) The option is vested and exercisable with respect to 60,000 of the option shares and becomes fully
vested and exercisable with respect to the balance upon the closing of the offering. -

(5) The option is vested and exercisable with respect to 5000 of the option shares and becomes
exercisable with respect to the balance in three equal annual installments on December 31, 1997,
1998 and 1999, respectively.

(6) The option becomes exercisable in four equal annual installments on December 2, 1997, 1998, 1999
and 2000, respectively.

Aggregate Option Exercises in Last Fiscal Year and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

No options were exercised by the Named Officers for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1006. No
stock appreciation rights were exercised during such year or were outstanding st the end of that year.
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the value of stock options held by
each of the Named Officers as of December 31, 16986

Fiscal Year-End Option Values
Number d Sacurities Value of Usexercised
g&: FY-Ead(®) muﬂmp“q
Name Esercisable Uneservissble Esercimble Usenercissble
John D. Marsch ........ SR L T 200,000 200,000  §1.520000 §1.520,000
David Vaun Crumly .........ccviviiicinciannns 65.000 135,000 519,000 1,071,000
Kelly D, En08.coisscerarrivrassassaonsasssbons 0 75,000 0 105,000

(1) Basd on the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock at year-end (98.60 per share, as
determined by the Company's Board of Directors) less the exercise price payable for such shares.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board was formed in May 1966, and the members
of the Compensation Committee are Gordon Hutchins, Jr., John R. Snedegar and Roland A. Van der
Meer. None of these individuals was at any time during the year ended December 31, 1996, or at any
other time, an officer or employee of the Company. No member of the Compensation Committee of
the Company serves as a member .f the board of directors or compensation committee of any entity
that has one or more executive officers serving as s member of the Company’s Board or Compensatitn
Committee.

1997 Omuibus Siock Incentive Plan

The Company's 1997 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “Omnibus Plan") was adopted by the
Board of Directors on January 30, 1997, subject to stockholder approval, as the successor to the
Company’s 1006 Supplemental Option Plan (the “Supplemeutal Plan"). The Company has reserved
1,500,000 shares for issuance under the Omnibus Plan. This share reserve is comprised of (i) the
1,000,000 shares that were available for issuance under the Supplemental Plan, plus (1) an increase of
500,000 shares. As of March 31, 1997, no shares had been issued under the Omnibus Plan, options for
466,827 shares were outstanding (from the Supplemental Plan) and 1,033,173 shares remained available
for future grant. Shares of Common Stock subject to outstanding options, including options granted
under the Supplemental Plan, which expire or terminate prior to exercise, will be available for future
issuance under the Omnibus Plan. In addition, if stock appreciation rights (“SARs") and stock units are
settled under the Omnibus Plan, then only the number of shares actually issued in settlement will
reduce the number of shares available for future issuance under this plan.

Under the Omnibus Plan, employees, outside directors and consultants may be awarded options to
purchase shares of Common Stock, SARs, restricted shares and stock units. Options may be incentive




stock options designed to satisfy section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code or nonstatutory stock
options not designed to meet such requirements. SARs may be awarded in combination with options.
restricted shares or stock units, and such an award may provide that the SARs will not be exercisable
unless the related options, restricted sheres or stock units are forfeited.

The Omnibus Plan will be administered by a committee designated b+ the Board of Directors of
the Company and comprised of two or more directors (the “Committee”). The Committee has the
complete discretion to determine which eligible individuals are to receive awards: determine the
award type, number of shares subject to an award, vesting requirements and other features and
conditions of such awards; interpret the Omnibus Plan; and rul‘.e all other decisions relating to the
operation of the Omnibus Plan.

Thenerciupﬁui‘oropﬂomymuduudertbeﬂmnlbmmu may be paid in cash or in
outstanding shares of Common Stock. Options may also be exercised on a cashless basis, by a pledge of
shares to a broker or by promissory note. The payment for the award of newly issued restricted shares
will be made in cash. If an award of SARs, stock units or restricted shares from the Company's treasury

is granted. no cash consideration is required.

The Committee has the suthority to modify, extend or assume outstanding options and SARs or
may accept the cancellation of outstanding options and SARs in return for the grant of new options or
SARs for the same or a different number of shares and at the same or a different exercise price.

The Board may determine that an outside director may elect to receive his or her annual retainer
payments and meeting fees from the Company in the form of cash, options, restricted shares, stock
units or a combination thereof. The Board will decide how to determine the number and terms of the
opti: as, restricted shares or stock units to be granted to cutside directors in lieu of annual retainers

and meeting fees.

Upon a change in control, the Committee may determine that an option or SAR will become fully
exercisable as to all shares subject to such option or SAR. A change in control includes a merger or
consolidation of the Company, certain changes in the composition of the Board and acquisition of 50%
or more of the combined voting power of the Company s outstanding stock. In the event of a merger or
other reorganization, outstanding options, SARs, restricted shares and stock units will be subject to the
ugreement of merger or reorganization, which may provide for the assumption of outstanding awards
by the surviving corporation or its parent, their continuation by the Company (if the Company is the
surviving corporation), accelerated vesting and accelerated expiration, or settlement in cash.

The Board may amend or terminate the Omnibus Plan at any time. Amendments may be subject to
stockholder spproval to the extent required by spplicable laws. In any event, the Omnibus Plan will
terminate on January 22, 2007, unless sooner terminated by the Board.

1996 Outside Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan

The Company's 1696 Outside Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan”) was
ratified and approved by the Board of Directors as of May 14, 19096. The Company has reserved 200,000
shares of Common Stock for issuance under the Director Plan. As of March 31, 1997, no shares had
been issued under the Director Plan, options for 55,000 shares were outstanding and 145,000 shares
remained available for future grant. If an outstanding option expires or terminates unexercised, then
the shares subject to such option will again be available for issuance under the Director Plan.

Under the Director Plan, outside directors of the Company may receive nonstatutory options to
purchase shares of Common Stock. The Director Plan will be administered by the Board or the
Compensation Committee (known as "Plan Administrator”). Plan Administrator has the discre-
tion to determine which eligible individuals will receive options, the number of shares subject to each
option, vesting requirements and any other terms and conditions of such options.
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The exercise price for options granted under the Director Plan will be at least 85% of the fair
market value of the Common Stock on the option grant date, shall be 110% of the fair market value of
the Common Stock on the option grant date if the option is granted to a holder of more than 10% of the
Common Stock outstanding and may be paid in cash, check or shares of Common Stock. The exercise
pﬁumyahobuptﬁbywhhnumhﬂphdﬂnhhnumnbrﬂn

The Plan Administrator may modify, extend or renew outstanding options or accept the surrender
of such options in exchange for the grant of new options, subject to the consent of the affected

optionee.

Upon a change in control, the Board may accelerate the exercisability of outstanding options and
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holders of Common Stock pursuant to the merger.

Thehudmrmndumthmrhnunyuu.huymuhmm
will terminate on May 14, 2006, unless earlier terminated by the Board. )

Employment Contracts and Change of Control Arrangements

Thc&nwrhuncqiw-ﬂwﬁthlhrykm.mmwm Ms. Casey
hnldsthamdmolmofmcmur.hpaﬂummm&tmmwmth.w
entitled to purchase 818,182 shares of Common Stock. and is eligivle to receive a bonus, as determined
bytmm-rnmmudmammmwmmmmm
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cmploymmt.ududdﬁhﬂwﬂﬂm”mnﬁiuthmumm minus any
amounts earned by her from other employment during such period. In addition, the agreement
pmﬂdu&uﬂmwlmﬂoynmhmmIuhuthulwcm]ﬂnhllburmth:&u
a Sale Transaction (as defined below), she will continue to receive the compensation provided in this
agreement until the expiration of the agreement on December 31, 1998, instead of the severance
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muﬂﬁuofth:ﬁomf.pumthﬂmdnoﬁrumhwoﬁrwvudhdnmbyth
Board of Directors. . e

mjmmlmmmplaynwdm“-nﬂormwtﬂthmﬂdeCmmlr

pursuant to which Mr. Crumly became Executive Vice President of the Company. The agreement

provides for an annual salary of $10,000 per month with an annual increase, plus incentive bonuses tied
to gross revenues of the Company. The agreement also provides for a commission on certain accounts
of the Company and an option to purchase 180,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$1.50 per share. In addition, in the event of a Sale Transaction, Mr. Crumly will receive a bonus
payment equal to the lesser of 81,500,000 or a percentage of the monthly gross sales of accounts
relating to customers introduced to the Company by Mr. Crumly. If his employment is terminated in
certain circumstances, without cause, within four months after a Sale Transaction, Mr. Crumly is
entitled to receive the compensation provided in this agreement, minus any compensation earned by
other employment, until the expiration of the agreement on December 31, 1006.

In December 1996, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Kelly D. Enos,
m;mwmmmmwmmamm.mmtm
for an annual salary of 8150000 and an option to purchase 75,000 shares of Common Stock st an
exercise price of $8.20 per share. The agreement also provides that Ms. Enos will receive a severance
mymntmmmw-mnwmmmmmmumu:morm
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within four months after a Sale Transaction.

In March 1997, the Company entered into an agreement with John Marsch, pursuant to which
Mr. Marsch resigned as the Company’s Executive Vice President—STAR Europe. From January 30,
1997 until February 28, 1998 (the “Effective Date™), Mr. Marsch will serve as a Director of Special
Projects for the Company. Until the Effective Date, pursuant to the terms of a previously executed
employment agreement with the Company, Mr, Marsch will continue to receive s monthly salary of
$20,000 per month, an automobile allowance of $500 per month and any other fringe benefits which he
received prior to the execution of the revised employment agreement. In consideration for the
continuation of his employment until the Effective Date, Mr. Marsch waived his rights to vest in
100,000 of the option shares granted to him in May 1996, and such 100,000 shares have been forfeited.




CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with QOutside Directors

The Company provided services to Digital Network, Inc. ("DNI”) in the amount of approvimately
$250.000 in 1996. DNI is a wholly owned subsidiary of United Digital Network. Inc. (“UDN"). and
John R. Snedegar. a Director of the Company. is President of UDN. Gordon Hutchins, Jr.. a Director of
the Company, serves on UDN's Board of Directors.

Gordon Hutchins, Jr. provides consulting services to the Company. In 1996, the Company made
payments of approximately $154,000 to Mr. Hutchins for general business consulting services relating
to the telecommunications industry and for the performance of other tasks requested of him by the
Company's Chief Executive Officer, President or Board of Directors. In addifion, in consideration for
consulting services provided to the Company in his capacity as a member of the Board of Directors,
the Company granted to Mr. Hutchins a nonstatutory option to purchase 100,000 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price of $3.00.

On May 15, 1996, the Company granted to Messrs. Hutchins and Snedegar each a nonststutory
option to purchase 10,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $3.00 per share under the
Company's 1996 Outside Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan. On January 30, 1997, the Company
granted to Messrs. Hutchins, Snedegar and Van der Meer each a nonstatutory option to purchase 5,000
shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of 810,80 per share under the Company’s 1996 Outside
Director Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan.

Transactions with Executive Officers

On October 4. 1996, the Company entered into & $12.0 million line of credit with Comerica Bank.
The total mtmﬂummmauﬂmumm.lm.wwm
$5.3 million. This line of credit is guaranteed by Christopher E. Edgecomb, the Company's Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Edgecomb does not receive any additional compensation in connection with
such ‘wmtn.MCanNnyhmutdlnmunudcmﬁtwnhw. Edgecomb in the aggregate
amount of $1,448,042 that expire on March 30, 1698, Borrowings under the lines of credit bear interest
at a rate of 9.0% and there were no amounts outstanding under these lines of credit as of March 31,
1997.

Mr. Edgecomb has two-thirds ownership of Star Aero Services, Inc. (“Star Aero”), which has
ownership interests in five sirplanes that the Company utilizes for business travel from time to time.
For the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1996, the Company paid $144.000 and $68,000, respec-
tively, in costs related to the use of Star Aero services. As of March 31, 1867, the Company had a
receivable from Star Aero of approximately $129,000.

David Vaun Crumly had controlling ownership of three companies that resold transmission
capacity to the Company during 1996. As of March 31, 1697, the Company had made deposits on behalf
of these companies of approximately 8758,000 and had made payments of approximately $240,000 for
such services. In addition, the Company has agreed to reimburse legal fees incurred by such companies
in connection with a dispute with the provider of the capacity that was resold to STAR. To date, the
fees paid or incurred total approximately §108,300.

Indemnification

The Company’'s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation limits the liability of its
directors for monetary damages arising from a breach of their Bduciary duty as directors, except to the
extent otherwise required by the Delaware General Corporation Law. Such limitation of lisbility does
not affect the availability of equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission.

The Company's Bylaws provide that the Company shall indemnify its directors and officers to the
fﬂhﬂ@tmwmhw.mﬂwuhmmmh indemnification is
otherwise discretionary under Delaware law. The Company has also ‘entered into indemnification
agreements with its oficers and directors containing provisions that may require the Company, among
other things, to indemnify such officers and directors against certain liabilities that may arise by reason




of their status or service as directors or officers (other than liabilities arising from willful misconduct of
a culpable nature), to advance their expenses incurred as a result of any proceeding azzinst them as to
which they could be indemnified, and to obtain directors’ and officers’ insurance if available on
reasonable terms.

The Company believes that all of the transactions set forth above were made on terms no less
favorable to the Company than could have been obtained from unafliated third parties. All future
transactions. including loans between the Company and its officers, directors, principal stockholders

and their affilistes will be approved by a majority of the Board of Directors, including a majority of the
independent and disinterested outside directors on the Board of Directors, and will continue to be on

terms no less favorable to the Company than could be obtained from unafiiliated third parties.




PRINCIPAL AND SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth certain information known to the Company regarding beneficial

ownership of its Common Stock as of May 1. 1997 assuming conversion of all outstanding shares of
Preferred Stock into shares of Common Stock, and us adjusted to reflect the sale of shares offered
hereby by (i) each person who is known by the Company to own beneficially more than five percent
of the Company’s Common Stock, (ii) each of the Company's directors. (iii) each of the Numed
Officers, and (iv) all current officers and directors as a group.

Shares Beneficiall
Orened Afer the '
Before the Offering(1) “"""'“.,,"- Offering (1) (2)
Name and Addrews of Beneficial Owner Number  Percent (3) Offered Number  Percent(d)
Entities affiliated with the Hunt Family
Trosts(4) ccvvvernnennvens A e ey als 1,072.993 2.1% —_ 1.072.803 6.9%
3900 Thanksgiving Tower
Dallas, Texas 75201
Cotel Investments, Ltd.(5) .................. 014,408 T — 914.406 59
16. Rue de la Pelissiere
1204, Geneva
Switzerland
Gordon Hutching, Jr.(6) ....... i3 el S 77,000 . - ” .
John R Snedegar(7) ..............o0nvunrnnn 10,000 . - 10,000 .
Roland A. Van der Meer(8).................. 275,840 23 -— 175,840 18
Christopher E. Edgecomb(9) ................ 458,162 811 1B6.700 T271.482 8.7
Mary A. Casey(10) .....coovvviinvininnnnnns 878,226 e | 50,000 828,226 53
David Vaun Crumly(11) ..........cvvvnenen.. 285,000 24 - 285,000 15
James E. Kolsrud .......oovivnvess B i v ek 10.000 . — 10,000 ’
Kally D BBOS ..ccvcvvieniniarssotbossehuatn —_ — - .
All directors and executive oficers as a group
(8 persons)(12) ....... o o it e n X 8.904.228 743 236,500 5.757.528 553
Other !-IIIH Stockholders
Bancommerce Capital Corporation ........ ... 50,000 . 12,500 17,500 .
Pacific Star Telecommunications Limited. ... .. 25,946 . 800 25,146 .

Represents beneficial ownership of les. than 1% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock.

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange

(2)
(3)

(4)

Commission and includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. The address for
each listed director and officer is ¢/o STAR Telecommunications, Inc., 223 East De La Guerra
Street. Santa Barbar, California 83101. To the Company's knowledge, except as indicated in the
footnotes to this table and pursuant to applicable community property laws, the persons named
in the table Lave sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of Common Stock.

Assumes no exercise of the Underwriters’ over-allotment option. See “Underwriting.”

Percentage of beneficial ownership is based on 11.825,756 shares of Commou Stock outstanding
as of May 1, 1097, and 15,575.756 shares of Common Stock after the completion of this offering.
The number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned includes the shares issuable pursuant
to stock options that are exercisable within sixty days of May 1, 1997 and, where indicated below,
shares issuable pursuant to stock options that are exercisable upon the closing of the offering.
Shares issuable pursuant to stock options are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage
of the person holding such options but are not outstanding for computing the percentage of any
other person. The number of shares of Common Stock outstanding after this offering includes
3,750,000 shares of Common Stock being offered for sale by the Company in this offering.

Consists of 357,665 shares held by Lyda Hunt—Herbert Trusts—David Shelton Hunt,
178,832 shares held by Lyda Hunt—Herbert Trusts—Bruce William Hunt, 178,832 shares held by
Lyda Hunt—Herbert Trusts—Douglas Herbert Hunt, 178,832 shares held by Lyda Hunt—




Herbert Trusts—Barbara Ann Hunt and 178,832 shares held by Lyda Hunt—Herbert Trusts—
Lyda Bunker Hunt. The co-trustees of each of the Hunt Family Trusts hold voting and
investment power for all shares of the Company's Common Stock held by the respective trusts
Walter P. Roach and Cage A. Prichard are the co-trustees of each such trust.

(5) The board of directors of Gotel Investments, Ltd. (“Gotel”) holds voting and investment power

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

for all shares of the Company's Common Stock held by Gotel. Cotel's board of directors is
comprised of Barry Guterman, Walter Stresemann and Gregory Elias.

Couimﬂ'ﬂmmMhmntbeuuﬁuafﬂmhnﬂhunmﬂahleﬁihmunydlyl
of May 1, 1997.

cronm:no,mum issuable upon the exercise of stock options exercisable within sixty days
of May 1, 1997,

Consists of 91,136 shares held by Parvest U.S. Partners IT1 C.V., 60,758 shares held by Partech US.
Partners Il C.V,, 121,516 shares held by U.S. Growth Fund Partners C.V., and 2,430 shares held
by Partech International Salary Deferral Plan U/A Dated 1/1/82 FBO: Roland A. Van der Meer.
Mr. Van der Meer, a Director of the Company, is a general partner of Parvest US. Partners II
C.V., Partech US. Partners IIl CV. and US. Growth Fund Partners C.V. (collectively, the
“Mnehlnuﬁ-']ur\'nd-r is the Leneficiary of the Partech International Salary
Deferral Plan U/A Dated 1/1/82 FBO: Roland A. Van der Meer. Mr. Van der Meer disclaims
beneﬂddmunhlpuflhuﬁhddbythel’nueh Entities, except for his proportional interest
therein.

If the over-allotment option is exercised in full, the number of shares beneficially owned by
Mr. Edgscomb after the offering will be reduced to 6,596,462 shares, or 43.7% of shares
ﬂllmlﬂdm,

If the over-allotment option is exercised in full, the number of shares beneficially owned by
Ms. Casey after the offering will be reduced to 503,226 shares, or 5.1% of shares outstanding.

Consists of 100,000 shares of Common Stock, 180,000 shares of Common Stock issuable upon the
exercise of stock options exercisable upon the closing of the offering and 5,000 shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options exercisable within sixty days of May 1, 1997

Includes 272,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options exercisable within sixty days
of May 1, 1997, and where indicated above, shares issuable pursuant to stock options that are
exercissble upon the closing of the offering.




DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

Upon the closing of this o¥ering. the authorized capital stock of the Company will consist of
50.000.000 shares of Common Stuck, $0.00]1 par value, and 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock. $0.001

par value.

Common Stock

As of March 31, 1997, there were 11,825,756 shares of Common Stock outstanding (assuming the
conversion of the Company’s Preferred Stock into 911,360 shares of Common Stock) that were held of
recerd by approximately 47 stockholders. There will be 15,575,756 shares of Common Stock outstand-
ing (assuming no exercise of the Underwriters’ over-allotment option and assuming no exercise after
March 31, 1997, of outstanding options) after giving effect to the sale of the shares of Commeon Stock to
the public offered hereby and the conversion of the Company's Preferred Stock into 911,360 shares of
Common Stock.

The holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted upon
by the stockholders. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any outstanding Preferred Stock,
the holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared
from time to time by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefor. See “Dividend
Policy.” In the event of the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, the holders of
Common Stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining sfter payment of liabilities, subject
to prior distribution rights of Preferred Stock. if any, then outstanding. The Common Stock has no
preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund
provisions applicable to the Common Stock. All outstanding shares of Common Stock are fully paid
and nonassessable, and the shares of Common Stock to be issued upon completion of this offering will
be fully paid and nonassessable.

Preferred Stock

Upon the closing of this offering, all outstanding shees of Preferred Stock will convert into
911,360 shares of Common Stock. Thereafter, pursuant to the Company's Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, the Board of Directors will have the authority to issue up to 5,000,000
shaies of Preferred Stock in one or more series and to fix the rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions thereof, including dividend rights, dividend rates, conversion rights, voting rights, terms of
redemption, redemption prices, liquidation preferences and the number of shar=: constituting any
series or the designation of such series, without further vote or action by the stockholders. The
issuance of Preferred Stock may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in
control of the Company without further action by the stockholders and may adversely affect the voting
and other rights of the holders of Common Stock. The issuance of Preferred Stock with voting and
conversion rights may adversely affect the voting power of the holders of Common Stock. including
thnlkunafwliumtmltouthmhtpml.du(:ompmyhunoplmnoiuuunyuﬂhehfrmd
Stock.

Anti-takeover Effects of Provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Delaware Law

Certificaie of Incorporation and Bylaws

The Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation provides that, upon the
closing of this offering, the Board of Directors will be divided into three classes of directors, with each
class serving a staggered three-year term. The classification system of electing directors may tend to
discourage a third party from making a tender offer or otherwise attsmpting to obtain control of the
Company and may maintain the incumbency of the Board of Directors, as the classification of the
Board of Directors generally increases the difficulty of replacing s majority of the directors. The
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation also provides that, effective upon the closing of
this offering, all stockholder actions must be effected at a duly called meeting and not by a consent in
writing. Further, provisions of the Bylaws and the Amended and Restated Certificate of
provide that the stockholders may amend the Bylaws or certain provisions of the Amended and
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stock. These provisions of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws could
discourage potential acquisition proposals and could delay or prevent a change n control of the
Company. These provisions are intended to enhance the likelihood of continuity and stability in the
composition of the Board of Directors and in the policies formulated by the Board of Directors and to
discourage certain types of transactions that may involve an actual or threatened change of control of
th&mmr.hm“mdaﬂpdmnﬂmhwmwofm&npwmm
unsolicited acquisition proposal. The provisions also are intended to discourage certain tactics that
may be used in proxy fights. However, such provisions could have the effect of discouraging others
from making tender offers for the Company's shares and, as a consequence, they also may inhibit
fluctuations in the market price of the Company's shares that could result from actual or rumored
takeover attempts. Such provisions also may have the effect of preventing changes in the management
of the Company. See "Risk Factors—Effect of Certain Charter Provisions; Anti-takeover Effects of
Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and Delaware Law.”

Delaware Takeover Statute

The Company is subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (“Section
203”), which, subject to certain exceptions, prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any
business combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years following the date
that such stockholder became an interested stockholder, unless: (i) prior to such date, the board of
directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted
in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder; (ii) upon consummation of the transaction that
resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at
least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced.
excluding for purposes of determining the number of shares outstanding those shares owned (x) by
persons who are directors and also officers and (y) by employee stock plans in which employee
participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan
will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or (lii) on or subsequent to such date, the business
combination is approved by the board of directors and suthorized at an annual or special meeting of
stockholders, and not by written consent, by the afirmative vote of at least 66%% of the outstanding
voting stock that is not owned by the interested stockholder.

Section 203 defines business combination to include: (i) any merger or consolidation involving the
corporation and the interested stockholder; (ii) any sale, transfer, pledge or other disposition of 10% or
more of the assets of the corporation involving the interested stockholder; (iii) subject to certain
exceptions, any transaction that results in the issuance or transfer by the corporation of any stock of
the corporation to the interested stockholder; (iv) any transaction involving the corporation that has
the effect of inereasing the proportionate share of the stock of any class or series of the corporation
benelicially owned by the interested stockholder; or (v) the receipt by the interested stockholder of
the beneft of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits provided by or
through the corporation. In general, Section 203 defines an interested stockholder as any entity or
person beneficially owning 15% or more of the outstanding voting stock of the corporation and any
entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by such entity or person.

Registration Rights

After this offering, the holders of approximately 2,613,000 shares of Common Stock will be entitled
to certain rights with respect to the registration of such shares under the Securities Act. Under the
terms of the agreement between the Company and the holders of such registrable securities, if the
Company proposes 1o register any of its securities under the Securities Act, either for its own account
or for the sccount of other security holders exercising registration rights, such holders are entitled to
notice of such registration and are entitled to include shares of such Common Stock therein.
Additionally, certain holders are also entitled to demand registration rights pursuant to which they
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may require the Company to fle a registration statement under the Securities Act at its expense with
respect to their shares of Common Stock. and the Company is required to use its best efforts to effect

mFmHnmcmmnuw All of these registration rights are subject to certain conditions
and limitations, among them the right of the underwriters of an offering to limit the number of shares

included in such registration and the right of the Company not to effect a requested registration within
six months following an offering of the Company’s securities, including the offering made hereby.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The Transfer Agent and Registrar for the Common Stock is US. Stock Transfer Corp., 1745
Cardena Avenue, Glandale, California 91204, and its telephone number is (818) 502-1404.




SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Upon completion of this offering, the Company will have 15,575,756 shares of Common Stock

Of this amount, the 4,000,000 shares offered hereby will be available for immediate sale in

the public market as of the date of this Prospectus. Approximately 25,146 additional shares will be

available for sale in the public market 80 days from the date of this Prospectus, and approximately

11,277,610 additional shares will be available for sale in the public market immediately following the

expirstion of 180-day lockup sgreements with the Representatives of the Underwriters or the
Company, subject in some cases to compliance with the volume and other limitations of Rule 144.

m*h‘." Shares

_this Prospectus Future Sals Comment

Upon Effectiveness ...... 4,000,000 Freely tradeable shares sold in offering ana
shares saleable under Rule 144(k) that are not
subject to 180-day lockup.

L S e 25,146 Shares saleable under Rule 144.

180 days............ A 11,277.610 Lockup released: shares saleable under
Rule 144, 144(k) or T01.

Thereafter .............. 273,000 Restricted securities held for one year or less.

In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, a person (or persons whose shares are
aggregated) who has beneficlally owned shares for at least one year is entitled to sell within any three-
month period commencing 90 days after the date of this Prospectus a number of shares that does not
exceed the greater of (i) 1% of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock (approximately
155,758 shares immediately after the offering) or (ii) the average weekly trading volume during the
four calendar weeks preceding such sale, subject to the filing of a Form 144 with respect to such sale. A
person (or persons whose shares are aggregated) who is not deemed to have been an affiliate of the
Company at any time during the 90 days immediately preceding the sale who has beneficially owned
his or her shares for at least two years is entitled to sell such shares pursuant to Rule 144(k) without
regard to the limitations described above. Persons deemed to be affilistes must always sell pursuant to
Rule 144, even after the applicable holding periods have been satisfied.

The Company is unable to estimate the number of shares that will be sold under Rule 144, since
this will depend on the market price for the Common Stock of the Company, the personal
circumstances of the sellers and other factors. Prior to this offering, there has been no public market
for the Common Stock, and there can be no assurance that a significant public market for the Common
Stock will develop or be sustained after the offering. Any future sale of substantial amounts of the
Common Stock in the open market may adversely affect the market price of the Common Stock offered
hereby. -

The Company, its directors, executive officers, stockholders with registration rights and certain
other stockholders have agreed pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement and other agreements that
they will not sell any Common Stock without the prior consent of Hambrecht & Quist LLC for a
period of 180 days from the date of this Prospectus (the “180-day Lockup Period”), except that the
Company may, without such consent, grant options and sell shares pursuant to the 1996 Stock
Incentive Flan, the Omnibus Plan and the Director Plan.

Any employee or consultant to the Company who purchased his or her shares pursuant to a
written compensatory plan or contract is entitled to rely on the resale provisions of Rule 701, which
permits nonaflliates to sell their Rule 701 shares without having to comply with the public informa-
tion, holding period, volume limitation or notice provisions of Rule 144 and permits affiliates to sell
their Rule 701 shares without having to comply with the Rule 144 holding period restrictions, in each
case commencing 90 days after the date of this Prospectus. As of the date of this Prospectus, the
holders of options exercisable into approximately 836,475 shares of Common Stock will be eligible to
sell their shares upon the expiration of the 180-day Lockup Period. :

The Company intends to file a registration statement on Form 5-8 under the Securities Act to
register options to purchase shares of Common Stock issued or reserved for issusnce under the
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restriction under the Securities Act. The Company intends to register theze options on Form 5-8, along
wﬂhaﬂionlthuhmnﬂhﬂhﬂdu&rhmy'lnuiphmudthcdnenhhh
Prospectus.

In sddition, after this offering, the holders of approximately 2,813,000 shares of Common Stock will
be entitled to certain rights with respect to registration of such shares under the Securities Act.
Wdﬂmwmmwmumhhmhmmmu&uh
mmmm&mmtnupﬁumW&MMMudthe
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Stock—Registration Rights.”




UNDERWRITING

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Underwriting Agreenwent. a syndicate of Underwriters
named below (the “Underwriters”), for whom Hambrecht & Quist LLC and Alex. Brown & Sons
Incorporated are acting as representatives (the “Representatives”). have severally agreed to purchase
from the Company and the Selling Stockholders an aggregate of 4,000,000 shares of Common Stock.
The number of shares of Common Stock that each Underwriter has agreed to purchase is set forth

opposite its name below:
Name Number of Shares
Hambrecht & Quist LLC ...........coouiiiiiiiiireiiennaiiniiaianins 1.500.000
Alex. Brown & Sons Incorporated .. «...........ccceciiiniiiiiaiinns i 1.500.000
oW B (5o v g tanssrs st siosnasnansnnsusaiimeedboionsneiss 100,000
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation. .. ................. 100,000
Coldmen. Baeha e €0, ., oo i rinirsinaiiasnsssssssssassssniasssnais 100,000
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated .................... 100,000
Dain Bosworth Incorporated .. ........oooiiiiiiiiiiniiiiniiiirieniinn. 50,000
First Albany Corporation ....... L PR 50,000
First Southwest COMPANY ..o vvvvrvnrrvariiiianrrnnnesiesrrsssrssssns 50,000
Furman Belt LI ....ocvureerirsrsorstssrsranrnssnnssnnsnssssesssnss 50,000
Needham & Company, INC. . ... .ovvvnrernniiiininvunrinaiiosssnsiias, 50,000
Brnl POy O 5 s oo s nsannastososinovnrinsansnsnnsad iiossnessii 50,000
Ragen MacKenzie Incorporated ............oovviiiennnininescnions 50,000
Raymond James & Associates, INC. ........coouiiiuuareirnenieinininnn. 50,000
The Robinson-Humphrey Company Inc. ........covvvvuiiniiiiinnnninns 50,000
Sonders Morris Mundy 1. .. ...cocuviiiiiniininnsnnirasssstrasssnes 50,000
BODEE It BRI, B0, <.« o 557004054 8as030stninsnnnnenosssssinsstss 50,000
Satr0 8t D0, TODORDONBROM oo o o v 5o vo o 55ws 5ivin vk masinariio win i &0 55 0 0's 50,000
1 b | e e B R RN I R AT 4.000.000

The Underwriting Agreement provides that the obligations of the several Underwriters to
purchase shares of Common Stock are subject to the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and
to certain other conditions. If any of the shares of Common Stock are purchased by the Underwriters
pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, all such shares of Common Stock (other than the shares of
Common Stock covered by the over-allotment option described below) must be so purchased.

Prici w chis offering, there has been no established trading market for the Common Stock. The
initial price to the public for the Common Stock offered hereby has been determined by negotiation
among the Company, the Representatives and the representatives of the Selling Stockholders. The
factors considered in determining the initial price to the public included the history of and the
prospects for the industry in which the Company competes, the ability of the Company’s management,
the past and present operations of the Company, the historical results of operations of the Company,
the prospects for future earnings of the Company, the general condition of the securities markets at
the time of this offering and the recent market prices of securities of generally comparable companies,

The Company, the Selling Stockholders and the Underwriters have agreed to indemnify each
other against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act, or to contribute to
payments that the Underwriters may be required to make in respect thereol.

The Company has been advised by the Representatives that the Underwriters are offering the
Common Stock to the public initially at the price to the public set forth on the cover page of this
Prospectus and to certain dealers (who may include the Underwriters) at such price less a concession
not to exceed $0.35 per share. The Underwriters may allow, and such dealers may reallow, discounts
not in excess of $0.10 per share to any other Underwriter and certain other dealers; and that after the




initial public offering. the price to the public, the concession and the discount to dealers may be
changed by the Representatives.

The Company and certain Selling Stockholders have granted to the Underwriters an option to
purchase up to an aggregate of 600,000 additional shares of Common Stock at the initial public offering
price !ess underwriting discounts and coramissions solely to cover over-allotments. Such option may be
exercised at any time until thirty days after the date of this Prospectus. To the extent that the
Underwriters exercise such option, each of the Underwriters will be committed, subject to certain
conditions, to purchase a number of option shares proportionate to such Underwriter’s initial
commitment as indicated in the preceding table.

The Representatives have informed the Company that they did not confirm sales to accounts over
which they exercise discretionary authority in excess of 5% of the number of shares of Common Stock

offered hereby.

The Company, its officers, directors, stockholders with registration rights and certain other
stockholders, have agreed not to offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of
Common Stock or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock for the 180-day
Lockup Period without the prior written consent of Hambrecht & Quist LLC and provided that the
Company may grant options and issue shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of options under the
1996 Stock Incentive Plan, the Omnibus Plar and the Director Plan. See “Shares Eligible for Future
Sale.”

Certain persons participating in this offering may overallot or affect transactions which stabilize,
maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the Common Stock of the Company at levels above
those which might otherwise prevail in the open market, including by entering stabiliring bids,
effecting syndicate covering transactions or imposing penalty bids. A stabilizing bid means the placing
of an: bid or effecting of any purchase, for the purpose of pegging. fixing or maintaining the price of
the Common Stock of the Company. A syndicate covering transaction means the placing of any bid on
behalf of the underwriting syndicate or the effecting of any purchase to reduce a short position created
in connection with the offering. A penalty bid means an arrangement that permits the Underwriters to
reclaim a selling concession from a syndicate member in connection with the offering when the
Commeon Stock of the Company sold by the syndicate member is purchased in syndicate covering
transactions. Such transactions may be effected on the Nasdaq Stock Market, in the over-the-counter
market, or otherwise. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

In july 1996, H&Q Star Vending Investors, LP. purchased approximately 243,030 shares of the
Company's Series A Preferred Stock for approximately $2.0 million, as part of a financing in which the
Company sold an aggregate of approximately 911,360 shares of Series A Preferred Stock to a group of
22 investors for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $7.5 million. Hambrecht & Quist
Management Ciiporation and H&Q Star Vending Investment Management, LL.C. are the general
partners of H&Q Star Vending Investors, L.P. Hambrecht & Quist Management Corporation s a
wholly ocwned subsidiary of Hambrecht & Quist California. which also owns 99% of Hambrecht &
Quist LLC. The interests of H&Q Star Vending Investment Management, L.L.C. are beneficially owned
by persons affiliated with Hambrecht & Quist LLC, including its Presidert and Chief Executive Officer.

LECAL MATTERS

The validity of the Common Stock offered hereby will be passed upon for the Company by
Gunderson Dettmer Stough Villeneuve Franklin & Hachigian, LLP (“Gunderson Dettmer”). Menlo
Park, California. Certain legal matters in connection with the offering will be passed upon for the
Underwriters by Wilson Sonsinl Goodrich & Rosati, Professional Corporation, Palo Alto, California. A
partnership including partners of Gunderson Dettmer is a partner in H&Q Star Vending Investors,
L.P., a stockholder in the Compan), and as a result maintains an indirect beneficial interest in 2.736
shares of the Company’s Common Stock.




EXPERTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements of STAR Telecommunications. inc. as of December 31,
1995 and 1996 and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 1996, included in
this Prospectus and elsewhere in this Registration Statement have been audited by Arthur Andersen
LLP, independent public accountants, as set forth in their reports with respect thereto, and are
included herein in reliance upon the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and suditing in

giving said reports.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Company has fled with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “"Commission™),
Washington, D.C. 20549, a Registration Statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to
the Common Stock offered hereby. This Prospectus does not contain all of the information set forth in
the Registration Statement and the exhibits and schedules to the Registration Statement. For further
information with respect to the Company and such Common Stock offered hereby. reference is made
to the Registration Statement and the exhibits and schedules filed as a part of the Registration
Statement. Statements contained in this Prospectus concerning the contents of any contract or any
other document referred to are not necessarily complete; reference is made in each instance to the
copy of such contract or document filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement. Each such
statement is qualified in all respects by such reference to such exhibit. The Registration Statement,
including exhibits and schedules thereto, may be inspected without charge at the Commission’s
principal office in Washington, D.C., and copies of all or any part thereof may be obtained from such
office after payment of fees prescribed by the Commission. The Commission maintains a Web- site that
contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding registrants that
file electronically with the Commission at http:// www.sec.gov.




(This page intentionally left blank)







 — ———

No dealer, salesperson, or other person has
been authorized to give any information or to
make any representations other than those con.
tained in this Prospectus and, if given or made,
such information or representations must not be
relied upon as having been authorized by the
Company, the Selling Stockholders or the
Underwriters. This Prospectus does not consti-
tute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to
buy to any person in any jurisdiction in which
such offer or solicitation would be unlawful or
to any person to whom it is unlawful. Neither
the delivery of this Prospectus nor any offer or
sale made hereunder shall, under any circum-

plication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the Company or
that the information contained herein is correct
as of any time subsequent to the date hereof.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and § ockholders
of STAR Telecommunications, Inc.:

We have sudited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of STAR Telecommunications,
Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiary as of December 31, 1995 and 1996, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 1096, These Bnancial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits. .

We conducted our audits in sccordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
Mmﬁﬂﬂﬂnmdm&lmﬂttumwlmmulbwl whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An sudit includes examining. on a test basis.
mm&nmunquuthwmuMmdhduimidu
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

the overall inancial statement presentstion. We believe that our audits provide a reasona-
ble basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the Snancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects.
the financial position of STAR Telecommunications, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 1995 and
1996, and the results of their operations and their cash Bows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 1996 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 10, 1997
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Pro-Forma
{See Note )
December 31, March 31, March 31.
1993 1990 1997 1967
iunsudited)
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .......... § 164,000 $ 1,716,000 § 766,000 $ 766,000
Short-term investments.............. - 1,630,000 - —
Accounts receivable, nct of
sllowance of $208,000
and $5,733.000 at December 31
1995 and twd
$4,862,000 at L AT e iies 10,046,000 22,888,000 32,870,000 32,679,000
Receivable from related parties ..... 50,000 115,000 129,000 129,000
Prepaid expenses and other assets . .. 84,000 1,729,000 2,120,000 2,120,000
Prepaid taXes . ....vvvveenenrannnnn. - 677,000 591,000 501.000
Total current assets .......... _10,344.000 _28,758,000 J6.485.000 36.485.000
Property and Equipment: “
Operating equipment .............. 1,353,000 8,653,000 11,448,000 11,448,000
Leasehold improvements ........... 370,000 4,214,000 4,299,000 4,299,000
Computer equipment ... .. .. Gl 187,000 1,604,000 1,600,000 1,690,000
Furniture and fixtures............... 61,000 435,000 650,000 650,000
1,971,000 14,906,000 15,087,000 18,087,000
Less-accumulated depreciation and
AMOTZRHON . .vvvsvivsrernnnnss (128.000) _(1.201,000) _(1.924,000) _(1.924.000)
l&m lgg?ﬂﬁlm 16,163,000 16.163,000
Other Assets:
Investments ......coovvvivevnasnnss —_ 153,000 153,000 153,000
Y N s N Se e 682000 5630000 5569000 5.560.000
Oher «.aviviisnssdl maras e X — 428,000 666,000 666,000
682,000 6211000 _ 6.388,000 6,388,000
Total assets ...........cconune uuﬂg uu.srﬁnw m&m $.59.036.000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
F-3




STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Revolving lines of credit...................
Revolving lines of credit with stockholder. ..
Current portion of long-term debt..........
Current portion of capital lease obligations. .
payable

Long-Term Lisbilities:
Long-term debt. net of current portion .....
Capital lease obligations, net of current

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 5)

Stockholders’
Preferred Stock § 001 par vllue
Authorized — 1,367,050 shares
Issued and outstanding —
1,367,047 shares at December 31, 1996
and March 31, 1997 and none in
Pro-Forma 1997 ........covvvvnninnves
Common Stock 8.001 par value:
Authorized — 30,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding —
9,000,000 shares at December 31, 1985
and 10,914,396 shares at December 31,
1996 and March 31, 1997 and 11,825.756
inProForma lO07 .. .ovvnvsnnnnnnares
Additional paid-in capital ..................
Deferred compensation ...............c000.
Retained deficit ....o0ocovvvvvvrnnninnannns
Stockholders" equity ....................
Total liabilities and stockholders’

OGRULY . 5 ssnveriesarnsnniisinnnns

Pro-Forma
(See Note 9)
December 11, Mareh 31. March 31,
1995 1006 1967 1997
tunaudited)

$ 1,330,000 § 7814000 § 5342000 § 5342.000

1,108,000 26.000 —_ —

— 267,000 460,000 460.000

143,000 627,000 1,246.000 1,246.000

8,515,000 6,260,000 20255000 20,255.000

476,000 19,494,000 15895000 15695.000

B2.000 1.621.000 1.650,000 1,650,000

11,744.000 38,300000 44848000 44.848.000

_ 466,000 400,000 400,000

712,000 4,808,000 5,117,000 5,117,000

-_— 116,000 35,000 35,000

— — 63,000 63,000

— 85,000 234.000 234.000

712.000 5,478,000 5.849.000 5.849.000

— 1,000 1,000 —_

9.000 11.000 11.000 12,000

1,004,000 13837000 13,637,000 13.637.000
- (118,000) (98,000) (98,000)
(690.000) (6.644.000) (52120C0) (5.212.000)

413,000 6.887.000 §.339.000 5.330.000

§12.860.000 $48.674.000 mioau.um £50,036.000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets.
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended
Years Ended December 31, Mareh 31.
1994 1008 1994 1090 1997
(unaudited )
T R s T § 176,000 $16,125,000 8§208,086,000 835.667.000 §71,008.000
Costofservices ................. — 15357& 188,430,000 J32.285.000 63.738.000
Grossprofit................. 176,000 1,768,000 19,656,000 3,381,000 7.270.,000
1l al and |
Selling,
dnlm'n expenses . ..... 200000 2,063,000 24087000 1,803,000  4.530,000
Depreciation and amortization. . — 128.000 1,073.000 108,000 722.000

200000 _ 21901000 _ 25.160000 _ 1911000 _ 5.252.000

Income (loss) from operations _(114,000) _ (423.000) _ (5,504.000) _ 1470000 _ 2.018.000
Other income (expense):

Interest income .............. — - 83,000 -_— 21,000
Interest expense .............. — (64,000) (589,000) (78.000)  (369.000)
Loss on investment ............ (7.,000) (60,000) — — .
Legal settlement ......... s - - (100,000) — -
Other . . s e — — — — 48,000
(7.000)  (144.000) (606.000) (78.000) __ (300.,000)
Income (hﬂ&befnn
provision for income
SRR 5 i i arsrananares (121,000) (567,000) (6,110,000) 1,382,000 1,718,000
Provision for income taxes
T il 2 PR S48 O Reets 1,000 1.000 534.000 544.000 286,000
Net income (loss) ..........c00us lllﬂ.ﬂ(ﬁ) ) ilﬂﬂﬁmﬂl ] iﬁiﬂmﬂ) § 848000 § Lﬂﬂm
Pro forma net income (loss) per
common Share ..........oc0u.s (054) 8 008 3§ 0.11
Weighted average ber of
::r‘mm.ahm ::: to mmpuu
Pro forma earnings per share .. 12,198,000 11,281,000 12825000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated siatements.
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED ST. ATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 1004, 1995 and 1096
mﬂfw&lﬂmm&rﬂh‘wﬂﬂhﬂ. 1007
Preferred Stock Commen Stock ”‘w Deforred ."_..“"‘"-
Shares Amoust Shares Amoust _Capital Compenmtion _(Defleit) Total
Balance, December 31, 1963 - - -8 =10 - 8 - 8 - -
lssuance of common N3 g - - B100B10 8000 £.000 - - 10,000
Dot 8008 o e sad se s ok ABAN ER S S e i = — i - - (122.000) __ (122.000)
Balance, December 31, 1994.......... - = 100810 5.000 2,000 - (122,000}  (112.000)
Lssusnce of common stock ........-.. P - §96.100 000 102.000 - - 163,000
Conversion of debt to equity .. ....... - - - - 90,000 - - 90,000
NOt I8 oo vsaenvsesnssipassnnnaases - = - - - - (568.000) __(568,000)
Balance, December 31, 1888.......... - = 9,000,000 9,000 1,084.000 - {660,000) 411,000
Effiect of termination of the
election ... - - - - {690.000) - 690,000 -

Compenastion espense relaling to

stock OPHIONS . ... ovoaasinrnes s - - - - 164,000 (118,000) — 50,000
Lusuance of common stock ......o0o0 —- — 181436 2000 5588000 - - 5588000
lisuance of preforred stoek .......... 1087047 1,000 - - TA90 000 .- — 7500000
Net INCOME . .ccovarssassinaroatnns — — - - - - {6.644.000) (6,644,000
Balance. December 31, 1998.......... 167047 1000 10914308 11,000 13,637,000 (118,000) (6.644.000) 6887000

relating to

e -E O ~ o - mew
Nt INCOME .. .onssransnrsssnsnasess — — — —_ = — 1,432 000 1,432,000
Balance, March 31, 1997

{ | R T T 1.387.047 81,000 lgli.ﬂ M ln.mg uﬂ! lil.lllﬂ] § 5.359.000

mmﬁl‘nﬂﬂﬂwpﬂiﬂﬂtﬂmﬂdﬂﬂdﬂﬂmu
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Menths
Yesrs Ended March 31,
1994 150 1094 1997
(ensadited )
Cash Flows From Onerating Activities:
Net income (loss) ........c0vnunn... B(122.000) § (568,000) § (6.644000) § 545000 8 1432000
to reconcile
loss) to net w by (used
snd amortization . ..... - 148,000 LOT73,000 108,000 TZ2.000
h“m.ittilil'|'-’§ 1” m — — op
expense relating to
OPHORS ..cvovenncnnansures — - 50,000 - 20,000
Provision for doubtful accounts .. .. - 208,000 15,581,000 416,000 1,611,000
Deferred income tanes .. ........... - - - (203,000) -
............ —_ — 118,000 12.000 (81,000)
Decrease [hu-i in sssety:
BsEssssEmEEE - "."Ml "-m’ tlm} {llmJ
Receivable from relsted parties - (50,000) (65,000) 50,000 (14,000)
Prepaid expenses and other assets — (84.000) (1,645,000) (676,000) (301,000)
Mhﬂ ..................... - — (677,000) - 86,000
Deposits......... N R .o (E3000) (650.000)  (4.948,000) (349,000) 61,000
Increase (decrease) In liabilities:
Accounts paysble ..... Seaskdsnek 32000 8476000 (L.255000) 7.591.000 13995000
Accrued line costs........o00uvuis - 476,000 19,018,000 (464,000) _(3.509,000)
Accrued eXpPenSes .......iuviannins £0,000 62,000 1,536,000 £9.000
Taxespayable..........co00iuuunee — — - 747,000 =
Net cash pwud by (used in)
---------- ~{86000) _(2185000) _ (7.3280000) __ (280000) __2.260.000
Cash rlows From m
Capital expenditures........ i ima s e (21.000) ()1.082.000) (7.538,000) (371,000) (£,127,000)
Purchases of investments, net......... { — (1.783,000) — 1,630,000
hmhmmmn. i e e IMI iy {lm:
Increase in other long-term - — £4.000 176,000 146.000
Net cash used In investing
................... (101,000) _(1.062000) _ (9.961.000) _ (105000) _  (526.000)
Cash Flows From : 3
Borrowings under lines of credit ...... — 1,480,000 14,474,000 100,000 21,345,000
Repayments under lines of credit ..... . - (130,000) (7.990,000) (100,000) (23.817.000)
under lines of credit with
POCKhOMIBY . . oo risirvoninsnsnnss 192,000 3,418,000 701,000 17,000 -
Repayments under lines of credit with
l«u .,....,......m ..... — (1,316.000) (1.573,000) {16,000) :m)
rowings Gades h‘-t-'- " —_— — B00,000 = 83,000
Repayments under debt — - (67,000) - (66,000)
Payment® under lease obligations _— {33,000) {317,000) {33,000) (325.000)
lssuance of common stock............ - 5.568.000 1,500,000 -
Issuance of preferred stock . .......... = = 750000 - -
Net cash leiﬂ by iﬂ‘ in)
financing sctivities .......... _ 808000 _ 3396000 _ 18796000 _ 1458000 _ (2.696,000)
Increase (decrease) in cash and ﬂ
B oo RO L4111 ‘ . 15,000 149,000 1,555,000 984,000 (853.000)
-------- R R R R R TR EEE TR NI lm l“'!m

o o e, o g . L5000 L Jbume Lifleses ILiame i_reiom

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated statements.
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 1906

1. Nature of Busines

STAR Telecommunications, Inc. and subsidiary (the Company or STAR), a Delaware corporation.
ummmmumwmmmpuwummmﬂdmm
distance services to US. ﬂmummmwy currently
MU&WWMWMMM&“W“&MW
MWWMWWWWMMMM

wywwwummmwﬂummm-
During the six months ended June Iﬂ.ﬂnﬁomrphuﬂymduumlfm.:nd
wmmmmmmmumm.humlmm
Wvuﬂ“twhﬂrﬂwwlﬂﬂlmw)hmw

mmwwmummmmuanurm-
mm.ﬂmﬁymmnnwwdmmﬂrmmm:
intercompany accounts and transactions which were not material during 1996. ;

mcmrnmd:nmwhrlmdimuhcomuhmuuhntheumof
mewhmhpmmmhdddmmuumdmuo
Mndll.ﬂ.ﬂwhrﬂnmnn“mm.lﬂsudlmwv,mCnnpm]
had no revenue from fnance charges during 1994.

Thomwmmmulspemlufthawmmdlubdmﬂlrthcmmuhte
in maklig its WMMM Communications and Hi-Rim Communications, Inc.,
mWhMWhﬁuﬂfﬂhmmanlm.muummt
and lsmumﬂummﬁmmwmmmy.nﬂmmﬁmdnmthm
lu;enmovuﬂLwﬂunmmudﬂpeuntnfmuﬂlmmuefnrtheyw.'rhe
twonmh:whdmfwﬂnrmmddnmmhull. lmwu&sﬂd?pmmtd
revenue from late charges for the year. .

¢. Cost of Services

Cost of services represents direct charges from vendors that the Company incurs to deliver service
to its customers. These include leasing costs for the dedicated phone lines which form the Company's
network and rate-per-minute charges from other carriers that terminate international trafic on behalf

of the Company.

d Mﬁrmmmm

At the end of 1996, the Company entered into operating agreements with telecommunication
cﬁmmhﬁpmmwwhhbiutummﬂmdmmﬂ:uhuhmdmd
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES .0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

terminated on the Company’s network. The Company records international settlement revenues and
related costs as the traffic is recorded in the switch. For the year ended December 31, 1096, $178,000 in

revenue has been recorded from foreign customers.

¢. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation and amortization of property and
equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Operating equipment . ... c..ooivaiiiiiiiiirnrsirnseanians 5-25 years
Leasehold improvements .. .........vovvivennrnrernnnnsnnss Life of lease
Computer equipment ..........covuiiiiiiiiiiiriiiiiiiinns J years
Furniture and Btures ........cocoveen veersrorsinssnsnnes 5 years

Operating equipment includes assets financed under capital lease obligations of $888,000 at
December 31, 19095 and 85,885,000 at December 31, 1096. Operating equipment at December 31, 1996
also includes two Indefeasible Rights of Use (IRU) in cable systems amounting to $110,000 and one
interest in an international cable amounting to $148,000. These assets are amortized over the life of the

agreements of 14 to 25 years.
and betterment:, renewals and extraordinary repairs that extend the life of the asset

Replacements
are capitalized; other repairs and maintenance are expensed. The cost and accumulated depreciation
applicable to assets sold or retired are removed from the accounts and the gain or loss on disposition is

recognized in other income or expense.

f Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other assets, revolving lines of
credili.. natv:: payable, capital lease obligations, accounts payable, and accrued lisbilities approximate
their fair value.

g Statements of Cash Flows

During the years ended December 31, 1965 and 1096, cash paid for interest was $43,000 and
$530,000, respectively. For the same periods, cash paid for income taxes amounted to $1,000 and
$1,211,000, respectively. The Company paid no cash for interest or income taxes during 1994.

Non-cash investing and finsncing activities are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

1994 1093 1906
Equipment purchased through capital leases ............ — § 888,000 $5,097.000
Debt converted to equity ........cocvviiiiiraniinanis — 1,093,000 Pl

These non-cash transactions are excluded from the statements of cash flows.
Cash equivalents consist primarily of money market accounts. The Company considers all highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

h. Stock Split

On January 23, 1096, the Board of Directors authorized an increase to the authorized number of
common shares from 10,000 to 100,000,000 and effected a 8,100.8100-for-1 stock split of the Company’s

T



STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

urucdmdwmn&qhmﬂmmmﬁmhwbmmbmedmrﬂmthuﬁd
of the stock split.

On July 22, 1006, the Company changed the par value of its common stock from 80.01 per share to
$0.001 per share. All common shares have been retroactively restated to reflect the effect of this

change (also see Note 10f for post year-end restructuring and stock split).

i. Concentrations of Risk

The Company’s two largest customers sccount for approximately 44 percent and 29 percent of
gross accounts receivable at December 31, 1095 and 1006, respectively. The Company's largest
customer in 1005 and 1098 was Cherry Communications, Inc. The Company’s second largest customer
in 1005 was Cable & Wireless and the Company's second largest customer in 1996 was Hi-Rim
Communications, Inc. Each of these customers represents more than 10 percent of gross accounts
receivable st December 31, 1905 but only one customer represents more than 10 percent of accounts
receivable in 1996. These customers represent approximately 47 percent of revenues during the year
=ndodMmberﬂl.lﬂmdﬂpmtduﬂﬂmhrthmn&dﬂmb«&l,lm.En:l:of
thmmltomwum&ulﬁpmuldnhin-lﬂﬁwhlhonlyomwumuthm
IOWtﬂﬁhlﬂMWrmmcﬂMdhmm
Company analyzes daily trafic patterns and concludes whether or not the customer’s credit status
ju:l:iﬂesthtﬂ.ﬁevﬁuﬂhmh&mﬂtnmm“-vﬂmlnrﬂ:ﬂamh
credi hmory.thetnluruﬂwdbrthu&mpmr'lMtthhndumdtnpmeulfurtbwhuﬂdupd
Ihemoeinhle&mthum.m&-pur'lmrudoub&nlmuhbnadonmﬂnl
market conditions.

Purchases from the three largest vendors for the year ended December 31, 1995 amounted to 49
mntdwwmm&ua-fmmm&rmmmmmm.
1996 amounted to 51 percent of total purchases.

Included in the Company's balance sheet at December 31, 1995 and 1996, are the net assets of the
Company's international telecommunication switching equipment which is located in Los Angeles at a
cost of $1,288,000 at December 31, 1095 and in Los Angeles and New York at a cost of $5,205,000 at
mbemmbtrﬂl. 1996. In addition, approximately $179,000 of equipment is located in foreign countries at

31, 1696,

j. Deporite arnd Other Asseta

Deposits represent payments made to long distance providers to secure lower rates. These
depmiunemhndtdmlppﬂedmfmmmndlreulofllimlﬂionreurvea:
December 31, 1006. Other assets represents initial public offering expenses.

k. Net Loss Per Common Share

hofmmnﬂhuwm;hﬂifmtheywmddboumbual.lmuhudn the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding giving effect of the conversion of the
preferred stock (see Note 9). Per share information was computed pursuant to the rules of the
Secuﬂuumdmmmmhdm{lﬂm.whchnqm&ummmwhym
Company during the twelve months immediately preceding the Company’s initial public offering plus
the nnmhﬁe_ummﬂhwmmwthmldmwduﬂu&emm
be included in the calculation of the shares outstanding using the treasury stock method from the
beginning of all periods presented.

Hinoridm”lhmmmprmndfurlﬂwhdsimmnhmumnﬂ
meaningful in light of the conversion of the preferred stock.
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

The following schedule summarizes the information used to compute pro forma net loss per
common share for the year ended December 31, 1996:

N I L T e i T as s sansrsniersras nesasses snneduyanismmns §(6.644,000)
Weighted average common shares outstanding ... ........ccoovvvnnnn. 10.575,000
Effect of stock options pursuant to SEC rules .......cooooviininnannns 1,095,000
Conversion of preferred stock............. e A A L A 528,000
Weighted average number of common shares used to compute net loss

T A S YT T T T T T T pe 12,198,000
Pro forma net loss per common share . ............cccovvivennniinnes ] (0.54)

hu&mnﬁhﬁpnmmﬁnnuﬂuuthem;ﬂ.ﬂmﬂm»fpu&nduo&
into common stock upon the effectiveness of the initial public offering at a rate of three preferred
shares to two common shares.

L Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally sccepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
uwuuddeﬁdmdmndmmmndlhblﬁuunthdnunlmeﬂmm
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expcnses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

m. Recently lssued Accounting Stendards

In March 1995, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of,” which requires impairment losses to be recorded on long-lived
assets used in operations when indications of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows
estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the assets’ carrying amounts. The Company
adopted SFAS 121 during 1995 which had no impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations.

In October 1095, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.”
SFAS 123 encourages, but does not require, a fair value based method of accounting for employee
stock options or similar equity instruments. It also allows an entity to elect to continue to measure
compensatinn ~ost under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees,” but requires pro forma disclosure of net income and earnings per share as if the
fair value based method had been applied. The Company adopted this standard in 1696, electing to
measure compensation cost under APB 25 and complying with the pro forma disclosure requirements.
Therefore, the adoption of SFAS 123 had little impact on the Company’s financial position or results of
operations.

3. Lines of Credit
a. Bank Lines of Credit
On November 13, 1005, the Company entered into an agreement for a one-year §1 million
revolving credit facility,. On October 4, 1996 the bank increased the revolving credit facility to
$12 million, including draws on the line and outstanding letters of credit, and extended it to May 1,
1997 (also see Note 10e). Any borrowings under this facility are limited by the balance in eligible
accounts receivable, as defined, and bear interest at the prime rate plus 1 percent (9.25 percent at
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

December 31, 1006). The agreement allows the Company to convert certain amounts into short-term
obligations that bear interest at the bank's LIBOR rate plus 3.5 percent (0.1 percent at December 31,
1996) or the bank's cost of fund's rate plus 3.5 percent at the time of funding. Upon maturity of these
short-term obligations. the interest rate on these borrowings converts back to prime plus | percent.
This facility is collateralized by virtually all assets of the Company. Performance under the revolving
credit facility has been guaranteed up to 810 million by the majority stockholder and officer of the
Company. The agreement contains certain fnancial and non-financial covenants which include, among
other restrictions, maintenance of minimum levels of net income, tangible effective net worth and
working capital. At December 31, 1996, there were no unused amounts available to be borrowed
against this line of credit. In addition, the bank issued a waiver to cure non-compliance under the
tangible effective net worth, current ratio, ratio of total lisbilities to tangible effective net worth. net
income after taxes for the fourth quarter of 1096 and the stockholder subordination covenants for the
period ended December 31, 1996 and continuing through March 30, 1997. when new covenants came
into effect.

The Company entered into a one-year $100,000 revolving line of credit on July 19, 1965. This
facility's interest rate was the prime rate plus 1 percent and it was paid off and terminated on July 19,
19066,

The weighted average interest rate on the above facilities during the year ended December 31,
1995 and 1996 was 10.2]1 percent and 9.68 percent, respectively.

b. Lines of Credit with Stockholder

At December 31, 1096, the Company's revolving lines of credit with the majority stockholder and
chief executive officer of the Company totaled §1,448,000 and mature on March 30, 1998, Interest is
payaole at maturity at a rate of 9 percent. There was $1,.422,000 available to be borrowed against these
lines of credit at December 31, 1096. The Company recognized interest expense relating to this debt of
$0, $11,000 and $34.000 for the years ended December 31, 1094, 1995 and 1996, respectively.

4. Long-Term Debt
a. Note Payable

On October 4, 1996, the Company entered into an $800,000 variable rate installment note with a
bank. The agreement calls for monthly payments of $22.222 plus interest at the prime rate plus 1.5
percent (.75 percent at December 31, 1996). The note is due in full by October 1, 1999 and is
collateralized by related equipment of the Company with a cost of $787,000.
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

b. Capital Lease Obligation

The Company leases various telecommunications equipment under capital lease arrangements.
Minimum future lease payments under these capital leases at December 31, 1996 are as follows:

Yeur p 1
T A S S R PP §1,490,000
)L e T O RGP A g e S P 1,490,000
D 5T s e a0 T B ) U B 1,480,000
I T e Wi g e e ok e 1,408,000
T N 081,000
ORI - i i s T e M e AR A TR T e e 748,000
7,607,000
Less: Amount representing interest ............c00viiniiinnniiianes 1,972.000
5,635,000
L OErrail DO o u s o vin s viisia s it e e e W 7,000
$4.808.000

Accumulated amortization related to assets fnanced under capital leases was $50,000 and $324,000
at December 31, 1995 and 1996, respectively. The Company had no assets financed under capital leases
during 1094,

5. C mmitments and Contingencies
a. Operating Leases

The Company leases office space, dedicated private telephone lines, equipment and other items
under various agreements expiring through 2006. At December 31, 1996, the minimum aggregate
payments under non-cancelable operating leases are summarized as follows:

Office Facilition Telscommunications -
Yoar Ending December 31, snd Equipment  Focllities and Equipment  __ Total
1007 v vuuan MR s T § 393,000 § 1,203,000 § 1,656,000
1908 ........... BRI e A 364,000 1,501,000 1,955,000
| T ) S RS N 1 309,000 1,710,000 2,019,000
D000 i diantaminssboriiniin e 241,000 1,710,000 1,851,000
BODL . ivciiinrintrosisennisne s 214,000 1,441,000 1,655,000
Thereafter .........ccvvvinvanes 281,000 3,616,000 3,897,000

T R YT R TENTY

Office facility and equipment rent expense for the years ended December 11, 1994, 1995 and 1996
was approximately $7,000, $125,000 and $681,000, respectively. Telecommunications facility and
equipment rent expense was approximately $604,000 in 1995 and $7,260,000 in 1996 and is included in
cost of services in the accompanying statements of operations.

b. Employment Agreements

During 1906, the Company entered into employment sgreements with several employees and
amended the employment agreement of the Company president. Some of these agreements provide for
a continuation of salaries in the event of a termination, with or without cause, following a change in
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

control of the Company. One agreement provides for a guaranteed salary continuation of at least six
months after termination and another, under certain conditions, for a payment of at least §1,500,000 in
the event of a change in control of the Company.

The Company entered into a consulting agreement on February 29, 1996 which was converted to
an employment agreement on May 1. 1996. The employment agreement is with an officer of the
Compeny. It is for a two year period and provides for continuation of salary and certain benefits for up
to 12 months after termination. The Company also entered into two separate stock option agreements
with this officer (see Note 8).

During 1996, the Company expensed $116,000 of deferred compensation ;-clmn; to these
agreements.

¢ Purchase Commitmenta

mwyhﬂwmmmmumh long distance carriers to pay
minimum usage charges of approximately $51.995.000. 81 1,685,000 and $900,000 for the twelve months
ending December 31, 1997, 1998 and 1999, respectively. The Company anticipates exceeding the
minimum usage volume with these vendors.

d. Letters of Credit

increased cash dsposit. The Company was granted summary judgment on CTS's First Amended
Complaint claims on May 14, 1997. The Company intends to pursue its claim against CTS and to
vigorously defend against any potential appeals by CTS. There can be no assurance. however, that the
Company will prevail either in its collection of damages or ind fern ! s eain: an' potential appeals
by CTS. In addition, whether or not the Company is able to collect its damages or were to prevail in
any putenﬂnlqpuh.n@heolheﬂuprmmdwd could be time consuming and costly. Since
Cﬁ'smm&hwﬂwwwmmﬂﬂdthﬂpnnﬂwmwﬂl.t
range of loss cannot be determined.

Durin;lﬂﬂ.lheCompmrunledIWIwﬂh a former consultant to the Company for a
payment of $100,000.

f Telecommunications Legislation Revisions

In the United States, the Federal Communications Commission and relevant state Public Service
&m%mhwthwwtommm-mﬂhm“mﬁwh.md
transmission Mmﬂhmﬂmn&rﬂchlhww'lm“w
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — {Continued)

Legislation that substantially revised the U.S. Communications Act of 1934 was signed into law on
February 8, 1996. The legislation has specific guidelines under which the regional operating companies
(RBOCs) can provide long distance services, which will permit the REOCs to compete with the
Company in providing domestic and international long distance services. Further, the legislation.
among other things, opens local service markets to competition from any entity (including long
distance carriers, such as AT&T, cable television companies and utilities)

Because the legislation opens the Company's markets to additional competition, particularly from
the RBOCs, the Company’s ability to compete may be affected. Moreover, as a result of and to
implement the legislation, certain federal and other governmental regulstions will be amended or
modified, and any such amendment or modification could have an effect on the Company's business,
results of operations and financial condition.

6. Related Party Transactions

The majority stockholder and chief executive officer of the Company owns two-thirds of Star Aero
Services, Inc. (Star Aero). Star Aero’s principal assets represent mrplanes which it provides to the
Company for business travel on an as nesded basis. In return, the Company pays for costs related to
the airplanes. Star Aero reimburses the Company for certain costs relating to the maintenance of the
planes. For the years ended December 31, 1004, 1005 and 1996, the Company paid 80, $144,000 and
$68,000, respectively, in costs related to the use of Star Aero services. As of December 31, 1995 and
1996, the Company has a receivable from Star Aero of $50,000 and $115,000, respectively.

During 1905, the Company Invested $128,000 in a company related to an employee of STAR and
purchased services from that company in the amount of $167,000. During 1995 and 1996, the Company
pu. chased consulting services from a company owned by a board member in the amount of $60,000
and $154,000, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 1995 and 1996, the Company also
provided long distance telephone service to a company controlled by another board member in the
amount of $43,000 and $250,000 respectively. During 1096, the Company purchased telecommunication
services from three companies controlled by a Company executive for §240.000 and made up front
payments in the amount of $758,000, which are included in deposits in the sccompanying financial
statements at December 31, 1996. -

7. Income Taxes

Through December 31, 1005, the Company had elected to be taxed as an S-Corporation for both
federal and state income tax purposes. While the election was in effect, all taxable income, deductions,
Iwumdcrﬂuﬂmmmymhduﬂhhmmwdhﬁmh&um;lr.
for fodeial income tax purposes, no tax benefit, lisbility or provision has been reflected in the
accompanying financial statements at December 31, 1904 and 1995 and for the years then ended. For
state tax purposes, an S-Corporation is subject to a 1.5 percent tax on taxable income, with a minimum
tax of approzimately $1,000 annually. Effective January 1, 1906, the Company terminated its
S-Corporation election and is now taxable as a C-Corporation. The Company sccounts for income
taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” under which deferred assets
and liabilities are provided on differences between financial reporting and taxable income using
enacted tax rates. Deferred income tax expenses or credits are based on the changes in deferred
income tax assets or labilities from period to period.

Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets may be recognized for temporasy differences that will
result in deductible amounts in future periods. A valuation allowance is recognized if on the weight of
available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not
be realized.
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There is no assurance that the Company will continue to be profitable in future periods, therefore.
nnhﬁudhwnuhhnmmiﬂdbrthhﬂmtofﬂudu&mdmfwmhpmod

presented.

The components of the net deferred tax assets at December 31, 1095 and 1996 are as follows:

1983 18
Histerical Pro Forms 19ed

Deferred tax asset:

Allowance forbad debts...........ccoovivieininnnn. $ 3000 $83000 83,104,000

Accroed line cost . ..........cccvniriiiaiieiaiiesaans — - 201,000

Vacation accrual . ............. e D e —_ — 24,000

Mmm lllll IR NN N B N R - f— ‘TOM

MM-Illtlitl R N A ] -— = m

Accruod INBerest. ..........o0vvvenraiaiansniirananss - 6,000 e

State INCOMO LAXSS .. ..ovovurrccceisissssnsassnnannns — — 48,000

3000 89,000 3,449,000
Deferred tax liability:

Depreciation ......ovcovrvnrssransrssnsns WA (1,000) (50.000) _ (565,000)
S‘IIM ------------- (AR E RN R LR [ R R L !!m mim m
Valuation reserve ............ooovins AR e R (2.000) (30.,000) (2884.000)
N“me --------------- FeasEsEEEsEERBEBEN ! S ! — ' —
The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 1994, 1995 and 1006 are as

follows:
1994 1998 ibes
Current -Federal tames ..........oovvrvveressnssnncnannss $} — § — 8§383,000
- State taxes....... GNP  N Spet ——— (1,000 1,000 _141,000
1000 1,000 534,000
Deferred -Federal taxes .......ccccicernannnrnnnniassssssnss — - -—
e D CBEBE . < s s ressarasasnrsasnssdsssssanann s nEs — — —
Provision for INCOME LRXES ... ...cvvvnrreeerssoonscsssnnrnsss $1,000 81,000 $1,000 m

There is no difference between historical and pro forma provision for income taxes for the years
ended December 31, 1994 and 1995 because the amount of provision is the minimum state taxes

payable.
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Differences between the provision for income taxes and income taxes at the statutory federal
income tax rate for the years ended December 31, 1094, 1905 and 1996 are as follows:

Historscal Pro Forma 1996
1994 1965 1994 LS Amounl Percent
Income taxes at the statutory federal
s T e B i SRR $§ — § — $(41,000) $(193,000) $(2.077,000) (34.0)%
State income taxes, net of foderal '
income tax effect ................. 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 (375,000) (6.1)%
Change in valuation reserve ,........ - — - - 2882000 47.1%
Tax benefits not recognized.......... — — 41,000 193,000 - -
Meals and gifts ..................... — 104000 _1.7%

How o0 3 loo §_iow i soume s

8. STOCK OPTIONS

On January 22, 1906, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan,
which was amended on March 31, 1996, provides for the granting of stock options to purchase up to
720,000 shares of common stock and terminates January 22, 2006. Options granted become exercisable
at a rate of not less than 20 percent per year for five years.

Subsequent to the adoption of the Plan, the Company granted two employees options to purchase
a total of 360,000 shares of the Company’s common stock exercisable at the fair market value of $1.50
per share as determined by the Board of Directors. One-third of the options are exercisable
immediately. The remaining options are exercisable equally on January 2, 1097 and 1008,

In May 1906, the Company issued an additional 337,100 stock options to certain employees and
consultants under the Plan, of which 10,600 were subsequently canceled. The options are exercisable
at fair market value of $3.00 per share at the date of issuance, and vest through August 2000.

In connection with the consulting agreement and subsequent employment agreement with an
o&erﬁme&mr.&&mnymmmmmlowuwml_m
agreement, dated March 1, 1986, provides for 200,000 non-incentive stock options exercisable immedi-
ately. The options are exercisable at fair market value at the date of issuance, which was $2.00 per
share, and expire in 10 years. The second stock option agreement was entered into on May 1, 1096 for
an additions! 209,000 shares to also be issued at $2.00 per share. These options vest half on March 1,
1997 and half on March 1, 1998. These options, which expire in 10 years, may be subject to accelerated
vesting if a change in control occurs, as defined.

On May 15, 1096, the Company granted 100,000 options, valued at $3.00 per share at the date of
issuance to a director. Of these options 34 percent are exercisable immediately. The remaining options
are exercisable equally on May 15, 1997 and 1998,

On May 14, 1996, the Company adopted the 1006 Outside Director Nonstatutory Stock Option
Plan. The number of shares which may be issued under this plan upon exercise of options may not
exceed 200,000 shares. The exercise price of an option is determined by the Board of Directors and
may not be less than 85 percent of the fair market value of the common stock at the time of grant and
has to be 110 percent of the fair market value of the common stock a* the time of grant if the option is
granted to a holder of more than 10 percent of the common stock outstanding. At the discretion of the
administrator, the options vest at s rate of not less than 20 percent per year, which may accelerste
upon a change in control, as defined. The plan expires on May 14, 2008, On May 15, 1996, the Company
issued 40,000 options under this plan at $3.00 per share, which vest immedistely and expire 10 years
from the grant date. S
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

hmlmﬁl&mywmqﬁUMnMpﬂrlhut.udctmﬂnedhythe
mﬂﬂthMnlm“d&uudumﬂmmmmudumwm.
mmammmwmﬂmmmwunmwm
nemyummmmmmmunmmamtmm
mmmumpumwmﬂuvﬂumnd.

smkomldmwhmmhm*-m&wplmunhum

Common A-fh ﬁn
Lessrvod Graat _Optiens Per Share
Balance at December 31, 1985............ —_ - . . —
ﬁdopﬁoadlﬂmmﬂﬂ.... 720,000 720,000 — — P
under 1986 Stock
e PIAD oo cciarnnrsnsaciannanins — (687,100) 697,100 1.50-3.00 1,551,000
Canceled OPHORS . ... oroaeeeserassasssss — 10800  (10,600) 300 (32,000
Options granted outside a plan ........... 500,000 — 500,000 £060-300 1,100,000
of 1996 Outside Director Non
Statutory Stock Option Plan ........... 200,000 200,000 - - -
Granted under 1996 Outside Director Non
Stock Option Plan ........... —  (40,000) 40,000 300 120,000
Adoption of 1996 Supplemental Stock ¥
Plad ..cocvsasonssinssssnnannns 1,000,000 1.000,000 — - —
under 1996 Supplemental
om Plan. ..coonsansnsannneanss — _ (466,000) 466,000 .20 3,821,000
Canceled Options .......coccvvnenrenaces — ___ 2500 (2.500) 8.20 (20,000)
Balance at December 31, 1806............ M M limg $1.50-8.20 w

The Company has elected to adopt FASB No. 123 for disclosure purposes only and applies
amuntluWM{M}OﬂMHn.ﬁudnmemmﬂuhrm
umphwnn&oﬁnuﬂmumlymmmwnpmwmmmdnhﬂn;m
consultant options for the year ended December 31, 1996.

Hdcmnﬁmuaﬂfmﬂwkopﬂmmudadunduthuephubundﬂmindbua&m
:m&umuuhmaw;mmmmdrmnn 123, the Company's
mhﬂhw%ﬁhmmmal.lﬂwwﬂhﬂrdmdthhwu

pro-forma amounts:
Netlom _Low Por Share

Asreported ...uiiveiririnnrniiiinnaniines iR s $(6.644) $(0.54)
S M L O R Ty e 1Y geees B(7,927) $(0.59)

Thfm“ﬂudoﬂmpmthmdu&tdﬁlmmm‘mwmvdu
mcﬂwddnp&lmmmmmwhrﬂuwmwtdnwﬂu
&uhtmmﬂmwmvﬁudmwdmmduwmuﬂom
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)
Because the Company did not have a stock option program prior to 1096, the resulting pro-forma
compensation cost may not be representative of that to be expected in future years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock options at December 31, 1996 and activity during
1996 is presented in the table below:

December 31, 1994
w
| o P

Outstanding at December 31, 1995 ....................... - 5 —
e R R o T T T 1,703,100 $187
M --------------------------- YA EEIrEITIT — ' -
Fm R N T T T N N R R R Illm ﬂw
Expired..........con0en. CPBAeeseas s srranesnannrsranses - $ —
Outstanding at December 31,1996 ....................... 1,680,000 $3.87
Exercisable atendof year ...........coviniinnnnnnnnnns 448,500 225
Weighted average fair value of options granted . ........... $1.94

1,226,500 of the options outstanding at December 31, 1096 have an exercise price between §1.50
and $3.00, a weighted average exercise price of $§2.25 with a weighted sverage remaining contractual
life of 9.5 years and 448,500 of these options are exercisable. 463,500 of the options outstanding have an
exercise price of $5.20 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 9.9 years, none of which
are exercisable.

9. Capital Stock

During 1904, the Company issued 8,100,810 shares of stock to the Company's founder for $10.000.
During 1995, this stockholder converted $990,000 of debt into capital for no additional shares. During 1995,
the Company also issued 809,190 shares to another executive of the Company on conversion of a loan.

On February 23, 1096, the Company sold 999,990 shares of common stock to various investors for
$1.500,000. These stockholders entered into an agreement containing a non-dilution covenant. The
covenant allows the investors to purchese sufficient shares of common stock to maintain their current
interest in the Company in the event of future stock sales. The stock purchase agreement gives the
investors the same rights of first refusal, registration or other rights as the Company may grant to other
stockholders.

On July 12, 1906, the Company sold 914,406 shares of common stock to an investor for $4,068,000.
Concurrent with this stock sale, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement with the
investor. According to this agreement, the Company has to use its best efforts to effect registration of
these shares. The stock purchase agreement also provides for non dilution rights and rights of first
refusal which terminate upon an underwritten public offering of common stock over 85,000,000 and
certain merger transactions.

On July 25, 1996, the Company sold 1,367,047 shares of Series A preferred stock to a group of
investors for $7,500,000, The holders of preferred shares have voting rights and are entitled to receive
annual noncumulative dividends of $0.33 per share, payable only if and when declared by the Board of
Directors. Additional distributions or dividends are to be distributed to common and preferred
shareholders proportionately. These preferred shares also have liquidation preference in the amount
of $5.4863 per share plus declared but unpaid dividends, and may be converted to common stock at a
ratio of 3-for-2 at the option of the holder. In the event of a public offering, as defined, each three such
preferred shares automatically converts to two shares of common stock. See Note 2 for pro forma
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

earnings per share computation assuming the preferred stock had beer converted into common stock
at the beginning of the year.

In connection with this transaction, the Company and buyers of the preferred shares entered into
an investors rights agreement which obligates the Company to £le up to two registration statements to
register such shares. These stockholders also may require the company to file additional registration
statements on Form $-3, subject to certain conditions and limitations.

Holders of approximately 1,914,000 shares of common stock are also entitled to certain registration

rights.

10. Unaudited First Quarter Information

The unaudited financial statements for the three-month periods ended March 31, 1096 and 1997
reflect, in the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include only normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to fairly presont the nancial position, results of operations and changes in
cash flows as of and for the periods presented. These unaudited financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the audited financial statements and related notes thereto. The results for the interim
periods presented are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the full year.

a. Net Income Per Common Share
Net income per common share for the three months ended March 31, 1096 and 1997 are based on
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and the dilutive effect of stock options

Net income per share for each of the three months ended March 31, 1096 and 1097 have been
computed on a pro-forma basis giving effect to the conversion of preferred stock. Historical eamings
per share are not presented, since such amounts are not meaningful in light of the conversion of the
preferred stock (see Note 9).

The following schedule summarizes the information used to compute pro forma net income per
common share:

Three Moatks
— T
. L 4

POk AROOMM s e st osos s svannsponaisbainns . § 848000  § 1432000

Weighted average common shares outstanding . ..........covvviiniss 9,856,000 10,914,000

Conversion of preferred stoek. . ... .oocoveeeiirneiiiiarniiirinnass 230 000 911,000

Dilutive effect of stock options pursuant to SEC Rules. .............. 1,005,000 1,000,000
Weighted average common shares used to compute net income per

‘hﬂ‘l.nﬂ ................... 11,281 _12,825000

Pro forma net income per common share ..............cocvviiuians s 0.08 ] 0.11

b. Provision for Income Tazes
mmhmmr«mmmmwmm.:muhudum
estimated annualized tax rate for the year. The provision for income taxes at March 31, 1997 is based on
taxable income for the three months then ended, because the net deferred tax asset has been fully
reserved.

c. Leases
Rent expense for the three months ended March 31, 1996 and 1997 was approximately $54,000 and
$307,000, respectively.
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d. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

For the three month period ended March 31, 1997, the Company paid taxes of approximately
$200,000. No taxes were paid by the Company in the three month period ended March 31, 1996. The
Company paid interest in the amount of $58,000 and $326,000 in the first three months of 1996 and
1997, respectively. In the first quarter of 1907, 81,053,000 in equipment was purchased under capitsl
leases. These purchases were excluded from the statement of cash lows as a non-cash transaction. No

equipment was purchased under capital leases in the first quarter of 1996.

e. Debt

During the three months ended March 31, 1897, the Company entered into two term loans totaling
$193,000. Both loans bear interest at the prime rate and have interest only payments until the due dates
in June and July 1907,

On April 28, 1897, the Company extended its line of credit through July 1, 1897. At March 31, 1997,
the Company had outstanding letters of credit in the amount of §2 million.

At March 31, 1967, the Company was in default of certair covenants, relating to tangible effective
net worth, total liabilities to tangible effective net worth, ratio of cash flow to fixed charges and
quar-erly expenditures. The bank issued a waiver to cure non-compliance through June 29, 1997.

J. Reincorporation

On January 30, 1997, the Board of Directors approved the merger of STAR Vending. Inc., s Nevada
corporation (d.b.a. STAR Telecommunications, Inc.) with STAR Telecommunications, Inc., a Dela-
ware corporation. All shares of STAR Vending, Inc. were converted into STAR Telecommunications,
Inc. shares at the ratio of 2-for-3 shares.

On March 11, lﬂ?.lhil!wdofﬂlnclmmndmmdmnt to the certificate of
incorporation increasing the number of preferred shares authorized to 5 million upon the consumma-
tion of the initial public offering. ; -

On May 185, 1997, in connection with the initial public offering. the Company reversed the stock
splic by converting all outstanding common shares at the ratio of 3-for-2 shares. The accompanying
financial statements have been retroactively restated to reflect the effect of the related stock splits.

g Stock Options

On January 30, 1097, the Board of Directors approved the 1997 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan to
replace the existing 1996 supplemental plan upon the effective date of the initial public offering. The
plan provides for awards to employees, outside directors and consultants in the form of restricted
shares, stock units, stock options and stock apprecistion rights. The maximum number of shares
available for issuance under this plan may not exceed 500,000 shares plus the number of shares still
unissued under the supplemental option plan. Options granted to any one optionee may not exceed
more than 500,000 common shares per year subject to certain adjustments. Incentive stock options may
not have a term of more than 10 years from the date of grant.

On January 30, 1997, the Board of Directors granted 56,327 incentive stock options to vest over
four years and 15,000 options under the Outside Director's plan. The options were granted at the then
current market value of $10.80 per share, as determined by the Board of Directors. The board also
approved accelerated vesting of options in certain instances following a change in control, as defined.
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Stock option information with respect to the Company’s stock option ~'ans is as follows:

Common C?tbn
Shares Available rice .E
Reserved  ffor Crast Options Per Share

Balance at December 31, 1006........... 2420000 730,000 1,600,000 § 1.50-820 §6.540,000
Options Granted ....... AR o - (7,327 71327 10.80 770,000
Options Canceled ........... ..... venss (100,000) 55475 (155475) 2.00-8.20 (642.000)
Balance at March 31,1997 .............. w 714148 1605852 81.50-10.80 $6.668.000

During the three month period ended March 31, 1997, the Company expensed $20.000 in
mmuﬂmﬂhmnhﬂnpﬂn;ﬁ@dlwfﬁrvﬂudmnww[nﬂmh
31, 1997 is 84.15 and 697,775 options are vested at that date.

h. Purchase Commitments

In January 1897, the Company entered into an sgreement to purchase switching equipment with a
cost of $3.8 million to be installed in London, England. On May 6, 1097, the Company entered into &
capitzl lease to finance approximately $3.3 million of the purchase price. The Company also entered
into a 10 year facility lease in Dallas, Texas at a cost of approximately $123,000 per year.

O: March 6, 1697, the Company entered into two separate agreements to purchase IRUs on north
transatlantic cable for approximately $1.2 million. Both agreements are effective April 1, 1997 and
continue in effect for the initial term up to the expected useful life of the cables, through
September 2019 and 2020, respectively.

The cost of the first IRU is $1,024,000 to be paid in quarterly payments through September 1999
with an initial payment of $183,000 due on April 30, 1997. The second IRU has a cost of $128.000 due in
quarterly payments plus interest through September 30, 1099 with an inftial payment of $34,340 due on
April 30, 1997, Both agreements also require the Company to make quarterly payments for operating
and maintenance charges as well as for certain restoration costs.

AlehEl.lﬂT.thCmthnd«Wurﬁuwuwﬂhhn‘dim;«
carriers to pay minimum charges of approximately $84,956,000 over the next three years. The Company
anticipates exceeding the minimum usage volume with these vendors. .

i. Foreign Sales
Foreign sales accounted for approximately one percent of revenues in the three month period
ended March 31, 1997,

J. Employment Agreement

In February 1097, the Company revised the employment agreement of & Company executive, to
terminate effective February 28, 1998 and to eliminate the post employment compensation provision.

k. Significant Customers
The two largest customers represent 32 percent of the gross accounts receivable at March 31, 1997,
Only one of these customers represents more than 10 percent of accounts receivable at that date.
These same two customers represent 21 percent of revenue for the quarter ended March 31, 1997, only
one of them over 10 percent. The five largest customers represent 44 percent of revenue for the same
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11. New Authoritative Pronouncements

In March 1087 the Financial Accounting Standards Board introduced SFAS No. 128 “Earnings per
Share” and SFAS No. 129 “Disclosure of Information About Capital Structure”, SFAS No. 128 revises
and simplifies the computation of earnings per share and requires certain addiiional disclosures. SFAS
No. 129 requires additional disclosure about the Company's capital structure. Both standards will be
adopted in the fourth quarter of fscal 1997. Management does not expect the adoption of these
standards to have a material effect on the Company’s inancial position or results of operations.
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EXHIBIT 3
Technical and Managerial Qualifications

Christopher E. Edgecomb served as President of the Company from September 1993 until
January 1996, has served as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board since
January 1996, and has been a Director of the Company since its inception. Prior to that time, Mr.
Edgecomb was a founder and the Executive Vice President of West Coast Telecommunications
(“WCT"™), a nation-wide long distance carrier, from August 1989 to December 1994. Prior to
founding WCT, Mr. Edgeccmb was President of Telco Planning, a telecommunications consulting
firm, from January 1986 to July 1989, Prior to that time, Mr. Edgecomb held senior level sales and
marketing positions with TMC Communications, American Network and Bay Area Teleport.

Mary A. Casey has been a Director and Secretary of the Company since its inception in
September 1993 and has served as the Company's President since January 1996. Prior to that time,
Ms. Casey was Director of Customer Service at WCT from December 1991 to June 1993, and
served as Director of Operator Services at Call America, a long distance telecommunications
company, from May 1988 to December 1991.

David Vaun Crumly has served as the Company's Executive Vice President - Sales and
Marketing since January 1996. Prior to that time, Mr. Crumly was Director of Carrier Sales of WCT
from June 1992 to June 1995. Prior to joining WCT, Mr. Crumly served in various sales and
marketing capacities with Metromedia, a long-distance company, from September 1990 to June 1992
and with Claydesta, a long-distance company, from May 1987 to September 1989.

James E. Kolsrud has served as the Company's Executive Vice President - Operations and
Engineering since September 1996. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Kolsrud was an international
telecommunications consultant from March 1995 to September 1996. Prior to that time, he was a
Vice President, Corporate Engineering and Administration of IDB Communications Group, Inc. (
“IDB™), an intemnational communications company, from October 1989 to March 1995, and prior to
that time, he was President of the International Division of IDB,

Kelly D. Enos has served as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer since December 1996.
Prior to that time, Ms. Enos was an independent consultant in the merchant banking field from
February 1996 to November 1996 and a Vice President of Fortune Financial, a merchant banking
firm, from April 1995 to January 1996. Ms. Enos served as a Vice President of Oppenheimer & Co,,
Inc., an investment bank, from July 1994 to March 1995 and a Vice President of Sutro & Co., an
investment bank, from January 1991 to June 1994,




Gordon Hutchins, Jr. has served as a Director of the Company since January 23, 1996. Mr,
Hutchins has been President of GH Associates, 8 management consulting company, since July 1989,
Prior to founding GH Associates, Mr. Hutchins served as President and Chief Executive Officer of
ICC Telecommunications, 8 competitive access provider, and held senior management positions with
several other companies in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Hutchins serves as a director of
United Digital Network, Inc. A long distance telecommunications company.

John R. Snedegar has served as a Director of the Company since January 23, 1996. Mr.
Snedegar has been he President of the United Digital Network, Inc, a long distance
telecommunications company, since June 1990. Ms. Snedegar serves as a director of StarBase
Corporation, a software development company.

Roland A. Van der Meer has served as a Director of the Company since July 8, 1996. Mr.
Van der Meer has been a partner with Partech International, a venture capital firm, since April 1993.
Prior to that time, Mr. Van der Meer was a partne: with Communications Ventures from April 1987

to February 1993,
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATICNS, INC. Florida P.S.C. Tariff No. 1
Original Sheet 1

TITLE SHEET

FLORIDA TELECOMMUNICATIONS TARIFF

This tariff contains the descriptions, regulations, rates, and charges applicable to the fumnishing of
interexchange telecommunications services and facilities by STAR Telecommunications, Inc., with
principal offices at 223 East De La Guerra, Santa Barbara, California 93101. This tariff applics for
telecommunications services and facilities furnished within the State of Florida. This tariff is on file
with the Florida Public Service Commission ("FPSC or Commission"), and copies may be inspected
during normal business hours at the company's principal place of business.

Issued: Effective:

Mary Casey, President
STAR Telecommunications, Inc,
223 East De La Guerra
Santa Barbara, California 93101




STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. Florida P.S.C. Tariff No. 1
Original Sheet 2

CHECK SHEET

Sheets 1 through 24 inclusive of this tariff are effective as of the date shown at the bottom of the
respective sheets. Original and revised sheets, as named below, comprise all changes from the
original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date on the bottom of this sheet.

Sheet Revision
1 Original
2 Original
3 Original
4 Original
5 Original
6 Original
7 Original
8 Original
9 Original
10 Original
11 Original
12 Original
13 Original
14 Original
15 Original
16 Original
17 Original
18 Original
19 Original
20 Original
21 Original
22 Original
23 Original
24 Original

Issued: Effective:

Mary Casey, President
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guera
Santa Barbara, California 93101
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. Florida P.S.C. Tariff No. 1
Original Sheet 4

TARIFF FORMAT

Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the upper right comer of the sheet, Sheets are
numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the tariff. Whena
new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new
sheet added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1.

Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right comer of each
sheet. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the
Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd revised Sheet 14.
Because of the various suspension periods and deferrals the Commission follows in its tariff
approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always
the tariff sheet in effect. Consult the check sheet for the sheet currently in effect.

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level
of coding is subservient to its next higher level:

2
2.1
2.1.1

2.1.1.A
2.1.1.A.1
2.1.1.A.1.(a)
2.1.1.A.1.(a).1

2.1.1.A.1.(a).1(i)
2.1.1LA.L(a).L(i).(1)

Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Commission an updated check sheet
accompanies the filing. The check sheet lists the sheets contained in the tariff, with a cross
reference to the current revision number. When new sheets are added, the check sheet is
changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an
asterisk (*). There shall be no other symbols used on this sheet if these are the only changes
made to it. The tariff user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular
sheet is the most current on file with the Commission.

Mary Casey, President
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guerra
Santa Barbara, California 93101




STAR TELECOMMUNICATIUNS, INC. Florida P.S.C. Tariff No. 1

Original Sheet §

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

Changes to this tariff shall be identified on the revised sheet(s) through the use of symbols. The
following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

(D) To signify a discontinued rate or regulation.
(I To signify an increase in rate or charge.
(M) To signify material relocated from one sheet to another without change.
(N) To signify a new rate or regulation.
(R) To signify a reduced rate or charge.
(T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate or regulation.
Issued: Effective:

Mary Casey, President
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guerra
Santa Barbara, California 93101




STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. Florida P.S.C. Tariff No. 1
Original Sheet 6

SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Access Dialing - The access of Carrier’s network and the use of Service by a Customer who has
established an account but whose local telephone numbers have not been presubscribed to Carrier.

Access Line - A facility arrangement which connects Customer’s location to Carrier's network

Account Code - A series of digits entered by Customer to associate a call with a particular

cost center, or client. A non-verified Account Code shall be accepted if it contains the
proper number of digits. A verified Account Code shall only be accepted if it can be matched with
a number on the list of valid Account Codes provided by Customer.

Authorization Code - A numerical code, one or more of which are available to Customer to enable
it to access Carrier's network, and which are used by Carrier both to prevent unauthorized access to
its facilities and to identify Customers for billing purposes.

Carrier - STAR Telecommunications, Inc.

Carrier Identification Code (CIC) - A unique three (3) or four (4) digit code assigned to a carrier
for identification purposes by the Local Exchange Carrier (LEC) and for used by Customers to place
calls using the Access Dialing method of network access. Carrier's CIC is “1299™.

Casual Calling - The access of Carrier’s network by Access Dialing and the use of Service by a
caller who has not established an account with Carrier and is not recognized as a Customer.

Commission or FPSC - The Florida Public Service Commission

Contract Service Arrangement - A Customer-specific form of agreement, which is developed and
defines service offerings on an individual case basis.

Conversation Minutes - For billing purposes calls are billed based on Conversation Minutes,
which begin wlcu the called party answers, as determined by answer supervision, and end when
cither party disconnects.

Issued: Effective:

Mary Casey, President
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guerra
Santa Barbara, California 93101




STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. Florida P.S.C. Tariff No. |
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Continued)

Customer - The company, individual, or other entity which orders or uses Service and is therefore
responsible for the payment of charges due and for compliance with Carrier's tariff regulations.

Day - From 8 AM up to but not including 5 PM, Monday through Friday.

Local Access And Transport Area (LATA) - A geographically defined service area established
for the administration of telecommunications services.

Non-Day - All hours other than those included in the Day rate period,

Point-of-Presence (POP) - The physical location at which Customer accesses the network services
of Carrier within a state or LATA.

Prepaid Calling Service - A prepaid telecommunications service, which provides Customer with
a toll free number and an Authorization Code and allows Customer to originate outbound direct dial
long distance calls over Carrier's network.

Service - Any or all service(s) provided by Carrier to Customer pursuant to Service Agreement and
this tariff.

Service Agreement - An standard form of agreement between Carrier and Customer which, subject
to the terms and conditions of this tariff, defines the relationship between Carrier and Customer.

Service Area - The geographic area in which Customers may access and use Service. For ial
Access 1+ Service the Service Area includes all equal access areas within the State of Florida. For
all other services the Service Area is the State of Florida.
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SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS

2.1  Undertaking of the Carrier

2.1.1

2.12

213

2.14

2.1.5

2.1‘

Service is furnished for telecommunications originating at specified points within the
State of Florida under the terms and conditions of this tariff.

Carrier shall install, operate, and maintain Service provided hereunder in accordance
with the terms and conditions set forth in this tariff.

Carrier does not own transmission facilities within the State of Florida, but rather
resells the transmission facilities of other carriers. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Customer shall be considered & customer of Carrier, and not of any other carrier.

Carrier may, when authorized by Customer, act as Customer’s agent for ordering
dedicated Access Lines or facilities provided by other carriers to allow connection
of specified locations of Customer to the network of Carrier. Customer shall be
responsible for all charges due for such service arrangements.

Service is provided under the terms and conditions of this tariff and, where
applicable, a Service Agreement or Contract Service Arrangement. Service is
available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.

Carrier permits Access Dialing by Customers, but does not permit Casual Calling by
callers without an established account.

2.2 Limitations on Service

2.2.1

222

223

Service is offered subject to the availability of the necessary facilities and subject to
the provisions of this tariff.

To the extent that any conflict arises between the terms and conditions of a Service
Agreement and the terms and conditions of this tariff, the tariff shall prevail.

Carrier reserves the right to discontinue furnishing Service, or to limit the use of
Service, when necessitated by conditions reasonably beyond its control, when
Customer is using Service in violation of the law or in violation of the provisions of
this tariff, or in the event of non-payment by Customer.
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SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

Limitations on Service (Continued)

224

226

2.2.7

Service provided under this tariff is directly controlled by Carrier, and Customer may
not transfer or assign the use of Service, except with the prior written consent of
Carrier. Such transfer or assignment shall only apply where there is no interruption
in the use or location of Service, and where all regulations and conditions contained
in this tariff, as well as all conditions for Service, siuil app. t¢ ul such permitted
assignees or transferees.

Carrier may require Customer to sign an application form furnished by Carrier and
to establish credit as provided in this tariff, as a condition precedent to the initial
establishment of Service. Carrier may also require a signed authorization from
Customer for additions to or changes in existing Service. An application for
service canceled by the applicant or by Carrier prior to the establishment of Service
is subject to the provisions of this tariff.

Customer may request Carrier to assign one or more sub-accounts for billing

and to direct sub-account invoices to affiliates of Customer or other
designated entities for payment purposes. Such requests shall not affect the liability
of Customer, who shall remain solely liable to Carrier for payment of all invoices for
Service requested and obtained by Customer, whether invoiced by Carrier 1o
Customer, its affiliates, or other designated entities.

Service may not be used for any unlawful purpose.

Limitations on Liabilities

23.1

Curier's liability shall be limited to damages arising out of mistakes, omissions,
interruptions, delays, errors, or defects in transmission occurring in the course of
furnishing Service, and not caused by mistakes or errors of Customer. No liability
shall commence prior to activation of Service. In no event shall such liability exceed
an amount equivalent to the proportionate charge to Customer for the period during
which the aforementioned faults in transmission occur,
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SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

2.3  Limitations on Liabilities (Continued)

24

232

233

Carrier shall not be liable for, and Customer shall indemnify and hold Carrier
harmless from, any and all losses, claims, demands, suits or other actions, or any
liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted or asserted by Customer or
any other party, for any personal injury to, or death of, any person or persons; for any
loss, damage, defacement or destruction of the premises of Customer or of others; for
libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of copyrights or patents; or for any
other occurrence, caused or claimed to have been caused either directly or indirectly
by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence,
condition, location, or use of its Service or facilities; provided, however, that such
occurrence is not the result of Carrier's negligence.

Carrier shall not be liable for any damages, including usage charges, that Customer
may incur as a result of the unauthorized use of its communications equipment. The
unauthorized use of communications equipment includes, but is not limited to, the
placement of calls from Customer’s premises, and the placement of calls through
equipment controlled and/or provisioned by Customer that are transmitted over
Carrier's network without the authorization of Customer. Customer shall be fully
liable to Carrier for all such usage charges.

Cancellation or Discontinuance of Service by Carrier

Without incurring any liability, Carrier may under the following conditions cancel Service prior
to commencement or discontinue Service that is being furnished, provided that, unless
otherwise stated, Customer shall be given ten (10) days written notice, or such lesser notice as
may be permissible under applicable statutes, of such cancellation or discontinuance of Service.

24.1

For noncompliance with or violation of any aplicable state, municipal or Federal
law, ordinance or regulation or noncompliance with or violation of any Commission
regulation, provided that lesser notice may be required by order of such regulatory
authorities,
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SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

Cancellation or Discontinuance of Service by Carrier (C-atinued)

242

243

244

24.5

24.6

24.7

For Customer’s refusal to provide reasonable access to Carrier or its agents for the
purpose of inspection and maintenance of equipment owned by Carrier.

For noncompliance with any of the provisions of this tariff goveming Service.

For nonpayment of any sum due Carrier for more than thirty (30) days after delivery
of an invoice to the custody of the U.S. Mail or other standard delivery service.

Without notice, in the event of Customer’s use of equipment in such a manner as to
adversely affect Carrier's equipment or Service to others.

Without notice, in the event of unauthorized or fraudulent use of Service. Whenever
Service is discontinued for unauthorized use of Service, Carrier may, before restoring
Service, require Customer to make, at its own expense, all changes in facilities or
equipment necessary to eliminate unauthorized use and to pay to Carrier an amount
reasonably estimated by Carrier as the loss in revenues to Carrier resulting from such
unauthorized use plus claims lodged against Carrier by third parties.

Without notice, by reason of any order or decision of a court or other government authority
having jurisdiction that prohibits Carrier from fumishing Service to Customer.

Cancellation or Termination of Service by Customer

2.5.1

Customer has ordered Service from Carrier pursuant to the terms and conditions of
a Service Agreement. Any cancellation or termination of Service is subject 1o the
terms and conditions of that Service Agreement.

If Customer orders Service from Carrier which requires special construction or
facilities for Customer's use, and then cancels its order before Service begins, a
charge shall be made to Customer for the non-recoverable portions of the
expenditures or liabilities incurred on behalf of Customer.
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2.6

2.7

28

Issued: Effective:

SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

Cancellation or Termination of Service by Customer (Continued)

2,53 If Customer terminates Service prior to the end of the term specified in the Service
Agreement, Customer shall be responsible for all charges incurred to the date of
termination, including, but not limited to, all charges to Carrier by other carriers for
Service provided to Customer, and any applicable cancellation or termination charges

as specified in the Service Agreement.
Contract Service Arrangements

Customer specific contract service arrangements may be furnished by Carrier in lieu of
existing tariff offerings.

2.6.1 Additional rates, charges, terms, conditions, and regulations, as applicable, for the
contract service arrangement shall be developed on an individual case basis.

2.6.2 All rates, charges, terms, conditions, and regulations for contract service
arrangements are in addition to those applicable under and specified in this tariff.

Restoration of Service

The use and restoration of Service shall in all cases be in accordance with the priority system
specified in Part 64, Subpart D, of the Rules and Regulations of the Federal Communications
Commission.

Payment and Billing

2.8.1 All Service by Carrier is provided and billed on a monthly basis. For the billing of
fixed charges, Service is considered to be established upon the day which Carrier
notifies Customer of the installation and testing of Cusiomer’s Service. For the billing
of usage-sensitive charges, Customer shall be billed for all charges accrued beginning
upon its initial access to Service. All charges shall be billed monthly in arrears and are
due and payable by Customer upon receipt. The rates charged to Customer for
Service shall be the rates in effect on the first day of Customer's billing cycle.

Mary Casey, President
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guerra
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SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

28  Payment and Billing (Continued)

2.8.2 Bills are duc and payable upon receipt. Interest at the lesser of a rate of one and one-
half percent (1.5%) per month, or the maximum rate allowed by law, shall be charged
on any amount remaining unpaid after thirty (30) days from delivery of an invoice to
the custody of the U.S, Mail or other standard delivery service.

2.8.3 The security of Authorization Codes used by Customer are the responsibility of
Customer. All calls placed using such Authorization Codes or using facilities owned
or controlled by Customer shall be billed to Customer and must be paid by Customer.

2.8.4 Carrier reserves the right on an ongoing basis to examine the credit record and
payment habits of Customer. A Customer whose Service has been discontinued by
Carrier for the non-payment of bills shall be required to pay any unpaid balance due
to Carrier before Service is restored.

2.8.5 If notice from Customer of a dispute as to charges is not received in writing by Carrier
within thirty (30) days afier delivery of an invoice to the custody of the U.S. Mail or
other standard delivery service, the billing will be considered correct and binding.

2.8.6 A charge of ten dollars ($10.00) or the applicable statutory return check charge,
whichever is less, shall apply whenever any check or draft for payment of Service is
not accepted by the institution on which it is written.

29  Deposits
Carrier does not require or collect deposits from Customers.
Issued: Effective:
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SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

Advance Payments
Carrier does not require or collect advance payments from Customers.

Taxes

2.11.1 Service may be subject to state and/or local taxes at the prevailing rates, if Service
originates and terminates in the State of Florida. All such taxes (¢.g., gross receipts
tax, sales tax, and municipal utilities tax) are listed as separate linc items on
Customer’s invoice and are not included in the rates and charges listed herein.

2.11.2 Service shall not be subject to taxes for a given taxing jurisdiction if Customer
provides Carrier with written verification, acceptable to Carrier and 1o the relevant
taxing jurisdiction, that Customer has been granted a tax exemption.

Terminal Equipment

Service may be used with or terminated in terminal equipment or communications systems,
such as a PBX or key telephone system, provided by Customer. Such terminal equipment or
communications systems shall be fumished by and maintained at the expense of Customer,
except as otherwise provided. Customer is also responsible for all costs at its premises
incurred in the use of Service, including but not limited to equipment, wiring, electrical power,
and personnel. When such terminal equipment or communications systems are used, they shall
in all respects comply with the generally accepted minimum protective standards of the
telecommunications industry as endorsed by the Federal Communications Commission.

Interccunection

Service fumished by Carrier to Customer may be connected with the services or facilities of
other carriers. Customer is responsible for all charges billed by othe. \arriers in connection
with the use of Service. Any special equipment or facilities necessary to achieve
compatibility between carriers are the sole responsibility of Customer.
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2.15

SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

Inspection, Testing and Adjustment

2.14.1 Carrier may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections as may be
necessary to determine whether tariff requirements are being complied with in the
installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer’s or Carrier's equipment.
Carrier may, without notice, interrupt Service at any time, as necessary, because of
a departure from any of these requirements and may continue such interruption until
its requirements have been satisfied.

2.14.2 Upon reasonable notice, the facilities provided by Carrier shall be made available to
Carrier by Customer for such tests and adjustments as may be necessary for their
maintenance to a condition satisfactory to Carrier.

2.14.3 Carrier shall not be liable to Customer for any damages for Service interruption
pursuant to this Section, and Customer shall not be entitled to any credit for
interruption of Service pursuant to this Section when the interruption of Service is
less than two (2) hours.

Interruption of Service

2.15.1 Customer shall be given a credit allowance for any interruption of Service which is
not due to (a) Carrier’s inspection, testing or adjustment, if for a period of two (2)
hours or less; (b) mistakes or errors of Customer; or (c) the failure of facilities or
equipment provided by Customer.

2.15.2 Credit allowances shall be subject to the general liability provisions set forth in
Section 2.3 herein. It shall be the obligation of Customer to notify Carrier
immediately of any interruption of Service for which a credit allowance is desired.
Before giving such notice, Customer shall ascertain that the trouble is not being
caused by action or omission of Customer, or is not in facilities or equipment, if any,
furnished by Customer and connected to Carrier's facilities.
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2.15

2.16

SECTION 2 - REGULATIONS (Continued)

Interruption of Service (Continued)

2.15.3 For the purposes of credit computation, every month shall be considered to have
seven hundred twenty (720) hours.

2.15.4 No credit shall be allowed for any interruption of Service of a continuous duration
of less than two (2) hours.

2.15.5 Customer shall receive a credit against its monthly fixed charges for an interruption
of Service of two (2) hours or more at the rate of 1/720th of the monthly non-usage
sensitive charges for the Service affected for each hour or major fraction thereof that
the interruption continues. The formula for calculating credit shall be as follows:

Credit=_A_x B
720

"A" = Outage time in hours

"B" = Total monthly fixed (non-usage sensitive)
charge for affected Service or facility.

Escalation and Problem Resolution

Customers who are not satisfied with Carrier’s response to their inquiries or who have
unresolved service or billing problems may choose to escalate those unresolved matiers io
the STAR Telecommunications Escalation and Problem Resolution Office, as follows:

STAR Telecommunications, Inc,
ATTN: Retail Client Services
223 East De La Guerra

Santa Barbara, California 93101
Telephone (800) 563-0569
Facsimile (805) 884-0662
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE

Availability of Service

Carrier offers resold interexchange telecommunications service (o any person or company
within its service area who desires to be a Customer, subject to the terms and conditions
of this tariff. Service is available twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week.

321

322

&

3

325

Timing of Calls

Usage sensitive charges are based on the actual usage of Carrier’s network. Such
charges are measured in Conversation Minutes.

Chargeable time for Customer shall begin when the called party answers, as
determined by hardware answer supsrvision, provided that such capabilities are
available from the local telephone company. If hardware answer supervision is not
available, then Carrier will employ industry accepted standards for the timing of
calls. Chargeable time for a call shall end upon disconnection by either party.

The initial period (minimum call duration) for billing purposes varies by service
offering, as indicated in Section 4.2 of this tariff.

Unless otherwise specified in this tariff, usage charges is measured and rounded for
billing purposes to the next higher six (6) second increment after the initial period,
except for prepaid calling service usage which is measured and rounded to the next
higher (1) minute after the initial period.

No charges apply for incomplete calls. If Customer believes it has been incorrectly
billed for an incomplete call, Carrier shall, upon notification, investigate the
circumstances of the call and issue a credit when appropriate.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Continued)

33 Minimum Call Completion Rate

Customers can expect a call completion rate of not less than ninety-five percent (95%) during
peak use periods for all service offerings.

34  Service Offerings
Applicable rate schedules for the following services are provided in Section 4.4.

34.1

342

343

344

Switched Access 1+ Service

Dial Access 1+ Service is a time-of-day banded, volume-sensitive, outbound long
distance service. This service utilizes Feature Group D access.

Dedicated Access 1+ Service

Dedicated Access 1+ Service is a time-of-day banded, volume-sensitive, outbound
long distance service. This service utilizes dedicated Access Liiias to connect the
service location(s) of Customer to Carrier's POP.

Switched Termination Toll Free Service

Switched Termination Toll Free Service is a time-of-day banded, volume-sensitive,
inbound long distance service. This service terminates calls over the local telephone
lines of Customer, and calls are toll-free to the calling party.

Dedicated Termination Toll Free Service

Dedicated Termination Toll Free Service is a time-of-day banded, volume-sensitive,
inbound long distance service. This service terminates calls over dedicated Access
Lines from Carrier's POP to the service location(s) of Customer, and calls are toll-
free to the calling party.
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SECTION 3 - DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE (Continued)

34  Service Offerings (Continued)

345

3.4.6

Travel Card Service

Travei Card Service is a time-of-day banded, outbound long distance service. This
service allows Customer to place long distance calls from locations other than their
primary service location through the use of a toll free network access number and an
Authorization Code.

Prepaid Calling Service

Prepaid Calling Service allows a customer to pay a fixed dollar amount in advance for
long distance calling over Carrier’s network. Prepaid Calling Service is a flat rated
(not time-of-day banded) outbound long distance service, which allows callers to
originate calls via a toll free access number. Customers may not complete calls to
700, 800, or 900 numbers, calls to directory assistance, conference calls, calls
requiring surcharges, or calls requiring operator assistance. The cost of a given call
will be deducted on a realtime basis from the available balance until the call is
terminated or until the full balance of the accourt is exhausted. Calls may only be
charged against an account that has a sufficient available balance. Customers shall be
given notice one (1) minute before the available account balance is depleted based upon
the applicable rate for the call in progress. When the balance of available time is
depleted, the call shall be terminated. A prepaid calling account shall expire on the
date specified on the card issued to Customer at the time the account is established.

35 Dedicated Access Lines

Dedicated Access Lines may be required to connect Customer locations to Carrier’s POP.
Such dedicated Access Lines, when required, shall be the sole responsibility of Customer.
Notwithstanding such responsibility, Carrier shall, upon Customer’s request, order such
dedicated Access Lines on behalf of Customer, and shall invoice Customer for all related
recurring and non-recurring charges.
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SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES

General

4.1.1

4.1.2

Conversaiion Minutes, which reflect usage sensitive charges resulting from use of
Service, are billed for all Services other than Prepaid Calling Service in increments
of six (6) seconds with an initial period as indicated below. Following the initial
period, all charges for these Services are rounded to the next higher six (6) second
increment for billing purposes. Conversation Minutes for Prepaid Calling Service
are billed in increments of one (1) minute with an initial period of one (1) minute, as
indicated below. Following the initial period, all charges for Prepaid Calling Service
are rounded to the next higher one (1) minute increment for billing purposes.

Other than the charges indicated in Section 4.3 and Section 4.4, there are no
installation charges or monthly recurring charges for Service, except for the
installation charges and/or monthly recurring charges associated with the use of
dedicated Access Lines ordered by Carrier on behalf of Customer.

Initial Periods

4.2.1
422
423
424

425

The initial period for Switched Access 1+ Service is six (6) seconds.

The initial period for Dedicated Access 1+ Service is six (6) seconds.

The initial period for Switched Termination Toll Free Service is six (6) seconds.
The initial period for Dedicated Termination Toll Free Service is six (6) seconds.

The initial period for Travel Card Service is thirty (30) seconds.

The initial period for Prepaid Calling Service is one (1) minute.
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SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES (Continued)

4.3  Basic Service Rates
4.3.1 Dial Access 1+ Service

Usage Sensitive Charges (Rate Per Minute):

Monthly Usage Volume —Day Non-Day
Less than $250 $0.1920 $0.1920
$250 - $1,000 §0.1640 $0.1640
Over $1,000 $0.1440 $0.1440

432 Dedicated Access 1+ Service
Usage Sensitive Charges (Rate Per Minute):

Monthly Usage Volume —Day Non-Day
Less than $2,500 $0.1030 $£0.1030
$2,500 - $5,000 $0.0890 $0.0890

$0.0780 $0.0780

Over $5,000

4.3.3 Switched Termination Toll Free Service
Usage Sensitive Charges (Rate Per Minute):

—Day Non-Day
Less than $250 $0.1920 $0.1920
$250 - $1,000 $0.1640 $0.1640
Over $1,000 $0.1440 $0.1440
Non-Usage Sensitive Charges:
$15.00

Per Directory Listed Toll Free Number Per Month

Effective:

Mary Casey, President
STAR Telecommunications, Inc.
223 East De La Guerra
Santa Barbara, California 92101




STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Florida P.S.C. Tariff No. 1

Original Sheet 22
SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES (Continued)
4.3  Basic Service Rates (Continued)
4.3.4 Dedicated Termination Toll Free Service
Usage Sensitive Charges (Rate Per Minute):
—Day Non-Day
Less than $2,500 $0.1030 $0.1030
$2,500 - $5,000 $0.0890 $0.08%0
Over $5,000 $0.0780 $0.0780
Non-Usage Sensitive Charges:
Per Directory Listed Toll Free Number Per Month $15.00
43.5 Travel Card Service
Usage Sensitive Charges (Rate Per Minute):
Rate for All Usage Volumes: _Day Non-Day
$0.2200 $0.2200
Non-Usage Sensitive Charges:
Charge Per Call NONE
4.3.6 Prepaid Calling Service
Usage Sensitive Charges (Rate Per Minute):
Rate For All Rate Periods: $ 0.2500
Issued: Effective:
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4.4  Other Service Charges

4.4.1 Non-Verified Account Code Fee

Monthly Charge for Non-Verified Account Codes: NONE
442 Verified Account Code Fee

Monthly Charge per Verified Account Code Table: $5.00
443 Returned Check Fee

Returned Check Charge (Per Check): $10.00
44.4 Directory Assistance Charge

Charge Per Directory Assistance Call: $0.75

4.5  Credits for Hearing or Speech Impaired Persons
Telephone calls which are placed using a Telecommunications Device for the Deaf (TDD)
by or to properly certified hearing or speech impaired persons or properly certified
business cstablishments or individuals equipped with TDDs for the purpose of
communicating with hearing or speech impaired persons shall receive, upon request, credit
on charges for all intrastate toll calls placed between TDDs. The credit for such calls
placed between TDDs shall be fifty percent (50%) of the billed toll charges.
Issued: Effective:
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SECTION 4 - RATES AND CHARGES (Continued)

Employee Concessions
No employee concessions are offered under this tariff.
Special Promotions
Carrier may, from time to time, waive or vary the rates and charges associated with certain
services for promotional, market research, or other similar purposes. In no case, shall the
resulting rates and charges exceed the rates and charges listed in this tariff for the same
services.
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